
June 30, 2025 

To, 

BSE Limited 

Listing Department,  

Phiroze Jeejeebhoy Towers 

Dalal Street, Mumbai- 400001 

Scrip Code: 974215 & 974289 

Subject: Notice of Annual General Meeting and Annual Report for FY 2024-25 

Dear Sir/ Madam, 

Please note that the Annual General Meeting (“AGM”) of the Company is scheduled to be held on Tuesday, 

July 22, 2025. Pursuant to regulation 53(2) of the Securities and Exchange Board of India (Listing 

Obligations and Disclosure Requirements) Regulations, 2015, we enclose herewith the notice convening 

AGM and the Annual Report sent to the shareholders.  

The said Notice and the Annual Report are also available on the website of the Company i.e. 

https://www.irbinfratrust.co.in/home/index.php/solapur-yedeshi-tollway-limited/  

We request you to take the above on record. 

Thanking you. 

For Solapur Yedeshi Tollway Limited 

Shilpa Todankar 

Director 

Encl.: As above 

https://www.irbinfratrust.co.in/home/index.php/solapur-yedeshi-tollway-limited/


 

NOTICE  

 

NOTICE is hereby given that the 12th (Twelfth) Annual General Meeting (AGM) of the Members of 

Solapur Yedeshi Tollway Limited will be on Tuesday, July 22, 2025 at 11.20 AM (IST) at the 

registered office of the Company at Off No-11th Floor/1101, Hiranandani Knowledge Park, 

Technology Street, Hill Side Avenue, Powai, Mumbai, 400076, to transact the following business: 

 

Ordinary Business:  

1. To receive, consider and adopt the Audited Financial Statements of the Company for the financial 

year ended March 31, 2025 and the Reports of the Board of Directors and the Auditors thereon. 

 

2. To appoint a Director in place of Mr. Abhay Phatak (DIN: 09519500), Director, who retires by 

rotation and being eligible offers himself for re-appointment. 

 

Special Business:  

 

3. To consider and, if thought fit, to pass with or without modification, the following resolution as 

an Ordinary Resolution: 

 

“RESOLVED THAT pursuant to the provisions of Section 148(3) and other applicable provisions, 

if any, of the Companies Act, 2013 read with the Companies (Cost Records & Audit) Rules, 2014 

and the Companies (Audit and Auditors) Rules, 2014 (including any statutory modification(s) or 

re-enactment(s) thereof, for the time being in force), the remuneration payable to M/s. JNP & 

Associates, Cost & Management Accountants (Firm Registration No. 000572), appointed by the 

Board of Directors of the Company to conduct the audit of the cost records of the Company for the 

Financial Year 2025-26, amounting to Rs. 50,000/- (Rupees Fifty Thousand only) be and is hereby 

ratified and confirmed.”     

 

Regd. Office: 

Off No-11th Floor/1101 Hiranandani 

Knowledge Park, Technology Street, Hill 

Side Avenue, Powai, Mumbai – 400076  

 

Place: Mumbai                                                                                                    

Date: June 24, 2025 

By order of the Board 

For Solapur Yedeshi Tollway Limited 

 

 

Sd/- 

                  Shilpa Todankar                 

                                                                      Director  

DIN : 08683910 

Address: 408, Ganeshkunj CHS, Maheshwari Nagar, 

Kondivita, Andheri (East) Mumbai – 400059 

 

  



  

EXPLANATORY STATEMENT UNDER SECTION 102 OF THE COMPANIES ACT, 2013 

 

Item No. 2 

 

Mr. Abhay Phatak (holding DIN: 09519500) was appointed as Director liable to retire by rotation on 

March 9, 2022. Pursuant to the provisions of Section 152 of the Companies Act, 2013, being the 

director appointed with longest tenure, Mr. Phatak would retire by rotation at the ensuing Annual 

General Meeting of the Company. Mr. Phatak being eligible has offered himself for re-appointment as 

Director liable to retire by rotation. Further the Board of Directors also recommended his appointment 

as Director of the Company, liable to retire by rotation. 

 

Mr. Abhay P. Phatak, 53 years, joined the IRB group in September 1992. He has a bachelor’s degree 

in Commerce from Mumbai University in the year 1992. He has over 30 years of experience of 

working in various fields & at various positions in IRB Group, including the Accounts & Project 

Finance. 

 

Mr. Phatak does not hold share in the Company. The details of Board Meeting attended by him 

during the year under review are given in Board’s Report.. He is not related to any Director and/or 

Key Managerial Personnel of the company. The Directorship and Membership of Committees held by 

Mr. Phatak in other companies is as given below: 

 

Sr. 

No 

Names of the Companies  Director / Membership of Committee 

1.  IRB Westcoast Tollway Limited   Director, Member of Corporate Social 

Responsibility Committee. 

2.  Yedeshi Aurangabad Tollway Limited  Director, Member of Stakeholders Relationship 

Committee, Member of Risk Management 

Committee and Member of Corporate Social 

Responsibility Committee. 

3.  Kaithal Tollway Limited  Director and Member of Corporate Social 

Responsibility Committee. 

4.  AE Tollway Limited  Director and Member of Corporate Social 

Responsibility Committee. 

5.  Udaipur Tollway Limited  Director and Member of Corporate Social 

Responsibility Committee. 

6.  CG Tollway Limited  Director and Member of Corporate Social 

Responsibility Committee. 

7.  Kishangarh Gulabpura Tollway Limited  Director and Member of Corporate Social 

Responsibility Committee. 

8.  IRB Hapur Moradabad Tollway Limited 

 

Director, Member of Audit Committee and 

Member of Corporate Social Responsibility 

Committee. 

9.  Meerut Budaun Expressway Limited Director 

 

Except Mr. Phatak, being an appointee, none of the Directors of the Company and their relatives is 



  

concerned or interested, financial or otherwise, in the resolution set out at Item No. 2. 

 

The Board recommends the ordinary resolution as set out in Item No. 2 of the Notice for approval of 

the members. 

 

Item No. 3 

 

The Board of Directors of the Company has appointed M/s. JNP & Associates, Cost & Management 

Accountant (Firm Registration No. 000572), to conduct the audit of the cost records of the Company 

for the financial year 2025-26. In terms of the provisions of Section 148(3) of the Companies Act, 

2013 read with the Companies (Cost Records & Audit) Rules, 2014 and Rule 14(a)(ii) of The 

Companies (Audit and Auditors) Rules, 2014, the remuneration payable to the Cost Auditor is 

required to be ratified by the Members of the Company. The remuneration of Rs. 50,000/- (Rupees 

Fifty Thousand only) is agreed for payment to M/s. JNP & Associates, Cost & Management 

Accountant (Firm Registration No. 000572) for the audit to be conducted for financial year 2025-26. 

Accordingly, the Members are requested to ratify the remuneration payable to the Cost Auditors for 

the audit to be conducted for financial year 2025-26. 

 

None of the Directors, Key Managerial Personnel of the Company and their relatives, is in any way 

concerned or interested, financially or otherwise, in the said Resolution.  

 

The Board of Directors recommends the Ordinary Resolution set out at Item No. 3 of the Notice for 

approval by the Members. 

 

 

 

Regd. Office: 

Off No-11th Floor/1101 Hiranandani 

Knowledge Park, Technology Street, 

Hill Side Avenue, Powai, Mumbai – 

400076 

 

Place: Mumbai                                                                                                    

Date: June 24, 2025 

By order of the Board 

For Solapur Yedeshi Tollway Limited  

 

 

 

Sd/- 

                                                                  Shilpa Todankar                 

                                                                      Director  

DIN : 08683910 

Address: 408, Ganeshkunj CHS,  

Maheshwari Nagar, Kondivita,  

Andheri (East) Mumbai – 400059 

 

  



  

NOTES: 

 

1. A MEMBER ENTITLED TO ATTEND AND VOTE AT THE ANNUAL GENERAL 

MEETING IS ENTITLED TO APPOINT A PROXY TO ATTEND AND VOTE IN THE 

MEETING AND THE PROXY NEED NOT BE A MEMBER OF THE COMPANY.  

 

2. A PERSON CAN ACT AS PROXY ON BEHALF OF MEMBERS NOT EXCEEDING 

FIFTY (50) MEMBERS AND HOLDING IN THE AGGREGATE NOT MORE THAN TEN 

PERCENT OF THE TOTAL SHARE CAPITAL OF THE COMPANY CARRYING 

VOTING RIGHTS. A MEMBER HOLDING MORE THAN TEN PERCENT OF THE 

TOTAL SHARE CAPITAL OF THE COMPANY CARRYING VOTING RIGHTS MAY 

APPOINT A SINGLE PERSON AS PROXY AND SUCH PERSON SHALL NOT ACT AS 

PROXY FOR ANY OTHER PERSON OR SHAREHOLDER. 

 

3. Corporate members intending to send their authorized representatives to attend the Meeting are 

requested to send to the Company a certified copy of the Board Resolution authorizing their 

representative to attend and vote on their behalf at the Meeting. 

 

4. The instrument appointing the proxy must be deposited at the Registered Office of the Company 

not less than 48 hours before the commencement of the meeting. 

 

5. The Explanatory Statement pursuant to Section 102 of the Companies Act, 2013 is attached and 

forms part of this notice. 

 

6. The Register of Directors and Key Managerial Personnel and their shareholding, maintained under 

Section 170 of the Companies Act, 2013 will be available for inspection by the members at the 

Annual General Meeting. 

 

7. The Register of Contracts or Arrangements in which Directors are interested, maintained under 

Section 189 of the Companies Act, 2013 will be available for inspection by the members at the 

Annual General Meeting. 

 

8. Relevant documents referred to in the accompanying Notice are open for inspection by the 

members at the Registered Office of the Company on all working days, except Saturday(s), 

Sunday(s) and public holiday(s), between 10.00 am (IST) to 12.00 Noon (IST) up to the date of 

the Meeting. 
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Solapur Yedeshi Tollway Limited  

CIN: U45400MH2014PLC251983 

Registered Office: Off No-11th Floor/1101 Hiranandani Knowledge Park, Technology Street, Hill 

Side Avenue, Powai, Mumbai – 400076 072 

 

ATTENDANCE SLIP 

 

Annual General Meeting, Tuesday, July 22, 2025 at 11.20 AM   

 

 

Regd. Folio No.   / DP ID  Client Id/Ben. A/C  No. of shares held   

 

 

NAME AND ADDRESS OF THE SHAREHOLDER 

 

 

 

I certify that I am a member/proxy for the member of the Company. 

 

I hereby record my presence at the ANNUAL GENERAL MEETING of the Company held on 

Tuesday, July 22, 2025 at 11.20 AM at Off No-11th Floor/1101, Hiranandani Knowledge Park, 

Technology Street, Hill Side Avenue, Powai Mumbai 400076. 

 

 

 

__________________________________ 

Member’s/Proxy’s Signature 

 

Note: Please fill this attendance slip and hand it over at the entrance of the hall. Members/Proxy 

holders are requested to bring their copies of the Annual Report with them to the Annual General 

Meeting. 

 

 



  

Proxy form 

[Pursuant to section 105(6) of the Companies Act, 2013 and rule 19(3) of the Companies 

(Management and Administration) Rules, 2014] 

 

Solapur Yedeshi Tollway Limited  

CIN:  U45400MH2014PLC251983 

Registered Office: Off No-11th Floor/1101 Hiranandani Knowledge Park, Technology Street, Hill 

Side Avenue, Powai, Mumbai – 400076  

 

Name of the member (s):  

Registered address:   

E-mail Id:   

Folio No/ Client Id:  

DP ID:  

 

I/We, being the member (s) of ………….……. shares of Solapur Yedeshi Tollway Limited, hereby 

appoint.  

1. …………………… of …………………. having e-mail Id: ………………………., or failing him  

2. ………………… of ……………………. having e-mail Id: ………………………., or failing him  

3. ………………… of ……………………. having e-mail Id: ………………………………………. 

  

and whose signature(s) are appended below as my/our proxy to attend and vote (on a poll) for me/us 

and on my/our behalf at the Annual general meeting of the Company, to be held on Tuesday, July 22, 

2025 at 11.20 AM  at Off No-11th Floor/1101, Hiranandani Knowledge Park, Technology Street, Hill 

Side Avenue, Powai Mumbai 400076 and at any adjournment thereof in respect of such resolutions as 

are indicated below: 

 

Sr. 

No. 

Resolutions For Against 

1. Consider and adopt Audited Financial Statement, Reports of the Board 

of Directors and Auditors thereon 

  

   2. To appoint a Director in place of Mr. Abhay Phatak (DIN: 09519500) 

Director, who retires by rotation and, being eligible, seeks re-

appointment  

  

   4. Ratification of remuneration to be paid to Cost Auditor   

 

Signed this…… day of……………… 2025. 

 

 

Signature of shareholder 

 

Affix  

Revenue  

Stamp 



  

 

Signature of First Proxy holder Signature of Second Proxy holder   Signature of Third Proxy holder 

 

Notes: 

 

(1) This form of proxy in order to be effective should be duly completed and deposited at the 

Registered Office of the Company not less than 48 hours before the commencement of the 

meeting. 

(2) A Proxy need not be a member of the Company. 

(3) A person can act as a proxy on behalf of members not exceeding fifty and holding in the 

aggregate not more than 10% of the total share capital of the Company carrying voting rights. A 

member holding more than 10% of the total share capital of the Company carrying voting rights 

may appoint a single person as proxy and such person shall not act as a proxy for any other person 

or shareholder. 

(4) Appointing a proxy does not prevent a member from attending the meeting in person if he so 

wishes. 

(5) In the case of joint holders, the signature of any one holder will be sufficient, but names of all the 

joint holders should be stated. 

 

 



 

Board’s Report 

Dear Stakeholders,  

 

Your Directors have pleasure in presenting their report on the business and operations, along with the 

audited financial statements of your Company, for the year ended March 31, 2025. 

(Amount in millions)  

Particulars Year ended March 

31, 2025 

Year ended March 

31, 2024 

Total Income 1,285.44 1,399.92 

Total Expenditure 284.55 344.2 

Earnings before interest, depreciation and tax 1,000.89 1,055.72 

Less: Finance costs 

  Depreciation 

1,681.08 

138.26 

1,742.92 

156.93 

Profit/ (loss) before tax (818.45) (844.13) 

Less: Provision for tax   

Current tax - 0.47 

MAT Credit Entitlement - - 

Deferred tax - - 

Profit/ loss after tax before minority interest (818.45) (844.60) 

Less: Minority interest - - 

Profit/ loss after tax and after minority interest (818.45) (844.60) 

Add: Profit/ loss at the beginning of the year (3,128.31) (2283.71) 

Profit available for appropriation (3,946.76) (3,128.31) 

Appropriations: 

Interim Dividend/ Proposed Interim Dividend 

Tax on equity dividend 

Transfer to General Reserve 

Other comprehensive income/(loss) for the period: 

Re-measurement gains/ (losses) on defined benefit plans 

- - 

Balance Carried Forward to Balance Sheet (3,946.76) (3,128.31) 

 

  Your Company has not proposed to transfer any amount to the General Reserves. 

 

OPERATION AND PERFORMANCE REVIEW  

 

During the year, your Company earned total income of Rs. 1,285.44 millions and Earnings before 

Interest, Depreciation and Tax of Rs. 1,000.89 millions for the year ended March 31, 2025. After 



 

providing for Finance costs of Rs. 1,681.08 millions and for Depreciation and amortization of Rs. 138.26 

millions, the Loss before tax is Rs. 818.45 millions. The net Loss for the year ended March 31, 2025 

stood at Rs. 818.45 millions, as against Loss of Rs. 844.60 millions for the previous year.  

 

There is no change in the nature of business of the Company, during the year under review. 

 

PARTICULARS OF LOANS, GUARANTEES OR INVESTMENTS 

 

Particulars of Loans, Guarantees or Investments, if any, are given in the Notes to the Financial 

Statements. 

 

DIVIDEND  

 

Your Company has not recommended any dividend for the year under review. 

 

SHARE CAPITAL 

 

As on March 31, 2025 the Authorized and Paid up Equity Share Capital of the Company stood at                        

Rs. 98,25,00,000/-. During the year under review, there were no changes in the authorized and paid up 

share capital of the Company. 

 

DEBENTURES 

 

As on March 31, 2025 the Company has outstanding Non- Convertible Debentures of Rs 591 Crores. The 

Debentures issued by the Company are listed with BSE Limited. During the year under review Company 

has not issued any Debt security. 

 

Debenture Trustees 

SBICAP Trustee Company Limited 

Address: 202, Maker Tower, ‘E’, 

Cuffe Parade, Colaba, Mumbai – 400005 

Email: corporate@sbicaptrustee.com 

Website: www.sbicaptrustee.com 

Contact No. 022 4302 5555 

Fax – 022 22040465 

 

 

 



 

There were no cases of unclaimed or unpaid interest amount on the NCDs issued by the Company, which 

were required to be transferred to the Escrow Account/ Investor Education and Protection Fund. 

 

CREDIT RATING OF COMPANY  

 

CRISIL Ratings Limited has reaffirmed its CRISIL AAA/Stable rating for Non-Convertible Debentures 

of Rs.5,910 Million & Bank Guarantee of Rs.260 million. 

 

BORROWINGS  

 

As on March 31, 2025, your Company’s project loans availed stood at Rs. 5,910 Millions. 

 

SUBSIDIARY COMPANIES 

 

During the year under review, the Company had no subsidiary(ies). 

 

CHANGE IN HOLDING COMPANY 

 

During the year under review, there is no change in holding entity of the Company. 

 

DIRECTORS & KEY MANAGERIAL  

As on March 31, 2025, the Board comprised of Mr. Abhay Phatak, Ms. Shilpa Todankar, Mrs. Ranjana 

Paranjape and Mr. Chandrashekhar Kaptan, as Directors of the Company. Mr. Jai Prakash Nandi is the 

Chief Executive Officer and Mr. Devendra Ranka is the Chief Financial Officer of the Company.  

 

During the year under review, Ms. Rishika Rawat resigned from the position of Company Secretary and 

Compliance Officer of the Company w.e.f. May 22, 2024 and Ms. Heta Solanki was appointed as the 

Company Secretary and Compliance Officer of the Company w.e.f August 20, 2024. Ms. Solanki 

resigned from the post w.e.f.  closure of business hours of May 30, 2025. 

 

During the year under review, Mr. Chandrashekhar Kaptan was re-appointed as Independent Directors of 

the Company for second term of five years with effect from February 26, 2025. 

 

Mr. Abhay Phatak (DIN: 09519500), Director of the Company, is liable to retire by rotation at the 

forthcoming Annual General Meeting and being eligible, offers himself for re-appointment. Your 

Directors recommend his appointment as Director liable to retire by rotation. 

 



 

All Independent Directors have given declarations that they meet the criteria of independence as laid 

down under Section 149(6) of the Companies Act, 2013 and Regulation 25(8) of the SEBI (Listing 

Obligations and Disclosure Requirements) Regulations, 2015. 

 

On the basis of confirmation received by the Company, all Directors including Independent Directors 

appointed during the year have complied with the Code of Conduct adopted by the Company. Further 

based on the confirmations and disclosures received, the Board also states that Independent Directors are 

person of person of integrity and has adequate experience to serve as an Independent Director of your 

Company.  

 

BOARD EVALUATION  

Pursuant to the provisions of the Companies Act, 2013, the Board has carried out an annual performance 

evaluation of its own performance, the directors individually as well as the evaluation of the working of 

its Committees.  

 

The evaluation framework for assessing the performance of Directors comprises of the following key 

areas: 

i. Attendance of Directors in Board Meetings and Board Committee Meetings 

ii. Quality of contribution to Board deliberations 

iii. Strategic perspectives or inputs regarding future growth of Company and its performance 

iv. Providing perspectives and feedback going beyond information provided by the management 

v. Commitment to shareholder and other stakeholder interests 

 

The evaluation involves Self-Evaluation by the Board Member and subsequently assessment by the Board 

of Directors. A member of the Board does not participate in the discussion of his / her evaluation. 

  

The Board found its members’ performance satisfactory.  

 

The performance of the committees was evaluated by the board after seeking inputs from the committee 

members on the basis of criteria such as the composition of committees, effectiveness of committee 

meetings, etc. 

 

In a separate meeting of independent directors, performance of non-independent directors, Chairperson of 

the Board was evaluated, taking into account the views of non-executive directors. Performance 

evaluation of independent directors was done by the entire board, excluding the independent director 

being evaluated. 

 

 



 

REMUNERATION POLICY  

 

The Board had adopted Nomination and Remuneration Policy which sets out the guidelines regarding the 

nomination, remuneration and removal of directors, key managerial personnel and employees of the 

Company. 

 

The policy on Directors/Key Managerial Personnel’s appointment & remuneration is annexed herewith as 

“Annexure A”. 

 

MATERIAL CHANGES, COMMITMENTS, IF ANY: 

There were no material changes and commitments affecting the financial position of the Company which 

have occurred between the end of the financial year of the Company and the date of this report. 

 

MEETINGS 

 

During the financial year under review, the Board of Directors met as and when business required. The 

intervening gap between the Meetings was within the period prescribed under the Companies Act, 2013. 

 

The Details of dates of meetings of the Board and its committee held during the financial year, indicating 

the number of meetings attended by each director and composition of committees is given in “Annexure 

B”. 

 

SECRETARIAL STANDARDS 

 

The Company complies with all applicable Secretarial Standards issued by Institute of Company 

Secretaries of India (ICSI). 

 

CORPORATE GOVERNANCE  

 

As required by SEBI (Listing Obligations and Disclosure Requirements) Regulations, 2015, reports on 

Corporate Governance for the financial year ended March 31, 2025 forms part of the Annual Report. A 

Certificate from a Practicing Company Secretary on the compliance with the provisions of Corporate 

Governance is annexed to the Corporate Governance Report. 

 

 

 

 



 

INTERNAL CONTROL SYSTEMS AND THEIR ADEQUACY 

The Company has an Internal Control System, commensurate with the size, scale and complexity of its 

operations as approved by the Audit Committee and the Board. The Internal Financial Controls are 

adequate and working effectively.  

 

The scope and authority of the Internal Audit is laid down by the Audit Committee and accordingly the 

Internal Audit Plan is laid out. To maintain its objectivity and independence, the Internal Auditors reports 

to the Chairman of the Audit Committee. 

 

The Internal Auditors monitors and evaluates the efficacy and adequacy of internal control system in the 

Company, its compliance with operating systems, accounting procedures and policies at all locations of 

the Company. Based on the report of internal audit, process owners/concern department undertake 

corrective action in their respective areas and thereby strengthen the controls. Significant audit 

observations and corrective actions thereon are presented to the Audit Committee of the Company. 

 

OTHER DISLOSURE 

 

Disclosure as per Sexual Harassment of Women at Workplace (Prevention, Prohibition and Redressal) 

Act, 2013 is mentioned in “Annexure C”. 

 

WHISTLE BLOWER MECHANISM 

 

The Company has adopted whistleblower policy to deal with genuine concerns of the employees and 

directors. All Employees and Directors are made aware of the whistleblower mechanism. The Company 

has established a system to ensure  functioning of the said mechanism. During the year under review, the 

Company has not received any complaints under Whistle Blower Mechanism. 

 

ANNUAL RETURN 

 

The Annual Return as required under Section 92 and Section 134 of the Companies Act, 2013 read with 

Rule 12 of the Companies (Management and Administration) Rules, 2014 shall be made available on the 

website at https://www.irbinfratrust.co.in/home/index.php/solapur-yedeshi-tollway-limited/, once it is 

filed with the Ministry of Corporate Affairs. 

 

 

 

 

https://www.irbinfratrust.co.in/home/index.php/solapur-yedeshi-tollway-limited/


 

STATUTORY AUDITORS 

 

M/s. MKPS & Associates, Chartered Accountants, Statutory Auditors of the Company, were appointed as 

Statutory Auditors of the Company for a period of 5 years commencing from the conclusion of Annual 

General Meeting (AGM) held in the Year 2024 till the conclusion of AGM to be held in the year 2029, as 

per the provisions of Section 139 of the Companies Act, 2013. They have confirmed their eligibility 

under Section 141 of the Companies Act, 2013 and the Rules framed there under, to continue as statutory 

auditors for FY 2025-26. 

 

There are no qualifications, reservations or adverse remarks made by Statutory Auditors in their report for 

the Financial Year ended March 31, 2025. 

 

COST AUDITORS  

 

Pursuant to Section 148 of the Companies Act, 2013 read with the Companies (Cost Records and Audit) 

Amendment Rules, 2014, the Cost Audit Records maintained by the Company in respect of its road 

construction activity is required to be audited. Accordingly, for the Financial Year 2024-25, the company 

has maintained and audited its cost records from M/s. JNP & Associates, Cost & Management 

Accountant (Firm Registration No. 000572) as per section 148 of the Companies Act, 2013. 

 

For Financial Year 2025-26, your Directors have appointed M/s. JNP & Associates, Cost & Management 

Accountant (Firm Registration No. 000572) to audit the cost records of the Company on remuneration of 

Rs. 50,000/-. As required under the Act, the remuneration payable to the Cost Auditor is required to be 

placed before the Members in a general meeting for their ratification. Accordingly, a resolution seeking 

Member’s ratification for the remuneration payable to M/s. JNP & Associates, Cost Auditors is included 

in the Notice convening the Annual General Meeting. 

  

SECRETARIAL AUDIT  

 

Pursuant to the provisions of Section 204 of the Companies Act, 2013 and The Companies (Appointment 

and Remuneration of Managerial Personnel) Rules, 2014, the Company had appointed M/s. MMJB & 

Associates LLP, Company Secretaries to undertake the Secretarial Audit of the Company for the 

Financial Year 2024-25. The Company, in order to comply with Section 203 of the Act, had been seeking 

competent candidates and it would continue to make reasonable efforts to recruit/depute competent 

persons so as to comply with applicable provisions. 

 

The Secretarial Audit Report is annexed herewith as “Annexure D”. 

 



 

FIXED DEPOSITS  

 

Your Company has not accepted or renewed any deposit from public during the year under review.  

 

RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS 

 

All Related Party Transactions that were entered into during the financial year were in compliance with 

the requirement of the Companies Act, 2013 and the Rules framed there under, and necessary approvals 

have been obtained as required. 

 

The details of contract and arrangements entered with related parties, if any, are provided in form AOC 2, 

annexed herewith as “Annexure E”. For disclosure, transaction/s more than 10% of Annual turnover 

with related party are considered material. 

 

SIGNIFICANT AND MATERIAL ORDERS PASSED BY THE REGULATORS OR COURTS 

 

There are no significant material orders passed by the Regulators/Courts which would impact the going 

concern status of the Company and its future operations. 

 

RISK MANAGEMENT POLICY 

 

The Company has in place a mechanism to identify, assess, monitor and mitigate various risks to key 

business objectives. Major risks identified by the businesses and functions are systematically addressed 

through mitigating actions on a continuing basis.  

 

DIRECTORS’ RESPONSIBILITY STATEMENT  

 

To the best of their knowledge and belief and according to the information and explanations obtained by 

them, your Directors make the following statements in terms of Section 134(3)(c) of the Companies Act, 

2013: 

 

a. that in the preparation of the annual financial statements for the financial year ended March 31, 2025 

the applicable accounting standards have been followed along with proper explanation relating to 

material departures, if any; 

 

b. that such accounting policies as mentioned in the Notes to the Financial Statements have been 

selected and applied consistently and judgment and estimates have been made that are reasonable and 



 

prudent so as to give a true and fair view of the state of affairs of the Company as at March 31, 2025 

and of the loss of the Company for the year ended on that date; 

 

c. that proper and sufficient care has been taken for the maintenance of adequate accounting records in 

accordance with the provisions of the Companies Act, 2013 for safeguarding the assets of the 

Company and for preventing and detecting fraud and other irregularities; 

 

d. that the annual financial statements have been prepared on a going concern basis; 

e. that systems to ensure compliance with the provisions of all applicable laws were in place and were 

adequate and operating effectively. 

 

CORPORATE SOCIAL RESPONSIBILITY  

 

During the year under review, the provisions of Section 135 of the Companies Act, 2013 were not 

applicable to the Company. 

 

PARTICULARS OF EMPLOYEES 

 

The Company doesn’t have any employee on its roll, hence the provisions of Section 197(12) are not 

applicable. 

 

CONSERVATION OF ENERGY, TECHNOLOGY ABSORPTION, FOREIGN EXCHANGE 

EARNINGS AND OUTGO 

 

There were no earnings / expenditures in the foreign currency, during the year under consideration. 

 

Since the Company does not have any manufacturing facility, the other particulars required to be provided 

in terms of Section 134(3)(m) of the Companies Act, 2013 read with Rule 8 of the Companies (Accounts) 

Rules, 2014 are not applicable. 

  



 

PROCEEDINGS UNDER THE INSOLVENCY AND BANKRUPTCY CODE, 2016: 

 

During the year under review no instances were reported / initiated by or against the Company under the 

aforesaid code. 

 

Further, there were no instances occurred during the year under review which would lead to any valuation 

being carried out arising due to one-time settlements for the loans taken from Banks / financial 

institutions. 
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Your Directors take this opportunity to thank the Ministry of Road Transport & Highways, National 

Highways Authority of India, Maharashtra State Road Development Corporation Ltd., Maharashtra 

Industrial Development Corporation, various State Governments, Central Government for their support 
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Annexure A 

Criteria for appointment of Board of Directors 

 

As per provisions of the Companies Act, 2013, the Board shall have required number of independent 

directors of their Board. Further, as per SEBI (Infrastructure Investment Trusts) Regulations, 2014, the 

majority Directors on the Board of the Company will be appointed by the Investment Manager in 

consultation with the Trustee of IRB Infrastructure Trust (“Trust”). 

 

The members of the Board of Directors are expected to possess the required expertise, skill and 

experience to effectively manage and direct the objectives of the Trust to attain its organizational & 

business goals. They are expected to be persons with vision, leadership qualities, proven competence and 

integrity, and with a strategic bent of mind. 

 

Each member of the Board of Directors is expected to ensure that his/ her personal interest does not run in 

conflict with the company’s interests. Moreover, each member is expected to use his/ her professional 

judgment to maintain both the substance and appearance of professionalism and objectivity. 

 

Remuneration Policy 

 

The Company doesn’t have any employee on its roll.  

 

Remuneration to Director/s, Key Managerial Personnel and Senior Management 

 

The Remuneration/ Compensation/ Commission etc. to be paid to Director/s and Key Managerial 

Personnel, if any, shall be governed as per provisions of the Companies Act, 2013 and rules made there 

under or any other enactment for the time being in force. The remuneration including incentives to Senior 

Management shall be in accordance with the Company’s policy. A performance appraisal be carried out 

annually and promotions or incentives or increment will be based on performance and the Company’s 

Policy. 

 

Remuneration to Non- Executive / Independent Director 

 

The Non-Executive Independent Director may receive remuneration / compensation / commission as per 

the provisions of the Companies Act, 2013 & Rules made thereunder. The amount of sitting fees for 

attending Board and Committee meetings shall be fixed by Board of Directors, from time to time, subject 

to ceiling/ limits as provided under the Companies Act, 2013 and rules made there under or any other 

enactment for the time being in force. 



 

Annexure B 

 

The Details of dates of meetings of the Board & Committees and Composition of Committees of the 

Board of Directors 

 

As on 31.03.2025, the Board of Directors consists of the following members: 

 

1. Ms. Shilpa Todankar   Non-executive Director  

2. Mr. Abhay Phatak   Non-executive Director 

3. Mrs. Ranjana Paranjape   Independent Director 

4. Mr. Chandrashekhar Kaptan  Independent Director 

 

As on 31.03.2025, the Audit Committee consists of the following members –  

 

1. Mrs. Ranjana Paranjape  - Chairperson 

2. Ms. Shilpa Todankar   -Member 

3. Mr. Chandrashekhar Kaptan  -Member 

 

As on 31.03.2025, the Nomination and Remuneration Committee consists of the following members –  

 

1. Mrs. Ranjana Paranjape  - Chairperson 

2. Ms. Shilpa Todankar   -Member 

3. Mr. Chandrashekhar Kaptan  -Member 

 

As on 31.03.2025, the Stakeholder Relationship Committee consists of the following members –  

 

1. Mrs. Ranjana Paranjape  - Chairperson 

2. Ms. Shilpa Todankar   -Member 

3. Mr. Abhay Phatak   -Member 

 

As on 31.03.2025, the Risk Management Committee consists of the following members –  

 

1. Mrs. Shilpa Todankar   - Chairperson 

2. Mr. Chandrashekhar Kaptan -Member 

3. Mr. Abhay Phatak   -Member 

  



 

Number of Board/ Committee Meetings attended by the Directors 

 

Name of Director Board 

Meetings 

Audit 

Committee 

Nomination 

and 

Remuneration 

Committee 

Stakeholder 

Relationship 

Committee 

Risk 

Management 

Committee 

Ms. Shilpa Todankar 9 8 3 1 2 

Mr. Chandrashekhar 

Kaptan  

9 8 3 N.A. 2 

Mr. Abhay Phatak 9 N.A. N.A. 1 2 

Mrs. Ranjana Paranjape 9 8 3 1 N.A. 

 

Date of Board Meetings held during the year 

 

Sr. No. Date of the Meeting Board  Audit 

Committee 

N&R 

Committee  

Stakeholder 

Relationship 

Committee 

Risk 

Management 

Committee 

1.  April 23, 2024 √ √ - - - 

2.  June 26, 2024 √ √ √ - - 

3.  July 26, 2024 √ √ - - - 

4.  August 20, 2024 √ - √ - - 

5.  September 12, 2024 √ √ - - - 

6.  October 18, 2024 - - - - √ 

7.  October 19, 2024 √ √ - - - 

8.  December 6, 2024 √ √ - - - 

9.  January 20, 2025 √ √ - √ - 

10.  February 12, 2025 √ √ √ - - 

11.  March 12, 2025 - - - - √ 

 

 

 

  



 

Annexure C 

 

Disclosure as per Sexual Harrassment of Women at Workplace (Prevention, Prohibition and 

Redressal) Act, 2013 

 

Pursuant to the requirements of Section 22 of Sexual Harassment of Women at Workplace (Prevention, 

Prohibition & Redressal) Act, 2013 read with Rules thereunder, the Company has not received any 

complaint of sexual harassment during the year under review. 

 

The company has complied with provisions relating to the constitution of Internal Complaints Committee 

as required under the Sexual Harassment of Women at Workplace (Prevention, Prohibition and Redressal) 

Act, 2013. 

  



 

Annexure D 

FORM NO. MR.3 

SECRETARIAL AUDIT REPORT 

For the Financial Year Ended March 31, 2025 

[Pursuant to section 204(1) of the Companies Act, 2013 and rule No. 9 of the Companies (Appointment 

and Remuneration of Managerial Personnel) Rules, 2014] 

 

To,  

The Members, 

Solapur Yedeshi Tollway Limited 

Off No-11th Floor/1101 Hiranandani Knowledge Park,  

Technology Street, Hill Side Avenue,  

Powai, Mumbai- 400076, Maharashtra. 

 

We have conducted the Secretarial Audit of the compliance of applicable statutory provisions and the 

adherence to good corporate practices by Solapur Yedeshi Tollway Limited (hereinafter called ‘the 

Company’). Secretarial Audit was conducted in a manner that provided us a reasonable basis for 

evaluating the corporate conducts/statutory compliances and expressing our opinion thereon. 

 

Auditor’s Responsibility: 

 

Our responsibility is to express an opinion on the compliance of the applicable laws and maintenance of 

records based on audit. We have conducted the audit in accordance with the applicable Auditing 

Standards issued by The Institute of Company Secretaries of India. The Auditing Standards requires that 

the Auditor shall comply with statutory and regulatory requirements and plan and perform the audit to 

obtain reasonable assurance about compliance with applicable laws and maintenance of records. 

 

Based on our verification of the Company’s  books, papers, minute books, forms and returns filed and 

other records maintained by the Company and also the information provided by the Company, its officers, 

agents and authorized representatives during the conduct of secretarial audit, we hereby report that in our 

opinion, the Company has, during the audit period covering from April 01, 2024 to March 31, 2025 

(hereinafter called the ‘Audit Period’) complied with the statutory provisions listed hereunder and also 

that the Company has proper Board processes and compliance mechanism in place to the extent and in the 

manner reporting made hereinafter: 

 

We have examined the books, papers, minute books, forms and returns filed and other records maintained 

by the Company for the financial year ended on March 31, 2025 according to the provision of: 



 

 

(i) The Companies Act, 2013 (‘the Act’) and the rules made there under; 

 

(ii) The Securities Contracts (Regulation) Act, 1956 (‘SCRA’) and the rules made there under; 

 

(iii) The Depositories Act, 1996 and the Regulations and Bye-laws framed there under;  

 

(iv) Foreign Exchange Management Act, 1999 and the rules and regulations made thereunder to the 

extent of Foreign Direct Investment, Overseas Direct Investment and External Commercial 

Borrowings; (Not Applicable to the Company during the Audit Period); 

 

(v) The following Regulations and Guidelines prescribed under the Securities and Exchange Board of 

India Act, 1992 (‘SEBI Act’): - 

 

a. The Securities and Exchange Board of India (Substantial Acquisition of Shares and 

Takeovers) Regulations, 2011; (Not Applicable to the Company during the Audit Period) 

 

b. The Securities and Exchange Board of India (Prohibition of Insider Trading) Regulations, 

2015;  

 

c. The Securities and Exchange Board of India (Issue of Capital and Disclosure Requirements) 

Regulations, 2018; (Not Applicable to the Company during the Audit Period) 

 

d. The Securities and Exchange Board of India (Share Based Employee Benefits and Sweat 

Equity) Regulations, 2021; (Not Applicable to the Company during the Audit Period) 

 

e. The Securities and Exchange Board of India (Issue and Listing of Non-Convertible 

Securities) Regulations, 2021; (Not Applicable to the Company during the Audit Period) 

 

f. The Securities and Exchange Board of India (Registrars to an Issue and Share Transfer 

Agents) Regulations, 1993 regarding the Companies Act and dealing with client; 

 

g. The Securities and Exchange Board of India (Delisting of Equity Shares) Regulations, 2021; 

(Not Applicable to the Company during the Audit Period) 

 

h. The Securities and Exchange Board of India (Buy-back of Securities) Regulations, 2018. 

(Not Applicable to the Company during the Audit Period) and 

 

i. The Securities and Exchange Board of India (Infrastructure Investment Trusts) Regulations, 

2014; to the extent applicable to the listed entity; 

 

 

We have also examined compliance with the applicable clauses of the following: 



 

 

1. Secretarial Standards issued by The Institute of Company Secretaries of India. 

 

2. The Securities and Exchange Board of India (Listing Obligations and Disclosure Requirements) 

Regulations, 2015 and amendments made thereunder. (‘Listing Regulations') Further, the 

Company being High Value Debt Listed Entity, it is complying with the provisions of 

Listing Regulations to the extent applicable. 

 

During the period under review the Company has complied with the provisions of the Act, Rules, 

Regulations, Guidelines and Standards etc. made there under except that the Chief Financial Officer and 

the Chief Executive officer appointed under section 203 (1) of the Act read with Companies (Appointment 

and remuneration of Managerial Personnel) Rules, 2014, also holds the position of Key Managerial 

Personnel in other project companies of IRB Infrastructure Trust (the Holding Entity). 

 

We further report that, having regard to the compliance system prevailing in the Company and on the 

examination of the relevant documents and records in pursuance thereof, on test-check basis, the 

Company has complied with the following law applicable specifically to the Company: 

 

• Indian Tolls Act, 1851 

• National Highway Act, 1956 and rules made thereunder 

 

We further report that 

 

The Board of Directors of the Company was duly constituted with proper balance of Non-Executive 

Directors and Independent Directors. There was no change in the composition of the Board of Directors 

during the audit period. 

 

Adequate notice is given to all directors to schedule the Board Meetings, agenda and detailed notes on 

agenda were sent at least seven days in advance (except the meetings which were convened at a shorter 

notice for which necessary approvals obtained as per applicable provisions) and a system exists for 

seeking and obtaining further information and clarifications on the agenda items before the meeting and 

for meaningful participation at the meeting. 

 

All decisions at Board Meetings and Committee Meetings were carried out unanimously as recorded in 

the minutes of the meetings of the Board of Directors or Committee of the Board, as the case may be. 

 

We further report that there are systems and processes in the Company to monitor and ensure 

compliance with applicable laws, rules, regulations, and guidelines. The Adequacy and efficacy of the 

same shall be read in the context of remarks made in this report. 

 

 

 

 

 



 

We Further report that during the audit period the Company has taken approval of shareholder for 

Material Related Party Transaction. 

 

For MMJB & Associates LLP 

Company Secretaries 

ICSI UIN: L2020MH006700 

Peer Review Cert. No.: 2826/2022 

 

 

 

Deepti Joshi 

Designated Partner 

FCS: 8167  

CP: 8968                                                                                                    Date: June 24, 2025 

UDIN: F008167G000654131                                                                   Place: Mumbai  

 

This report is to be read with our letter of even date which is annexed as Annexure A and forms an 

integral part of this report. 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 



 

‘Annexure A’  

 

To, 

The Members, 

Solapur Yedeshi Tollway Limited 

Off No-11th Floor/1101 Hiranandani Knowledge Park,  

Technology Street, Hill Side Avenue,  

Powai, Mumbai- 400076, Maharashtra 

 

 Our report of even date is to be read along with this letter.  

 

1. Maintenance of secretarial record is the responsibility of the management of the company. Our 

responsibility is to express an opinion on these secretarial records based on our audit.  

 

2. We have followed the audit practices and processes as were appropriate to obtain reasonable 

assurance about the correctness of the contents of the Secretarial records. The verification was 

done on test basis to ensure that correct facts are reflected in secretarial records. We believe that 

the processes and practices, we followed provide a reasonable basis for our opinion.  

 

3. We have not verified the correctness and appropriateness of financial records and Books of 

Accounts of the company.  

 

4. Wherever required, we have obtained the Management representation about the compliance of 

laws, rules and regulations and happening of events etc.  

 

5. The compliance of the provisions of Corporate and other applicable laws, rules, regulations, 

standards is the responsibility of management. Our examination was limited to the verification of 

procedures on test basis.  

 

6. The Secretarial Audit report is neither an assurance as to the future viability of the company nor 

of the efficacy or effectiveness with which the management has conducted the affairs of the 

company.  

 

For MMJB & Associates LLP 

Company Secretaries 

ICSI UIN: L2020MH006700 

Peer Review Cert. No.: 2826/2022 

 

 

Deepti Joshi 

Designated Partner 

FCS: 8167  

CP: 8968                                                                                                    Date: June 24, 2025 

UDIN: F008167G000654131                                                                   Place: Mumbai  



 

 

Annexure E 

AOC-2 

 

Form for disclosure of particulars of contracts/arrangements entered into by the company with 

related parties referred to in sub-section (1) of section 188 of the Companies Act, 2013 including 

certain arms length transactions under third proviso thereto 

 

1. Details of contracts or arrangements or transactions not at arm’s length basis: Nil  

 

2. Details of material contracts or arrangement or transactions at arm’s length basis: Nil 

 

 



 

SOLAPUR YEDESHI TOLLWAY LIMITED 

CORPORATE GOVERNANCE REPORT – FY 2024-25 

[Pursuant to Securities and Exchange Board of India (Listing Obligations and Disclosure 

Requirements), Regulations, 2015] 

 

A. COMPANY’S PHILOSOPHY ON CODE OF CORPORATE GOVERNANCE 

 

Your Company’s philosophy on Corporate Governance is based on certain key principles, including fairness 

and integrity, transparency and disclosure, accountability, equal treatment to all the stakeholders and social 

responsibility. Your Company’s Corporate Governance practices extends beyond corporate laws. Its 

fundamental objective is the institution of and adherence to systems and procedures, ensuring the commitment 

of the Board of Directors in managing the Company’s affairs in a transparent manner to maximize the long-term 

value of the stakeholders at large. 

 

The Corporate Governance framework at your Company is driven by Core Governance Policies adopted by the 

Company to ensure timely and accurate disclosure on all material matters including the financial position, 

performance, ownership and governance of the Company. 

 

The Report on compliances with the Corporate Governance norms by the  company for FY 2024-25 are provided 

herein below: 

 

BOARD OF DIRECTORS 

   

(i) Board Membership Criteria 

 

The members of the Board of Directors accessed and observed that the Directors of your Company possess the 

required expertise, skill and experience to effectively manage and direct your Company to attain its 

organizational goals. They also have leadership qualities, proven competence and integrity and with a strategic 

bent of mind. 

 

Each member of the Board of Directors of your Company have ensured that his/ her personal interest does not 

run in conflict with your Company’s interests and used their professional judgment to maintain both the 

substance and appearance of independence and objectivity. 

 

(ii) Composition of the Board 

 

The Board of Directors of your Company has an optimum combination of Non-executive Directors and 

Independent Director to have a balanced Board Structure. The Board has 4 (Four) Directors comprising of Ms. 

Shilpa Todankar and Mr. Abhay Phatak as Non-executive Directors and other 2 (Two) Non-executive Directors 

viz. Mrs. Ranjana Paranjape and Mr. Chandrashekhar Kaptan who are Independent Directors of the Company. 

The Chairperson of the Board of Directors of your Company is a Non-Independent Director. In the opinion of 



 

the Board, all Independent Directors fulfill the conditions specified in the Securities and Exchange Board of 

India (Listing Obligations and Disclosure Requirements) Regulations, 2015 and are independent of the 

management. 

 

The composition of the Board of Directors of your Company as on March 31, 2025 is as follows: 

 

Name of 

Director  

Category of 

Director  

Relationship 

with other 

Directors  

No. of 

Directors

hips in 

other 

companie

s 

including 

this listed 

entity*  

Number of 

membershi

ps in 

Audit/ 

Stakeholde

r 

Committee

(s) 

including 

this listed 

entity 

(Refer 

Regulation 

26(1) of 

Listing 

Regulation

s)** 

No of 

post of 

Chairper

son in 

Audit/ 

Stakehold

er 

Committe

e held in 

listed 

entities 

including 

this listed 

entity 

(Refer 

Regulatio

n 26(1) of 

Listing  

Regulatio

ns)** 

Directorships 

held in other 

listed entities# 

Ms. Shilpa 

Chandrashekhar

Todankar 

DIN: 08683910 

Non-Executive 

Director  

 

None 12 10 None 1 

Mr. Abhay 

Prabhakar 

Phatak 

DIN: 09519500 

Non-Executive 

Director  

 

None 9 3 None 1 

Mrs. Ranjana 

Vinay Paranjape 

DIN: 06646483 

Non-Executive 

- Independent  

Director 

None 4 5 4 None 



 

Mr. 

Chandrashekhar 

Shankarrao 

Kaptan 

DIN: 01643564 

Non-Executive 

- Independent  

Director 

None  10 10 1 1 

*Number of Directorship in other Companies excludes directorship in Section 8 Companies & Foreign Companies, if any. 

# While calculating directorships in listed entities, directorships in equity listed companies and High Value Debt Listed 

Entities have been considered in accordance with the explanation provided under Regulation 17A of SEBI Listing 

Regulations. 

 

Clarificatory Note: Prior to Amendment notification to SEBI (Listing Obligations and Disclosure Requirements) 

Regulations (“SEBI LODR”) dated March 27, 2025, the Company was categorized as a High-Value Debt Listed Entity 

(HVDLE). Accordingly, Regulations 15 to 27 of the SEBI LODR were applicable to the Company on a "comply or explain" 

basis until March 31, 2025. SEBI vide its Notification dated March 27, 2025 amended the definition of HVDLE and 

introduced Chapter VA, prescribing Corporate Governance norms for HVDLE (entities with an outstanding principal 

amount of ₹1,000 crore or more as on March 31, 2025), effective from April 1, 2025. As on March 31, 2025, the principal 

outstanding of the Company’s listed debt securities is less than ₹1,000 Crore. Hence, with effect from April 1, 2025, the 

Company is no longer HVDLE and consequently the Corporate Governance Norms prescribed under Chapter VA are not 

applicable to the Company from Q1FY26 onwards. 

 

(iii) Board Meetings / Annual General Meeting  

 

For the financial year ended March 31, 2025, the Board of Directors of your Company met 9 (Nine) times on 

April 23, 2024, June 26, 2024, July 26, 2024, August 20, 2024, September 12, 2024, October 19, 2024, 

December 6, 2024, January 20, 2025 and February 12, 2025. 

 

Further, circular resolutions were passed by the Board of Directors during the Financial Year 2024-25 on April 

18, 2024 and August 16, 2024. 

 

The Annual General Meeting of the Financial Year ended on March 31, 2024 was held on July 24, 2024. 

 

Details regarding the attendance of the Directors at the Board Meetings and the Annual General Meeting held 

during the period ended March 31, 2025, are provided in the following table: 

 

Director  No. of Board Meetings 

Attended 

Whether AGM Attended 

(Yes/No) 

Ms. Shilpa Chandrashekhar Todankar 9 Yes 

Mr. Abhay Prabhakar Phatak 9 Yes 

Mrs. Ranjana Vinay Paranjape 9 Yes 

Mr. Chandrashekhar Shankarrao 

Kaptan 

9 No 



 

(iv) A chart or a matrix setting out the skills/expertise/competence of the Board of Directors  

 

Accordance with the company’s Corporate Governance philosophy, the Board has laid down criteria which 

guides selection of board member. The members of the Board of Directors of your Company are expected to 

possess the required expertise, skill and experience in the relevant sector to effectively manage and direct your 

Company to attain its organizational goals. 

 

The following is the list of core skills / competencies identified by the Board of Directors as required in the 

context of the Company’s business and that the said skills are available within the Board Members. 

 

Name of the 

Director 

Business 

Leadership 

Financial 

Expertise 

Knowledge of 

Company’s 

Business 

Corporate 

Governance and 

Risk Management 

Ms. Shilpa 

Todankar 

√ √ √ √ 

Mr. Abhay 

Phatak 

√ √ √ √ 

Mrs. Ranjana 

Paranjape 

√ √ √ √ 

Mr. 

Chandrashekhar 

Kaptan 

√ √ √ √ 

 

(v) Membership Term 

 

At every Annual General Meeting, one-third of the Directors excluding Independent Directors, for the time 

being are liable to retire by rotation or, if their number is not three or a multiple of three, then the number nearest 

to one-third, shall retire from office. The Directors to retire by rotation at every Annual General Meeting shall 

be those who have been longest in office since their last appointment. However, as between persons who became 

Director on the same day and those who are to retire shall (unless they otherwise agree among themselves) be 

determined by lot. A retiring Director shall be eligible for re-appointment. 

  

(vi) Code of Conduct 

 

Your Company’s Board of Directors has prescribed a Code of Conduct for all Board Members and the 

Company’s Senior Management. The Code of Conduct is available on your Company’s website 

https://www.irbinfratrust.co.in/home/index.php/solapur-yedeshi-tollway-limited/ 

 

All the Board Members and the Senior Management Personnel of your Company have affirmed their compliance 

with the Code of Conduct for the year ended March 31, 2025. A declaration to this effect as signed by the Chief 

Executive Officer(s) is given below: 

https://www.irbinfratrust.co.in/home/index.php/solapur-yedeshi-tollway-limited/


 

 

This is to certify that, in line with the requirement of Regulation 26(3) of the SEBI (Listing Obligations and 

Disclosure Requirements) Regulation, 2015, all the Directors of the Board and Senior Management Personnel 

have solemnly affirmed that to the best of their knowledge and belief, they have complied with the provisions 

of the Code of Conduct during the financial year 2024-25. 

 

Sd/-                                                            

Jai Prakash Nandi 

Chief Executive Officer                                                         

 

(vii) Meeting of Independent Directors: 

 

The separate meeting of Independent Directors of the Company as per the requirements of Schedule IV of the 

Companies Act, 2013 and Regulation 25(3) of the SEBI (Listing Obligations and Disclosure Requirements) 

Regulations, 2015, was held on January 20, 2025, without the attendance of Non-Independent Directors and the 

members of the management. All the Independent Directors were present at the meeting. 

 

(viii) Performance Evaluation of Directors: 

 

The Nomination and Remuneration Committee lays down the criteria for performance evaluation of 

Independent Directors and other Directors, Board of Directors and Committees of the Board of Directors 

pursuant to the provisions of the Companies Act, 2013 and Regulation 19 of the SEBI (Listing Obligations and 

Disclosure Requirements) Regulations, 2015. The evaluation framework for assessing the performance of 

Directors comprises of the following key areas: 

 

i. Attendance at Board & Committee Meetings. 

ii. Quality of contributions in deliberations. 

iii. Strategic perspectives or inputs regarding future growth of Company and its performance. 

iv. Providing perspectives and feedback going beyond information provided by the management. 

v. Commitment to Stakeholders interests. 

 

The evaluation involves Self- Evaluation by the Board Member and subsequently assessment by the Board of 

Directors. A member of the Board does not participate in the discussion of his / her evaluation. 

 

B. Familiarisation Program for Independent Directors: 

 

In case of appointment of new independent directors, the management provides the Familiarisation Programmes 

as per the requirement of the SEBI (Listing Obligations and Disclosure Requirements) Regulations, 2015. The 

main objective of the Programme is to familiarize the Independent Directors with the Company, their roles, 

rights, responsibilities in the Company, nature of the industry in which the Company operates, business model 



 

of the company, etc., through various programmes. During the year under review, no new independent Directors 

were appointed.  

 

C. BOARD COMMITTEES  

 

In compliance with both the mandatory and non-mandatory requirements under the SEBI (Listing Obligations 

and Disclosure Requirements) Regulations, 2015 and the applicable laws, your Company’s Board of Directors 

constituted the following Committees:  

 

i) Audit Committee;  

ii) Nomination and Remuneration Committee;  

iii) Stakeholders' Relationship Committee;  

iv) Risk Management Committee; 

 

The Chairman of the Board, in consultation with the Company Secretary and the respective Chairman of these 

Committees, determines the frequency of the meetings of these Committees. The recommendations of the 

Committees are submitted to the Board for approval. 

 

The Board of Directors has also adopted the following policies in line with the requirement of the SEBI (Listing 

Obligations and Disclosure Requirements) Regulations, 2015 and the Companies Act, 2013 for the effective 

and defined functioning of the respective Committees of the Board: 

 

a. Whistle Blower Policy; 

b. Nomination and Remuneration Policy; 

c. Code for Corporate Disclosure; 

d. Code of Internal Procedures and Conduct for Regulating, Monitoring and Reporting of Trading by 

Designated Persons; 

e. Policy on Related Party Transactions; 

f. Code of Conduct: 

g. Criteria for appointment of Directors 

h. Succession Policy 

i. Record Retention Policy 

j. Risk Management Policy 

 

Relevant policies as per Regulations 62 of the SEBI (Listing Obligations and Disclosure Requirements) 

Regulations, 2015 are available on the website of the Company 

https://www.irbinfratrust.co.in/home/index.php/solapur-yedeshi-tollway-limited/ 

 

(i)  Audit Committee  

 

https://www.irbinfratrust.co.in/home/index.php/solapur-yedeshi-tollway-limited/


 

The Audit Committee of the Board of Directors of your Company as on March 31, 2025 consists of the following 

Members:  

 

1) Mrs. Ranjana Paranjape  - Chairperson 

2) Mr. Chandrashekhar Kaptan - Member 

3) Ms. Shilpa Todankar   - Member 

 

The Company Secretary acts as the Secretary of the Audit Committee. 

 

The composition, role, terms of reference as well as powers of the Audit Committee are in accordance with the 

Regulation 18 of the SEBI (Listing Obligations and Disclosure Requirements) Regulations, 2015 and Section 

177 of the Companies Act, 2013.  

 

The brief terms of reference of the Audit Committee are as follows:  

 

1. Oversight of the company’s financial reporting process and the disclosure of its financial information to 

ensure that the financial statement is correct, sufficient and credible;  

 

2. Recommendation for appointment, remuneration and terms of appointment of auditors of the company;  

 

3. Approval of payment to statutory auditors for any other services rendered by the statutory auditors;  

 

4. Reviewing, with the management, the annual financial statements and auditor's report thereon before 

submission to the board for approval, with particular reference to:  

 

a. Matters required to be included in the Director’s Responsibility Statement to be included in the Board’s 

report in terms of clause (c) of sub-section 3 of section 134 of the Companies Act, 2013  

 

b. Changes, if any, in accounting policies and practices and reasons for the same  

 

c. Major accounting entries involving estimates based on the exercise of judgment by management  

 

d. Significant adjustments made in the financial statements arising out of audit findings  

 

e. Compliance with listing and other legal requirements relating to financial statements  

 

f. Disclosure of any related party transactions  

 

g. Modified opinion(s) in the draft audit report  

 



 

5. Reviewing, with the management, the quarterly financial statements before submission to the board for 

approval;  

 

6. Reviewing, with the management, the statement of uses / application of funds raised through an issue 

(public issue, rights issue, preferential issue, etc.), the statement of funds utilized for purposes other than 

those stated in the offer document / prospectus / notice and the report submitted by the monitoring agency 

monitoring the utilisation of proceeds of a public issue or rights issue or preferential issue or qualified 

institutions placement, and making appropriate recommendations to the Board to take up steps in this 

matter;  

 

7. Review and monitor the auditor’s independence and performance, and effectiveness of audit process;  

 

8. Approval or any subsequent modification of transactions of the company with related parties;  

 

9. Scrutiny of inter-corporate loans and investments;  

 

10. Valuation of undertakings or assets of the company, wherever it is necessary;  

 

11. Evaluation of internal financial controls and risk management systems;  

 

12. Reviewing, with the management, performance of statutory and internal auditors, adequacy of the internal 

control systems;  

 

13. Reviewing the adequacy of internal audit function, if any, including the structure of the internal audit 

department, staffing and seniority of the official heading the department, reporting structure coverage and 

frequency of internal audit;  

 

14. Discussion with internal auditors of any significant findings and follow up there on;  

 

15. Reviewing the findings of any internal investigations by the internal auditors into matters where there is 

suspected fraud or irregularity or a failure of internal control systems of a material nature and reporting the 

matter to the board;  

 

16. Discussion with statutory auditors before the audit commences, about the nature and scope of audit as well 

as post-audit discussion to ascertain any area of concern;  

 

17. To look into the reasons for substantial defaults in the payment to the depositors, debenture holders, 

shareholders (in case of non-payment of declared dividends) and creditors;  

 

18. To review the functioning of the Whistle Blower mechanism;  

 



 

19. Approval of appointment of CFO (i.e., the whole-time Finance Director or any other person heading the 

finance function or discharging that function) after assessing the qualifications, experience and 

background, etc. of the candidate;  

 

20. Carrying out any other function as is mentioned in the terms of reference of the Audit Committee.  

 

21. To review the utilization of loans and/ or advances from/investment by the holding company in the 

subsidiary exceeding rupees 100 crores or 10% of the asset size of the subsidiary, whichever is lower 

including existing loans / advances / investments; 

 

22. Consider and comment on rationale, cost-benefits and impact of schemes involving merger, demerger, 

amalgamation etc., on the listed entity and its shareholders.  

 

The Company’s Audit Committee met 8 (Eight) times for the financial year ended March 31, 2025 viz. April 

23, 2024, June 26, 2024, July 26, 2024, September 12, 2024, October 19, 2024, December 6, 2024, January 20, 

2025 and February 12, 2025. 

 

The following table presents the details of attendance at the Audit Committee meetings held during the period 

ended March 31, 2025: 

 

Members  No. of Meetings Attended 

Mrs. Ranjana Paranjape 8 

Mr. Chandrashekhar Kaptan 8 

Ms. Shilpa Todankar 8 

 

(ii) Nomination and Remuneration Committee 

 

The Composition of the Nomination and Remuneration Committee (“NRC”) as on March 31, 2025 consists of 

the following members viz.: 

 

1) Mrs. Ranjana Paranjape -Chairperson  

2) Mr. Chandrashekhar Kaptan -Member 

3) Ms. Shilpa Todankar  - Member 

 

The Company Secretary acts as the Secretary of the Committee. 

 

The Nomination and Remuneration Committee met 3 (Three) time during the financial year ended March 31, 

2025 on June 26, 2024, August 20, 2024 and February 12, 2025. 

 

The following table presents the details of attendance at the Nomination and Remuneration Committee meetings 

for the period ended March 31, 2025: 



 

 

Members No. of Meetings Attended 

Mrs. Ranjana Paranjape 3 

Mr. Chandrashekhar Kaptan 3 

Ms. Shilpa Todankar 3 

  

The brief terms of reference of the Nomination and Remuneration Committee are as follows:  

 

1. Formulation of the criteria for determining qualifications, positive attributes and independence of a director 

and recommend to the board of directors a policy relating to, the remuneration of the directors, key 

managerial personnel and other employees;  

 

2.    For every appointment of an independent director, evaluate the balance of skills, knowledge and experience 

on the Board and on the basis of such evaluation, prepare a description of the role and capabilities required 

of an independent director. The person recommended to the Board for appointment as an independent 

director shall have the capabilities identified in such description. For the purpose of identifying suitable 

candidates, the Committee may:  

a. use the services of an external agencies, if required;  

b. consider candidates from a wide range of backgrounds, having due regard to diversity; and  

c. consider the time commitments of the candidates. 

3.   Formulation of criteria for evaluation of performance of independent directors and the board of directors;  

4.   Devising a policy on diversity of board of directors;  

5.  Identifying persons who are qualified to become directors and who may be appointed in senior management 

in accordance with the criteria laid down, and recommend to the board of directors their appointment and 

removal.  

6. Review whether to extend or continue the term of appointment of the independent director, on the basis of 

the report of performance evaluation of independent directors.  

7. Recommend to the board, all remuneration, in whatever form, payable to senior management. 

 

Remuneration Policy 

 

The Board had adopted Nomination and Remuneration Policy which sets out the guidelines regarding the 

nomination, remuneration and removal of directors, key managerial personnel and employees of the Company. 

The Nomination & Remuneration Policy is annexed to Board’s Report. 

 

Remuneration paid to Non-executive Directors: 



 

 

The Non-executive Independent Directors of your Company are paid remuneration by way of sitting fees. Your 

Company has paid sitting fees of Rs. 5,000/- per meeting to the Non-executive & Independent Directors for 

attending the meetings of the Committees and Board. 

 

Details of Remuneration for the period ended March 31, 2025 

 

Name of the Non-Executive Director  Sitting Fees (Amounts in Rupees)  

Mr. Chandrashekhar S. Kaptan Rs.1,29,800/- 

Mrs. Ranjana Vinay Paranjape  Rs.1,23,900//- 

Ms. Shilpa Chandrashekhar Todankar Rs.1,35,700/- 

Mr. Abhay Prabhakar Phatak   Rs.70,800/- 

 

As per the disclosures received from the Directors, none of the Company’s Non-Executive Directors hold any 

Equity Shares of the Company. Further, there are no pecuniary relationships or transactions of the Directors 

with the Company, except those disclosed in the Annual Report. 

 

None of the Directors are entitled to any benefit upon termination of their association with your Company. 

Further, the Company doesn’t have any Employee Stock Option scheme.  

 

(iii) Stakeholders' Relationship Committee  

 

The Composition of the Stakeholders' Relationship Committee as on March 31, 2025 consists of the following 

members viz.:  

  

1. Mrs. Ranjana Paranjape  -Chairperson 

2. Mr. Abhay Phatak  - Member 

3. Ms. Shilpa Todankar  - Member 

 

The Company Secretary acts as Secretary to the Board Committees. During the year under review, Ms. Rishika 

ceased to be Company Secretary and Compliance officer w.e.f. May 22, 2024. Consequent upon her resignation 

from the employment the Board had appointed Ms. Heta Solanki as Company Secretary and Compliance officer 

of the Company w.e.f. August 20, 2024. Ms. Heta Solanki ceased to be Company Secretary and Compliance 

officer w.e.f. May 30, 2025.  

 

The Stakeholders' Relationship Committee met 1 (one) time for the financial year ended March 31, 2025 on 

January 20, 2025. 

 

The following table presents the details of attendance at the Stakeholders Relationship Committee meetings for 

the financial year ended March 31, 2025: 

 



 

Members No. of Meetings Attended 

Mrs. Ranjana Paranjape 1 

Mr. Abhay Phatak 1 

Ms. Shilpa Todankar 1 

 

Further, no complaints from security holders were outstanding at the beginning of the year or received during 

the year under review, hence, there was no complaint to be disposed of during the said period or remaining 

unresolved at the end of the year under review.  

 

The brief terms of reference of the Stakeholders’ Relationship Committee are as follows:  

 

(1) Resolving the grievances of the security holders of the Company including complaints related to 

transfer/transmission of shares/ securities, non-receipt of annual report, non-receipt of declared dividends, Non-

receipt of interest on debentures, issue of new/duplicate certificates, general meetings etc.  

(2) Review of measures taken for effective exercise of voting rights by shareholders/security holders.  

(3) Review of adherence to the service standards adopted by the Company in respect of various services being 

rendered by the Registrar & Share Transfer Agent.  

(4) Review of the various measures and initiatives taken by the Company for reducing the quantum of unclaimed 

dividends/ non-receipt of interest and ensuring timely receipt of interest/ dividend warrants/annual 

reports/statutory notices by the shareholders/ security holders of the company. 

SEBI Complaints Redress System (SCORES) 

 

The investor complaints are processed in a centralised web-based complaints redress system. Your Company 

has been registered on SCORES and makes every effort to resolve all investor complaints received through 

SCORES or otherwise within the statutory time limit from the receipt of the complaint. 

 

During the year under review the company has not received any investor complaint. 

 

ONLINE DISPUTE RESOLUTION (ODR) PORTAL 

 

SEBI vide circular no. SEBI/HO/OIAE/OIAE_IAD-1/P/CIR/2023/131 dated July 31, 2023 (Updated on 

December 28, 2023) has issued guidelines for common Online Dispute Resolution portal (“ODR Portal”) for 

resolving grievances/disputes arising between investors/clients and listed companies or specified intermediaries/ 

regulated entities in the security market. In case the grievance is not redressed satisfactorily by the entity/RTA, 

the investor may escalate the same through SEBI SCORES portal. After exhausting the above options, if the 

investor is not satisfied with the outcome, he/she/they can initiate dispute resolution through the ODR portal. 

The Company is registered on the ODR portal.  

 



 

The link to access SMART ODR Portal and ODR related provisions are: 

 

SMART ODR Portal- https://smartodr.in/login 

ODR related provisions- https://www.irbinfratrust.co.in/home/index.php/solapur-yedeshi-tollway-limited/      

 

There were no complaints received on ODR Platform during the financial year ended March 31, 2025. 

 

(iv) Risk Management Committee: 

 

The composition of the Risk Management Committee as on March 31, 2025 consists of the following members 

viz.: 

 

1. Ms. Shilpa Todankar    -Chairman 

2. Mr. Abhay Prabhakar Phatak  -Member 

3. Mr. Chandrashekhar Shankarrao Kaptan  - Member 

 

The Risk Management Committee meeting was held on October 18, 2024 and March 12, 2025 during the 

financial year ended March 31, 2025.  

 

The following table presents the details of attendance at the Risk Management Committee meetings held for 

period ended March 31, 2025. 

 

Members No. of Meetings Attended 

Ms. Shilpa Todankar 2 

Mr. Chandrashekhar Kaptan 2 

Mr. Abhay Phatak 2 

 

The brief terms of reference of Risk Management Committee are as follows: 

 

1. To formulate a detailed risk management policy which shall include: 

 

a) A framework for identification of internal and external risks specifically faced by the Company, in 

particular including financial, operational, sectoral, sustainability (particularly, ESG related risks), 

information, cyber security risks or any other risk as may be determined by the Committee.  

b) Measures for risk mitigation including systems and processes for internal control of identified risks.  

c) Business continuity plan. 

 

2. To ensure that appropriate methodology, processes and systems are in place to monitor and evaluate risks 

associated with the business of the Company; 

 

https://smartodr.in/login
https://www.irbinfratrust.co.in/home/index.php/solapur-yedeshi-tollway-limited/


 

3. To monitor and oversee implementation of the risk management policy, including evaluating the adequacy 

of risk management systems; 

 

4. To periodically review the risk management policy, at least once in two years, including by considering the 

changing industry dynamics and evolving complexity; 

 

5. To keep the board of directors informed about the nature and content of its discussions, recommendations 

and actions to be taken; 

 

6. The appointment, removal and terms of remuneration of the Chief Risk Officer (if any) shall be subject to 

review by the Risk Management Committee. 

 

SENIOR MANAGEMENT 

 

As on March 31, 2025, the Senior Management of the Company comprises of the following- 

Mr. Devendra Ranka- Chief Financial Officer 

Mr. Jaiprakash Nandi- Chief Executive Officer 

Ms. Heta Solanki - Company Secretary (Ceased w.e.f. May 30, 2025) 

D. GENERAL BODY MEETING  

 

Annual General Meeting 

 

Details of your Company’s last three Annual General Meetings are presented in the following table: 

Nature of Meeting  Date & Time  Venue  Details of Special Resolutions 

passed  

Eleventh Annual 

General Meeting 

July 24, 2024 at 

11.30 a.m. 

Off No-11th 

Floor/1101, 

Hiranandani 

Knowledge Park, 

Technology Street, 

Hill Side Avenue, 

Powai, Mumbai, 

400076 

None 

Tenth Annual 

General Meeting 

July 26, 2023 at 1.10 

p.m. 

Through Video 

Conferencing 

(“VC”)/Other Audio 

Visual Means 

(“OAVM”) 

None 



 

Ninth Annual 

General Meeting 

June 22, 2022 at 

11.00 a.m. 

 

Through Video 

Conferencing 

(“VC”)/Other Audio 

Visual Means 

(“OAVM”) 

None 

 

Extra Ordinary General Meeting 

During the financial year 2024-25, Extra Ordinary General Meetings of the Company were held on April 19, 

2024 and March 10, 2025 details of which are as follows: 

Nature of Meeting  Date & Time  Venue  

Extraordinary 

General Meeting 

April 19, 2024 at 11.00 a.m. Through Video Conferencing (“VC”)/Other 

Audio Visual Means (“OAVM”) 

Extraordinary 

General Meeting 

March 10, 2025 at 11.00 a.m. Through Video Conferencing (“VC”)/Other 

Audio Visual Means (“OAVM”) 

 

Postal Ballot  

 

During the financial year 2024-25, no resolution were passed by the Company through Postal Ballot and as on 

the date of this report no special resolution is proposed to be passed through Postal Ballot  

 

E. MEANS OF COMMUNICATION  

 

1) The website https://www.irbinfratrust.co.in/home/index.php/solapur-yedeshi-tollway-limited/ consists of 

Disclosure/ filing w.r.t. to Company, which provides comprehensive information to the investors. 

 

2) Quarterly and Annual Financial results have been published in leading English viz. The Free Press Journal 

etc. The said results are also made available on the Company’s website 

https://www.irbinfratrust.co.in/home/index.php/solapur-yedeshi-tollway-limited/  

 

3) The Company’s Annual Report is e-mailed to the Members of the Company and other stakeholders’ entitled 

thereto. whose email addresses are available with the depositories as per section 136 of the Companies Act, 

https://www.irbinfratrust.co.in/home/index.php/solapur-yedeshi-tollway-limited/
https://www.irbinfratrust.co.in/home/index.php/solapur-yedeshi-tollway-limited/


 

2013 and Regulation 53 of SEBI (LODR) Regulations, 2015 and will also be made available on the Company’s 

website https://www.irbinfratrust.co.in/home/index.php/solapur-yedeshi-tollway-limited/  

 

4) presentations made to institutional investors or to the analysts: Nil 

 

 

F. GENERAL SHAREHOLDERS’ INFORMATION  

1. Annual General Meeting                    

Date, Time and Venue  July 22, 2025, 11.20 AM at the registered office of the 

Company at Off No-11th Floor/1101, Hiranandani 

Knowledge Park, Technology Street, Hill Side Avenue, 

Powai, Mumbai, 400076 

2. Financial Year  Financial Year is April 01 to March 31 of the following 

year  

Quarterly results will be declared as per the following tentative schedule:  

Financial reporting for the quarter ending 

June 30, 2025 

Financial reporing for the half year ending 

September 30, 2025 

Financial reporting for the quarter ending 

December 31, 2025 

Financial reporting for the year ending March 

31, 2026 

First fortnight of August, 2025 

 

First fortnight of November, 2025 

 

First fortnight of February, 2025 

 

sixty days of closure of Financial Year 

3. Dates of Book Closure  Not Applicable 

4. Record date for Dividend declared  - 

5. Interim/Final Dividend  - 

6. Interim/Final Dividend Payment Date  Not Applicable 

7. Listing on Stock Exchanges & Payment of 

Listing Fees  

Your Company’s Debt securities are listed on:  

BSE Limited  

Phiroze Jeejeebhoy Towers Dalal Street, Mumbai- 400001 

Your Company has paid the annual listing fee to the 

exchange. 

8. Stock Code   (i) Scrip Code: 974215 / ISIN: INE441Q07011 

 (ii) Scrip Code: 974289 / ISIN: INE441Q07029 

9. Registrars and Transfer Agents  KFin Technologies Ltd. (Formerly known as KFin 

Technologies Private Ltd.) 

  

Karvy Selenium Tower B, Plot 31-32, Gachibowli 

Financial District, Nanakramguda, Hyderabad – 500 032.  

Tel.: 040 6716 1500; Fax: 040 67161500  

https://www.irbinfratrust.co.in/home/index.php/solapur-yedeshi-tollway-limited/


 

E-mail: einward.ris@kfintech.com 

10. Share Transfer System  Equity Shares of the Company are not listed on any Stock 

Exchange. Further, NCDs issued by the Company are in 

Demat form and hence, no physical debenture certificates 

were required to be delivered during the year under review. 

The Company obtains an annual certificate from Practicing 

Company Secretaries as per the requirement of regulation 

61(4) read with regulation 40(9) of the SEBI Listing 

Regulations and the same is filed with BSE Limited and is 

also available on the website of the Company i.e 

https://www.irbinfratrust.co.in/home/index.php/solapur-

yedeshi-tollway-limited/  

11. Address for Correspondence  Solapur Yedeshi Tollway Limited 

Off No-11th Floor/1101 Hiranandani Knowledge Park, 

Technology Street, Hill Side Avenue, Powai, Mumbai – 

400076 

Tel No. 022 66404220 

Fax No.: 022 28573441 

Email: irbinfrastructuretrust@irb.co.in   

12. Dematerialisation of Shares and Liquidity  During the year under review and as on the date of this 

Report, all securities issued by the Company were held in  

Demat form. 

14. Investor Complaints to be addressed to  Registrars and Transfer Agents or Company Secretary and 

Compliance officer of the Company, at the addresses 

mentioned earlier.  

15. Outstanding GDRs/ ADRs/ Warrants or 

any Convertible Instruments, Conversion 

Date and likely impact on equity  

The Company has not issued any GDRs/ADRs/ Warrants or 

any Convertible Instruments.  

16. Plant Locations  The Company does not have any manufacturing plant.  

17. Details of Suspension of Securities from 

trading if any 

Not Applicable. 

18. performance in comparison to broad-

based indices such as BSE Sensex, CRISIL 

Index etc- 

Not Applicable  

19. Debenture Trustees (for privately placed  

debentures): 

SBICAP Trustee Company Limited 

Address : 202, Maker Tower, ‘E’, 

Cuffe Parade, Colaba, Mumbai – 400005 

Email: corporate@sbicaptrustee.com 

Website: www.sbicaptrustee.com 

Contact No. 022 4302 5555 

Fax – 022 22040465 

mailto:einward.ris@kfintech.com
https://www.irbinfratrust.co.in/home/index.php/solapur-yedeshi-tollway-limited/
https://www.irbinfratrust.co.in/home/index.php/solapur-yedeshi-tollway-limited/
mailto:irbinfrastructuretrust@irb.co.in


 

20. Credit Rating: 

 

 

The details of credit rating of the Company are mentioned 

in the Board’s report,  which forms part of this Annual 

Report.  

 

G. DISCLOSURES  

 

i) Related Party Transactions  

 

There have been no materially significant related party transactions, pecuniary transactions or relationships 

between your Company and the Directors, management, or relatives, except for those disclosed in the financial 

statements for the year ended March 31, 2025 and as reported in the Directors' Report in terms of requirement 

under Section 134 of the Companies Act, 2013. The Policy on related party transaction is available on your 

Company’s website https://www.irbinfratrust.co.in/home/index.php/solapur-yedeshi-tollway-limited/# 

 
ii) Details of Non-Compliance, penalties, strictures imposed on the listed entity by stock exchange(s) or 

the board or any statutory authority, on any matter related to capital markets, during the last three years 

 

Other than the below mentioned details there has been no other non-compliance of any legal requirements nor 

have there been any strictures imposed by any Stock Exchange or SEBI or any statutory authority on any matter 

related to Capital Markets during the last three years.  

 

a) During Financial year 2022-23, BSE had levied a fine of ₹1,08,560/- inclusive of taxes the Company 

has paid ₹ 9,440 inclusive of taxes and has given justification to BSE for not paying the balance amount. 

The Company has appointed qualified Company Secretary w.e.f 1st December, 2022. The Company had 

received response from BSE vide their email dated April 2, 2024 considering the justification given and 

waived the balance fine levied. 

 

b) During the Financial year 2022-23, BSE had levied a fine of ₹1,08,560/- inclusive of taxes. Since 

already having been complied, the Company has not paid any amount and has given justification to BSE 

for the same. The Company had received response from BSE vide their email dated June 27, 2023 

considering the justification given and withdrawal of fines levied.  

 

iii) Corporate Governance Report  

 

Your Company has complied with all the mandatory requirements of SEBI (Listing Obligations and Disclosure 

Requirements) Regulations, 2015 to the extent applicable.. 

 

Prior to Amendment notification to SEBI (Listing Obligations and Disclosure Requirements) Regulations 

(“SEBI LODR”) dated March 27, 2025, the Company was categorized as a High-Value Debt Listed Entity 

(HVDLE). Accordingly, Regulations 15 to 27 of the SEBI LODR were applicable to the Company on a "comply 

or explain" basis until March 31, 2025. SEBI vide its Notification dated March 27, 2025 amended the definition 

https://www.irbinfratrust.co.in/home/index.php/solapur-yedeshi-tollway-limited/


 

of HVDLE and introduced Chapter VA, prescribing Corporate Governance norms for HVDLE (entities with an 

outstanding principal amount of ₹1,000 crore or more as on March 31, 2025), effective from April 1, 2025. As 

on March 31, 2025, the principal outstanding of the Company’s listed debt securities is less than ₹1,000 Crore. 

Hence, with effect from April 1, 2025, the Company is no longer HVDLE and consequently the Corporate 

Governance Norms prescribed under Chapter VA are not applicable to the Company from Q1FY26 onwards. 

 

iv) Commodity price risk or Foreign exchange risk and Hedging activities  

Disclosure with respect to commodity price risks and commodity hedging activities are not applicable to the 

Company as the Company is engaged into Infrastructure development. 

 

v) Policy for determining ‘Material’ subsidiaries  

During the year under review and as on the date of this Report, the Company did not have any subsidiary. 

 

vi)  Details of Loans and advances in the nature of loans to firms/companies in which directors are 

interested  

During the year under review, the Company has neither advanced nor received any funds in the nature of loans 

to/from the firms/companies in which directors are interested. 

 

vii) Whistle Blower Policy / Vigil Mechanism  

 

Your Company has adopted a Vigil Mechanism (SPOC Policy) for directors, employees, vendors/ consultants 

to report genuine concerns and has widely circulated/ displayed for the information of the concern.   

 

We further confirm that no personnel have been denied access to the Audit Committee. 

 

viii) Compliance with Mandatory Requirements 

 

Your Company has complied with all applicable mandatory corporate governance requirements under the 

Listing Regulations. 

 

The Company has complied following Non-mandatory requirements as specified in Part E of Schedule 

II. 

 

A. Modified opinion(s) in audit report  

 

During the year under review, there is no audit qualification on the Company’s financial statements. The 

Company continues to adopt best practices to ensure regime of unmodified audit opinion. 

 

B. Reporting of internal auditor  



 

 

The Internal Auditors report to the Audit Committee of the Company.  

 

ix) Certificate on Corporate Governance 

 

The Practicing Company Secretary’s certificate, with respect to compliance with Regulation 17 to 27 of SEBI 

(Listing Obligations and Disclosure Requirements) Regulations, 2015 relating to Corporate Governance, has 

been annexed to the Boards Report and will be sent to the Stock Exchanges at the time of filing the Company’s 

Annual Report. 

 

x) Compliance Certificate 

 

As per Regulation 17(8) of the SEBI (Listing Obligations and Disclosure Requirements) Regulations, 2015, a 

Compliance Certificate from the Chief Executive Officer and the Chief Financial Officer, on the Financial 

Statements and other matters of the Company for the Financial Year ended March 31, 2025, was placed before 

the Board. 

 

xi) Risk Management 

 

The Company has constituted a Risk Management Committee, details of the same are provided in this report.  

xii) Disclosures in relation to the Sexual Harassment of Women at Workplace (Prevention, Prohibition 

and Redressal) Act, 2013: 

 

As disclosed in the Board’s Report of the Company, during the year under review, the Company has not 

received any complaint of sexual harassment. 

 

xiii) Fees paid to Statutory Auditors  

 

Total fees of Rs. 4,87,045/- for financial year 2024-25, for all services, was paid by the Company.  

 

xiv) Corporate Governance Requirements 

 

The Company has complied with Corporate Governance Requirements specified under Regulation 17 to 27 and 

required disclosures under Regulation 62 is also available on your Company’s website: 

https://www.irbinfratrust.co.in/home/index.php/solapur-yedeshi-tollway-limited/ 

 
 
xv) Details of non-acceptance of any recommendation of any committee of the board which is mandatorily 

required 

 

https://www.irbinfratrust.co.in/home/index.php/solapur-yedeshi-tollway-limited/


 

During the year under review, there were no such recommendations made by any Committee of the Board that 

were mandatorily required and not accepted by the Board. 

 
xvi) Details of material subsidiaries of the listed entity; including the date and place of incorporation and 

the name and date of appointment of the statutory auditors of such subsidiaries 

  

The Company does not have any subsidiaries. 

 

xvii) Disclosure of certain types of agreements binding Listed Entities under Clause 5A of Paragraph A 

of Part A of Schedule III of the SEBI Listing Regulations 

 

Not applicable during the period under review. 

 

xviii)  Details of utilization of funds raised through preferential allotment or qualified 

institutions placement as specified under Regulation 32 (7A).  

 
Not applicable during the period under review. 

 

xix) Disclosures with respect to demat suspense account/ unclaimed suspense account 

 

Not applicable during the period under review. 

 
xx) Certificate from Company Secretary in practice that none of the Directors on the Board of the Company 

have been debarred or disqualified from being appointed or continuing as directors of companies by the 

Board/Ministry of Corporate Affairs or any such statutory authority. 

 

As per provisions of Listing Regulations, M/s. KDA & Associates, Company Secretaries, has issued a certificate 

confirming that none of the Directors on the Board of the Company have been debarred or disqualified from 

being appointed or continuing as Directors of the Company by the Board/Ministry of Corporate Affairs or any 

such statutory authority. The Certificate is enclosed as Annexure A. 

  



 

 

xxi) DISTRIBUTION OF SHAREHOLDING AS ON MARCH 31, 2025 

 

100% shareholding of the Company is held by IRB Infrastructure Trust alongwith 6 Nominee shareholders.  

Sr. 

No.  

Name of the Shareholder 

 

No. of Shares % of Shareholding 

1.  IRB Infrastructure Trust* 98,249,994 99.99 

2.  

 

Mr. Mehulkumar Patel (Nominee of IRB  

Infrastructure Trust) 

1 Less Than 0.01 

3.  

 

Mr. Shailesh Joshi (Nominee of IRB  

Infrastructure Trust) 

1 Less Than 0.01 

4.  

 

Mr. Mahesh Kavthekar (Nominee of IRB  

Infrastructure Trust) 

1 Less Than 0.01 

5.  

 

Mr. Nikhil Maniar (Nominee of IRB  

Infrastructure Trust) 

1 Less Than 0.01 

6.  

 

Mrs. Arati Taskar (Nominee of IRB  

Infrastructure Trust) 

1 Less Than 0.01 

7.  

 

Mr. Amitabh Murarka (Nominee of IRB  

Infrastructure Trust) 

1 Less Than 0.01 

TOTAL  98,250,000 100.00 

*shares held by IDBI Trusteeship Services Limited as Registered Owner for and on behalf of IRB Infrastructure 

Trust, the Beneficial Owner. 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 



 

 

 

 

 

 

 

CORPORATE GOVERNANCE COMPLIANCE CERTIFICATE 
 
To, 
The Members, 
Solapur Yedeshi Tollway Limited 
Off No-11th Floor/1101 Hiranandani Knowledge Park,  
Technology Street, Hill Side Avenue,  
Powai, Mumbai- 400076  
 
We have examined the compliance of conditions of Corporate Governance by Solapur Yedeshi 

Tollway Limited (“the Company”) for the year ended on March 31, 2025, as stipulated in Regulations 
17 to 27 and Para C, D and E of Schedule V of SEBI (Listing Obligations and Disclosure Requirements) 
Regulations, 2015 (“Listing Regulations”) 
 
In our opinion and to the best of our information and according to the explanations given to us and 
representations made by the management, we certify that the Company, being a High Value Debt 
Listed Entity has complied with the conditions of Corporate Governance as stipulated in Regulations 
17 to 27 and Para C, D and E of Schedule V of Listing Regulations to the extent applicable. 
 
The compliance of conditions of Corporate Governance is the responsibility of the management. Our 
examination was limited to the procedures and implementation thereof, adopted by the Company for 
ensuring the compliance of the conditions of the Corporate Governance. It is neither an audit nor an 
expression of opinion on the financial statements of the Company.  
 
We further state that such compliance is neither an assurance as to the future viability of the Company 
nor of the efficiency or effectiveness with which the management has conducted the affairs of the 
Company. 
 



 

For MMJB & Associates LLP 
Company Secretaries 
ICSI UIN: L2020MH006700 
Peer Review Cert. No.: 2826/2022 
 
 
Deepti Joshi 
Designated Partner 
FCS: 8167  
CP No.:8968                                                                                             Date: June 24, 2025                                                                                                                                                                                                                    
UDIN: F008167G000654197                                                                  Place: Mumbai 

 

 

  



 

Annexure A 

 

CERTIFICATE OF NON-DISQUALIFICATION OF DIRECTORS 

(Pursuant to Schedule V Para C Clause (10)(i) of the SEBI (Listing Obligations and Disclosure 

Requirements) Regulations, 2015) 

To, 

The Members of 

SOLAPUR YEDESHI TOLLWAY LIMITED 

Off No-11th Floor/1101 Hiranandani Knowledge Park,  

Technology Street, Hill Side Avenue,  

Powai, Mumbai-400076 

 

We have examined the relevant registers, records, forms, returns and disclosures received from the 

Directors of Solapur Yedeshi Tollway Limited (hereinafter called “the Company”) having CIN: 

U45400MH2014PLC251983 and registered office at Off No-11th Floor/1101 Hiranandani Knowledge 

Park, Technology Street, Hill Side Avenue, Powai, Mumbai-400076, produced before us by the 

Company for the purpose of issuing this Certificate, in accordance with Schedule V Para-C Sub 

clause 10(i) of the Securities Exchange Board of India (Listing Obligations and Disclosure 

Requirements) Regulations, 2015. 

 

In our opinion and to the best of our information and according to the verifications (including 

Directors Identification Number (DIN) status at the portal www.mca.gov.in) as considered 

necessary and explanations furnished to us by the Company & its officers, we hereby certify that 

none of the Directors on the Board of the Company as stated below for the Financial Year ending 

on 31st March, 2025 have been debarred or disqualified from being appointed or continuing as 

Directors of companies by the Securities and Exchange Board of India, Ministry of Corporate 

Affairs or any such other Statutory Authorities.  

 

Sr. 
No. 

Name of Director DIN Date of 
appointment in 

Company 

1 Chandrashekhar Shankarrao 
Kaptan 

01643564 26/02/2020 

2 Ranjana Vinay Paranjape 06646483 06/10/2021 

3 Shilpa Chandrashekhar Todankar 08683910 26/02/2020 

4 Abhay Prabhakar Phatak 09519500 09/03/2022 

 



 

Ensuring the eligibility for the appointment/continuity of every Director on the Board is the 

responsibility of the management of the Company. Our responsibility is to express an opinion on 

these based on our verification. This certificate is neither an assurance as to the future viability of 

the Company nor of the efficiency or effectiveness with which the management has conducted the 

affairs of the Company. 

 

For KDA & ASSOCIATES 

Practicing Company Secretaries 

 

 

SD/- 

____________________ 

Kaushal Dalal 

                        Partner 

        Membership No.: FCS 7141 

COP No.: 7512 

Peer Review No: 6748/2025 

           UDIN: F007141G000641368 

Date: 21st June, 2025 

Place: Mumbai 
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INDEPENDENT AUDITOR'S REPORT 

gok.hale & sath • 
(re •d. 

To the Members of SOLAPUR YEDESHI TOLLWAY LIMITED 

REPORT ON THE AUDIT OF THE IND AS FINANOAL STATEMENTS 

OPINION 

We have audited the accompanying Ind AS financial statements of SOLAPUR YEDESHI 

TOLLWAY LIMITED ("the Company"), which comprise the Balance Sheet as at March 31, 2025, 

and the Statement of Profit and Loss (including Other Comprehensive Income), Statement of 

Changes in Equity and Statement of Cash Flow for the year ended on that date, and Notes to the 
Financial Statements, including a Summary of Material Accounting Policies and Other 
Explanatory Information (hereinafter referred to as "the Ind AS Financial Statements"). 

In our opinion and to the best of our information and according to the explanations given to us, 
the aforesaid Ind AS financial statements give the information required by the Companies Act, 
2013 (the" Act") in the manner so required and give a true and fair view in conformity with the 
Indian Accounting Standards prescribed under section 133 of the Act read with the Companies 
(Indian Accounting Standards) Rules, 2015 ("Ind AS"), as amended, and other accounting 
principles generally accepted in India, of the state of affairs of the Company as at March 31, 2025, 
and loss including other comprehensive income, changes in equity and its cash flows for the year 
ended on that date. 

BASIS FOR OPINION 

We conducted our audit of the Ind AS Financial Statements in accordance with the Standards on 
Auditing (SAs) specified under section 143(10) of the Act. Our responsibilities under those SAs are 
further described in the Auditor's Responsibilities for the Audit of the Financial Statements section 
of our report. We are independent of the Company in accordance with the Code of Ethics issued 
by the Institute of Chartered Accountants of India together with the ethical requirements that are 
relevant to our audit of the Ind AS Financial Statements under the provisions of the Act and the 
Rules made thereunder, and we have fulfilled our other ethical responsibilities in accordance wiU1 

these requirements and the ICAI's Code of Ethics. We believe that the audit evidence we have 

obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our audit opinion on the Ind AS 
Financial Statements. 

KEY AUDIT MA TIERS 

Sr. 
No. 
1 

Key Audit Matters 

Income from Toll Collection 
Toll Collections amounting to Rs. 
1221.17 Million forms substantial 
component of Total Income and 

refore is ke Audit Matter. 

How the Key Audit Matters were addressed in our 
audit 

Our Audit Procedures Include 
a. In regard to the Toll Revenue, we verified 

Schedule M and N as submitted with NHAl by 
the management of the company on a monthly 
and weekl , basis and considered total rec Ii bl 
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Sr. 
No. 

2 

Key Audit Matters 

(Refer Note 3.04, 20 and 35 to 
Financial Statement) 

gokhale & sathe 
(regd.) 

chartered accountants 

304/308/309, udyog mandir no. 1, 
7-c, bhagoji keer marg, 

mahim, mumbai 400 016. 

How the Key Audit Matters were addressed in our 
audit 

fee and total traffic count respectively from the 
said Schedules. 

b. We have reconciled the total revenue as 
reported in the books of account and deposited 
in the bank account with aggregate revenues 
reported in Schedule M. 

c. We also reconciled the summation of 
mathematical product No. of Vehicles reported 
in Schedule N and their respective toll rates for 
the period under consideration with the total 
toll revenue recorded. 

d. Verified the Toll rate for the period April 01, 
2024 to June 02, 2024 and for the period June 03, 
2024 to March 31, 2025 from the NHAI Rate 
notification circulars for the respective toll 
plaza. 

Amortisation of Intangible Our Audit Procedures Include 
Assets 
Intangible assets are amortized 
over the concession period, using 
the revenue - based model as per 
the exemption provided in IND 
AS 101, Under this method, the 
carrying value of the right is 
amortized in proportion to the 
actual toll revenue for the period 
to the projected revenue for the 
balance toll period. Such 
projections involve a substantial 
degree of estimate and hence 
considered to be a key audit 
matter. 

Company's Amortization 
Charge on Intangible Assets 
amounted to Rs. 138.26 million 
for the year ended 2024-25. 

(Refer Note 3.06, 24 to the Financial 
Statement) 

a. The intangible assets which are recognised in 
the form of Right to charge users of the 
infrastructure asset are amortised by taking 
proportionate of actual revenue received for the 
year over Total Projected Revenue from project 
to the cost of Intangible assets. 

b. The estimation of total projection revenue 
requires significant assumption about expected 
growth rate and traffic projection for future. 
These assumptions are made by the 
management based on the Traffic Study and 
Revenue Projection Report issued by the 
consultant appointed by the management to 
analyse the traffic growth, toll rate growth and 
revenue forecasting relating to the company. 

c. We have mapped the total yearly revenues, 
estimated by the management based on 
pessimistic scenario, over the period of 
concession agreement as reported in Traffic 
Study and Revenue Projection Report with the 
yearly and total revenues over the period of 
concession agreement considered for 
amortization calculation. 

INFORMATION OTHER THAN THE IND AS FINANCIAL STATEMENTS AND 

AUDITOR'S REPORT THEREON 

The Company's management and Board of Directors are responsible for the preparation of the 
rmation. The other information comprises the information included in the Management 

Page 2 of15 
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Discussion and Analysis, Board's Report including Annexures to Board's Report and 
Shareholder's Information but does not include the Ind AS financial statements and our auditor's 

report thereon. 

Our opinion_ on the Ind AS financial statements does not cover the other information and we do 

not express any form of assurance conclusion thereon. In connection with our audit of the Ind AS 

Financial Statements, our responsibility is to read the other information and, in doing so, consider 

whether the other information is materially inconsistent with the Ind AS Financial Statements, or 

our knowledge obtained in the audit or otherwise appears to be materially misstated. 

If, based on the work we have performed, we conclude that there is a material misstatement of 
this other information, we are required to report that fact. We have nothing to report in this regard. 

MANAGEMENT'S AND BOARD OF DIRECTOR'S RESPONSIBILITY FOR THE IND AS 
FINANCIAL STATEMENTS 

The Company's Management and the Board of Directors are responsible for the matters stated in 
section 134(5) of the Act with respect to the preparation of these Ind AS Financial Statements that 
give a true and fair view of the financial position, financial performance, total comprehensive 
income, changes in equity and cash flows of the Company in accordance with the accounting 
principles generally accepted in India, including the Indian Accounting Standards (Ind AS) 
specified under section 133 of the Act. This responsibility also includes maintenance of adequate 
accounting records in accordance with the provisions of the Act for safeguarding of the assets of 
the Company and for preventing and detecting frauds and other irregularities; selection and 
application of appropriate accounting policies; making judgments and estimates that are 
reasonable and prudent; and design, implementation and maintenance of adequate internal 
financial controls that were operating effectively for ensuring accuracy and completeness of the 
accounting records, relevant to the preparation and presentation of the Ind AS Financial 
Statements that give a true and fair view and are free from material misstatement, whether due to 

fraud or error. 

In preparing the Ind AS Financial Statements, the Management and Board of Directors are 
responsible for assessing the Company's ability to continue as a going concern, disclosing, as 
applicable, matters related to going concern and using the going concern basis of accounting 
unless the Board of Directors either intends to liquidate the Company or to cease operations, or 
has no realistic alternative but to do so. The Management and Board of Directors are also 

responsible for overseeing the Company's financial reporting process. 

AUDITOR'S RESPONSIBILITIES FOR THE AUDIT OF THE IND AS FINANCIAL 
STATEMENTS 

Our objectives are to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the financial statements as a 
whole are free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error, and to issue an auditors' 

includes our opinion. Reasonable assurance is a high level of assurance but is not a 
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guarantee that an audit conducted in accordance with SAs will always detect a material 
misstatement when it exists. Misstatements can arise from fraud or error and are considered 
material if, individually or in the aggregate, they could reasonably be expected to influence the 
economic decisions of users taken on the basis of these financial statements. 

As part of an audit in accordance with SAs, we exercise professional judgment and maintain 
professional skepticism throughout the audit. We also: 

1. Identify and assess the risks of material misstatement of the financial statements, whether due 
to fraud or error, design and perform audit procedures responsive to those risks, and obtain 

audit evidence that is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our opinion. The risk of 
not detecting a material misstatement resulting from fraud is higher than for one resulting from 
error, as fraud may involve collusion, forgery, intentional omissions, misrepresentations, or the 
override of internal control. 

ii. Obtain an understanding of internal control relevant to the audit in order to design audit 
procedures that are appropriate in the circumstances. Under section 143(3)(i) of the Act, we are 
also responsible for expressing our opinion on whether the company has adequate internal 
financial controls with reference to financial statements in place and the operating effectiveness 
of such controls. 

iii. Evaluate the appropriateness of accounting policies used and the reasonableness of accounting 
estimates and related disclosures in the Ind AS Financial Statements made by the Management 
and Board of Directors. 

iv. Conclude on the appropriateness of the Management and the Board of Directors use of the 
going concern basis of accounting and, based on the audit evidence obtained, whether a 
material uncertainty exists related to events or conditions that may cast significant doubt on the 
Company's ability to continue as a going concern. If we conclude that a material uncertainty 
exists, we are required to draw attention in our auditors' report to the related disclosures in the 
financial statements or, if such disclosures are inadequate, to modify our opinion. Our 
conclusions are based on the audit evidence obtained up to the date of our auditors' report. 

However, future events or conditions may cause the Company to cease to continue as a going 

concern. 

v. Evaluate the overall presentation, structure and content of the financial statements, including 
the disclosures, and whether the financial statements represent the underlying transactions and 

events in a manner that achieves fair presentation. 

Materiality is the magnitude of misstatement in the financial statements that, individually or in 
aggregate, make it probable that the economic decision of reasonably knowledgeable user of the 
financial statements may be influenced. We consider quantitative materiality and qualitative 
factors in (i) Planning the scope of our audit and in evaluating results of our work; and (ii) to 

e, . luate the effect of any identified misstatements in the financial statements. 
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We communicate with those charged with governance regarding, among other matters, the 

planned scope and timing of the audit and significant audit findings, including any significant 

deficiencies in internal control that we identify during our audit. 

We also provide those charged with governance with a statement that we have complied with 

relevant ethical requirements regarding independence, and to communicate with them all 

relationships and other matters that may reasonably be thought to bear on our independence, and 
where applicable, related safeguards. 

From the matters communicated with those charged with governance, we determine those matters 
that were of most significance in the audit of the Ind AS Financial Statements of the year ended 

March 31, 2025 and are therefore the key audit matters. We describe these matters in our auditor's 

report unless law or regulation precludes public disclosure about the matter or when, in extremely 
rare circumstances, we determine that a matter should not be communicated in our report because 

the adverse consequences of doing so would reasonably be expected to outweigh the public 
interest benefits of such communication 

OTHER MA TIER 

The financial statements of the Company for the year ended March 31, 2024 were audited by MKPS 
& Associates, Chartered Accountants, whose report dated April 23, 2024 expressed an 
unmodified opinion on those statements. Our opinion is not modified in respect of this matter. 

REPORT ON OTHER LEGAL AND REGULATORY REQUIREMENTS 

1. As required by the Companies (Auditors' Report) Order, 2020 ("the Order") issued by the 
Central Government in terms of section 143 (11) of the Act, we give in the "Annexure A" a 
statement on the matters specified in paragraphs 3 and 4 of the Order, to the extent applicable. 

2. As required by Section 143(3) of the Act, we report that: 

a. we have sought and obtained all the information and explanations which to the best of our 

knowledge and belief were necessary for the purposes of our audit; 

b. in our opinion proper books of account as required by law have been kept by the Company 

so far as appears from our examination of those books; 

c. the Balance Sheet, the Statement of Profit and Loss, the Statement of Cash Flow and 
Statement of Changes in Equity dealt with by this Report are in agreement with the books 

of account; 
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d. in our opinion, the aforesaid Ind AS Financial Statements comply with the Accounting 
Standards specified w1der Section 133 of the Act read with relevant rules issued 

thereunder; 

e. on th_e basis of written representations received from the directors as on March 31, 2025 
taken on record by the Board of Directors, none of the directors is disqualified as on March 
31, 2025, from being appointed as a director in terms of Section 164(2) of the Act; 

f. with respect to the adequacy of the internal financial controls with reference to Financial 
Statements of the Company and the operating effectiveness of such controls, refer to our 

separate report in "Annexure B"; Our report expresses an unmodified opinion on the 
adequacy and operating effectiveness of the Company's internal financial controls with 
reference to Ind AS Financial Statement of the Company. 

g. with respect to the other matters to be included in the Auditor's Report in accordance with 
Rule 11 of the Companies (Audit and Auditors) Rules, 2014, in our opinion and to the best 
of our information and according to the explanations given to us: 

i. The Company does not have any pending litigations which would impact its financial 
position, refer Note No. 42. 

ii. The Company did not have any long-term contracts including derivative contracts for 
which there are any material foreseeable losses. 

iii. There were no amounts which were required to be transferred to the Investor Education 
and Protection Fund by the Company. 

iv. In respect of Rule ll(e) of the Companies (Audit and Auditors) Rules, 2014, 

a. The Management has represented that, to the best of it's knowledge and belief, no 
funds (which are material either individually or in the aggregate) have been 
advanced or loaned or invested (either from borrowed funds or share premium or 
any other sources or kind of funds) by the Company to or in any other person or 
entity, including foreign entity ("Intermediaries"), with the understanding, 
whether recorded in writing or otherwise, that the Intermediary shall, whether, 

directly or indirectly lend or invest in other persons or entities identified in any 

manner whatsoever by or on behalf of the Company ("Ultimate Beneficiaries") or 
provide any guarantee, security or the like on behalf of the Ultimate Beneficiaries; 

b. The Management has represented, that, to the best of its knowledge and belief, no 

funds (which are material eitl1er individually or in the aggregate) have been 
received by tl1e Company from any person or entity, including foreign entity 
("Funding Parties"), with tl1e understanding, whether recorded in writing or 
otherwise, that the Company shall, whether, directly or indirectly, lend or invest in 
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other persons or entities identified in any manner whatsoever by or on behalf of 
the Funding Party ("Ultimate Beneficiaries") or provide any guarantee, security or 

the like on behalf of the Ultimate Beneficiaries; 

c. Based on the audit procedures that have been considered reasonable and 

appropriate in the circumstances, nothing has come to our notice that has caused 
us to believe that the representations under sub-clause (i) and (ii) of Rule ll(e), as 

provided under (a) and (b) above, contain any material misstatement. 

v. The Company has not declared or paid dividends during the financial year. 

vi. The Company has used accounting software for maintaining its books of accounts. 

Based on our examination which included test checks, discussion with IT professionals 

of the Company and the software service provider, it is observed that the Software has 
a feature of recording audit trail (edit log) facility and the same has been operated 
throughout the year for all relevant transactions recorded in the software. Further, 
during the course of our audit, based on the information and explanation provided by 
the management, we have not come across any instance of audit trail feature being 
tampered with and the audit trail has been preserved by the company as per the 
statutory requirements for record retention. 

3. With respect to the matter to be included in Auditor's Report under section 197(16) of the Act 

i. According to information and explanation given to us and based on our examination of 
the records of the Company, the Company has not paid/provided for Managerial 

Remuneration. 

ii. The Ministry of Corporate Affairs has not prescribed other details under Section 197(16) 
of the Act which are required to be commented upon by us. 

For Gokhale & Sathe, 
Chartered Accountants 
Firm Registration No.: 

cf 
CA Kaustubh Deshpa 
Partner 

Membership No.: 121011 
UDIN: 25121 OI I 8MIJ P<f( 210, 
Place: Mumbai 
Date: April 30, 2025 
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ANNEXURE A TO THE INDEPENDENT AUDITOR'S REPORT 
(Refem:d to in pamgmpl, 1 1111dcr 'Report 011 O//1er Legal a11d Regulalory Requirements' section of our report to the 
Members ofSOLAPUR YEDESHITOLLWAY LIMITED of even dale) 

To the best of our information and according to the explanations provided to us by the Company 
and the books· of account and records examined by us in the normal course of audit, we state that: 

(i) (a) The Company has maintained proper records showing full particulars, including 

quantitative details and the situation of intangible assets. The company does not have 

Property Plant and Equipment. 

(b) As the company does not have Property, Plant and Equipment the requirements under 

paragraph l(i)(b) are not applicable to the company. 

(c) As the company does not have Immovable Property including Property, Plant and 

Equipment the requirements under paragraph l(i)(c) are not applicable to the company. 

(d) The company does not have Property, Plant and Equipment and accordingly it has not 
revalued the same. The Company has not revalued any of its intangible assets during 
the year. 

(e) No proceedings have been initiated during the year or are pending against the 
Company as at March 31, 2025 for holding any benarni property under the Benami 
Transactions (Prohibition) Act, 1988 (as amended in 2016) and rules made thereunder. 

(ii) (a) The nature of the Company's business is such that it is not required to hold any 
inventories and, hence, reporting under paragraph 3(ii) of the order is not applicable to 

the Company. 

(b) Further, during the year, the company was not sanctioned any working capital limits 
from banks or financial institutions based on the security of its current assets and 
accordingly, the requirements under paragraph 3(ii)(b) are not applicable to the 

company. 

(iii) (a) According to the information and explanations given to us and based on the 
examination of the Books of Account, during the year the company has not provided 
any loan or advance in the nature of loan or provided any guarantee to or security to 
any entity and accordingly, the requirements under paragraph 3(iii)(a), (c), (d), (e) and 

(f) are not reported on. 

(b) In our opinion, the investments made, during the year are, prima fade, not prejudicial 
to the Company's interest. 

(iv) The company has complied with the provisions of section 185 and 186(1) of the Companies 
Act 2013. Further, based on the information provided to us, being an infrastructure 
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company, except for provision of sub-section (1) of 186 of the Act, provisions of section 186 

are not applicable to the company and therefore has not been commented upon. 

(v) The Company has not accepted any deposits from the public to which the directives issued 
by the Reserve Bank of India and the provisions of sections 73 to 76 or any other relevant 

provisions of the Act and Rules framed thereunder are applicable. Accordingly, paragraph 
3(v) of the Order is not applicable to the Company. 

(vi) We have broadly reviewed the books of accounts maintained by the company pursuant to 

the rules made by the central government for the maintenance of cost records under section 

148(1) of the Companies Act, 2013, and Cost Audit Report made available to us and are of 

the opinion that prima fade, the specified accounts and records have been made and 
maintained. We have not, however, made a detailed examination of the same. 

(vii) (a) In our opinion, the Company is regular in depositing with the appropriate authorities 

undisputed statutory dues including provident fund, employees' state insurance, 
income tax, sales-tax, goods and service tax, cess and other material statutory dues 
applicable to it. According to information and explanations given to us, no undisputed 
amounts payable were outstanding, at the year end, for a period of more than six 
months from the date they became payable. 

(b) According to the information and explanations given to us, there are no statutory dues 
which have not been deposited on account of any dispute except for Income Tax 
Demands excluding interest thereon amounting to; 

i. Rs. 40.16 Million for the Assessment Year 2017-18 in respect of which appeal has 
been filed with the CIT (Appeals), Income Tax and the appeal order effect is 
pending to be given by the department, 

ii. Rs. 48.87 Million for the Assessment Year 2023-24 in respect of which appeal has 
been filed with the CIT (Appeals), Income Tax and is pending to be decided upon. 

(viii) There were no transactions relating to previously unrecorded income that have been 

surrendered or disclosed as income during the year in the tax assessments under the Income 

Tax Act, 1961 (43 of 1961). 

(ix) (a) According to the information and explanations given to us and based on the records 

made available and produced before us for verification, the Company has not defaulted 
in repayment of loans or other borrowings or in the payment of interest thereon to any 

lender during the year. 

(b) According to the information and explanations given to us, the Company has not been 
declared a willful defaulter by any bank or financial institution or other lender. 

1>-LE & .s -; , 
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(c) The Company has not raised money by way of term loan during the year under 

consideration and accordingly the reporting under this paragraph is not applicable to 

the company. 

(d) On an overall examination of the financial statements of the Company, funds raised on 

sl1ort term basis have, prirna facie, not been used during the year for long-term purposes 
by the Company. 

(e) The Company does not have subsidiaries, associates or joint ventures during the year 

& and therefore paragraphs 3(ix)(e) and (f) of the Order is not applicable to the Company 
(f) 

(x) (a) The Company has not raised moneys by way of initial public offer or further public 

offer {including debt instruments) during the year and hence reporting under clause 
3(x)(a) of the Order is not applicable 

(b) During the year, the Company has not made any preferential allotment or private 
placement of shares or convertible debentures (fully or partly or optionally) and hence 
reporting under clause 3(x)(b) of the Order is not applicable. 

(xi) (a) During the course of our examination of the books and records of the Company, carried 
out in accordance with the generally accepted auditing practices in India, and according 
to the information and explanations given to us, we have not come across any instance 
of fraud by or on the Company, noticed or reported during the year, nor have we been 
informed of such case by management. 

(b) According to the information and explanations given to us, no report under sub-section 
(12) of section 143 of tl1e Companies Act has been filed by us, in Form ADT-4 as 
prescribed under rule 13 of Companies (Audit and Auditors) Rules, 2014 with the 

Central Government. According to the information and explanations given to us, no 
reporting of fraud has been done by the Cost Auditor and Company Secretary. 

(c) According to the information and explanations given to us, there were no whistle­

blower complaints received during the year by the company. 

(xii) The Company is not a Nidhi Company and hence, reporting under paragraph 3 (xii) of the 

Order is not applicable. 

(xiii) In our opinion, the Company is in compliance with Section 177 and 188 of the Companies 
Act, 2013 with respect to applicable transactions with the related parties and the details of 
related party transactions have been disclosed in the financial statements as required by the 

applicable accounting standards. 

(xiv) (a) In our opinion the Company has an adequate internal audit system commensurate with 

the size and the nature of its business. 
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(b) We have considered, the internal audit report issued during the year along with 
management responses thereto and the draft report for half year ended 31st March 2025, 
till date, in determining the nature, timing and extent of our audit procedures. 

(xv) In our opinion during the year the Company has not entered into any non-cash transactions 
with its Directors or persons connected with its directors and hence provisions of section 192 
of the Companies Act, 2013 are not applicable to the Company. 

(xvi) (a) The Company is not required to be registered under Section 45- IA of the Reserve Bank 
of India Act, 1934 (2 of 1934). 

(b) Further, the Company has not conducted any Non-Banking Financial or housing 
finance activities during the year. 

(c) In our opinion, the Company is not a Core Investment Company and there is no other 
& core investment company within the Group (as defined in the Core Investment 
(d) Companies (Reserve Bank) Directions, 2016) and accordingly reporting under clause 

3(xvi)(c) and (d) of the Order is not applicable. 

(xvii) According to the information and explanation given to us, the company has incurred cash 
losses of Rs. 743.62 million during the current financial year and during the immediately 
preceding financial year, as reported by the erstwhile auditor, the company has incurred 
cash losses of Rs. 585.83 million. 

(xviii) There were no resignations of the statutory auditors during the year and accordingly the 
requirements of 3(xviii) is not applicable. 

(xix) On the basis of the financial ratios, ageing and expected dates of realisation of financial assets 
and payment of financial liabilities, other information accompanying the financial 
statements and our knowledge of the Board of Directors and Management plans and based 
on our examination of the evidence supporting the assumptions, nothing has come to our 
attention, which causes us to believe that any material uncertainty exists as on the date of 
the audit report indicating that Company is not capable of meeting its liabilities existing at 
the date of balance sheet as and when they fall due within a period of one year from the 
balance sheet date. We, however, state that this is not an assurance as to the future viability 

of the Company. We further state that our reporting is based on the facts up to the date of 

the audit report and it should not be construed as a guarantee or assurance that all liabilities 
falling due within a period of one year from the balance sheet date, will get discharged by 

the Company as and when they fall due. 

(xx) (a) According to the information and explanations given to us and based on the 
& examination of the Books of Account, the company was not required to spend on CSR 
(b) activities during the year under consideration accordingly, the company was neither 

required to transfer any amount remaining unspent under sub section (5) of the section 
135 of the Companies Act pursuant to ongoing project to special account in compliance 

~ 
, 0 111 
* MUMBAI ~l 
~ ~ J~I 

,,.,p~ l\lo 1~"!>'\: ,,§· 
'~l?~o ~cco'0. 
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with provision of sub section (6) of section 135 of the Companies Act nor was required 
to transfer the unspent amount in relation to '0U1er Ulan ongoing projects' to a Fund 

specified in Schedule VII to U1e Companies Act within a period of six months of the 

expiry of U,e financial yea!' in compliance wiU1 second proviso to sub-section (5) of 

section 135 of the said Act. 

(xxi) The Company is not required to prepare Consolidated Financial Statements and therefore 
reporting tmder clause 3(xxi) of U1e Order is not applicable for the year. 

For Gokhale & Sathe, 
O,artered Accountants 

Firm R•gistrati:;x 1 

CA Kaustubh Deshpa 
Partner 

Membership No.: 121011 

UDIN: 2.Sl2.IOll&MIJP((?.2.70b 

Place: Mumbai 
Date: April 30, 2025 
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(referred to in paragraplz 2(j) under 'Report on Other Legal and Regula ton; Requirements' sechon of our 
report of even date) 

Report on the Internal Financial Controls with reference to Ind AS Financial Statements of the 
Company under Clause (i) of Sub-section 3 of Section 143 of the Companies Act, 2013 

OPINION 

We have audited the internal financial controls with reference to financial statements of SOLAPUR 
YEDESHI TOLLWAY LIMITED ("the Company") as of 31st March 2025 in conjunction with our 

audit of the Ind AS Financial Statements of the Company for the year ended on that date. 

In our opinion, to the best of our information and according to the explanations given to us, the 
Company has, in all material respects, adequate internal financial controls with reference to Ind 
AS Financial Statements and such internal financial controls were operating effectively as at 31st 

March 2025, based on the internal financial controls with reference to Ind AS Financial Statements 
criteria established by the Company considering the essential components of internal control 
stated in the Guidance Note on Audit of Internal Financial Controls Over Financial Reporting 
issued by the Institute of Chartered Accountants of India (the "Guidance Note"). 

MANAGEMENT'S RESPONSIBILITY FOR INTERNAL FINANOAL CONTROLS 

The Company's management and the Board of Directors are responsible for establishing and 
maintaining internal financial controls based on the internal financial controls with reference to 
Ind AS Financial Statements criteria established by the Company considering the essential 
components of internal control stated in the Guidance Note. These responsibilities include the 

design, implementation and maintenance of adequate internal financial controls that were 
operating effectively for ensuring the orderly and efficient conduct of its business, including 
adherence to company's policies, the safeguarding of its assets, the prevention and detection of 

frauds and errors, the accuracy and completeness of the accounting records, and the timely 

preparation of reliable financial information, as required under the Companies Act, 2013 

(hereinafter referred to as "the Act"). 

AUDITOR'S RESPONSIBILITY 

Our responsibility is to express an opinion on the Company's internal financial controls with 

reference to financial statements based on our audit. We conducted our audit in accordance with 
the Guidance Note and the Standards on Auditing, prescribed under section 143(10) of the Act, to 

the extent applicable to an audit of internal financial controls with reference to financial 
statements. 

Those Standards and the Guidance Note require that we comply with ethical requirements and 
d perform the audit to obtain reasonable assurance about whether adequate internal 

/ I 
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financial controls with reference to Ind AS Financial Statements were established and maintained 
and whether such controls operated effectively in all material respects. 

Our audit involves performing procedures to obtain audit evidence about the adequacy of the 
internal fi.na,ncial conb·ols with reference to Ind AS Financial Statements and their operating 

effectiveness. Our audit of internal financial controls with reference to Ind AS Financial Statements 

included obtaining an understanding of such internal financial controls, assessing the risk that a 

material weakness exists, and testing and evaluating the design and operating effectiveness of 
internal control based on the assessed risk The procedures selected depend on the auditor's 
judgement, including the assessment of the risks of material misstatement of the financial 
statements, whether due to fraud or error. 

We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide a 
basis for our audit opinion on the Company's internal financial controls with reference to Ind AS 
Financial Statements. 

MEANING OF INTERNAL FINANCIAL CONTROLS WITH REFERENCE TO IND AS 
FINANCIAL STATEMENTS 

A company's internal financial controls with reference to Ind AS Financial Statements is a process 
designed to provide reasonable assurance regarding the reliability of financial reporting and the 
preparation of financial statements for external purposes in accordance with generally accepted 

accounting principles. 

A company's internal financial controls with reference to Ind AS Financial Statements include 

those policies and procedures that -

1. pertain to the maintenance of records that, in reasonable detail, accurately and fairly reflect the 
transactions and dispositions of the assets of the company; 

2. provide reasonable assurance that transactions are recorded as necessary to permit preparation 

of financial statements in accordance with generally accepted accounting principles, and that 

receipts and expenditures of the company are being made only in accordance with 
authorizations of management and di.rectors of the company; and 

3. provide reasonable assurance regarding prevention or timely detection of unauthorized 
acquisition, use, or disposition of the company's assets that could have a material effect on the 
financial statements. 
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INHERENT LIMITATIONS OF INTERNAL FINANCIAL CONTROLS WITH REFERENCE 
TO IND AS FINANCIAL STATEMENTS 

Because of the inherent limitations of internal financial controls with reference to Ind AS Financial 
Statements, µtcluding the possibility of collusion or improper management override of controls, 
material misstatements due to error or fraud may occur and not be detected. Also, projections of 
any evaluation of the internal financial controls with reference to financial statements to future 
periods are subject to the risk that the internal financial controls with reference to financial 
statements may become inadequate because of changes in conditions, or that the degree of 
compliance with the policies or procedures may deteriorate. 

For Gokhale & Sathe, 
Chartered Accountants 
Firm Registration No. 

V\ 
) I 

CA Kaustubh Desh 
Partner ,,.... 

Membership No.: 121011 
UDIN: 2 5/2./0// 8 tv,IJP() 270(:, 

Place: Mumbai 
Date: April 30, 2025 
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Solapur Yedeshi Tollway limited 

Bc1lance Sheet as clt Mc1rch 31, 2025 

I ASSETS 

(1) Non-current assets 

Other intangible assets 

Financial assets 

Other non-current assets 

Total non-current assets (A) 

(2) Current assets 

Financial assets 

Investments 

ii) Trade rece ivables 

ii) Cash and cash equivalents 

iii ) Bank balance other than (ii) above 

iv) Other financial assets 

Current tax assets (net) 

Other current assets 

Total current assets (B) 

Total assets (A+B) 

EQUITY AND LIABILITIES 

Equity 

Equity share capital 

Oth er equity 

Total equity (A) 

LIABILITIES 

(1) Non-current liabilities 

Financia l liabili t ies 

i) Borrowings 

ii) Other financial liabilities 

Provisions 
c. Deferred tax liabilities (net) 

Total non-current liabilities (B) 

(2) Current liabilities 

Financial lia bilities 

i) Borrowi ngs 

ii) Trade payables 

a) t ota l ou tstanding dues of micro enterprises and sma ll enterprises 

Note No. 

4 

6 

10 

11 

7 

12 

9 

13 

14 

15 

17 

18 

15 

16 

As at 

March 31, 2025 

(Audited) 

12,860.39 

2.66 

12,863.05 

18.01 

0.88 

12.79 

338.10 

36.32 

15.43 

6.84 

428.37 

13,291.42 

982.50 

(3,946.76) 

(2,964.26) 

13,494.78 

0.59 

12.32 

13,507.69 

2,457.94 

5.57 

(~ in Millions) 

As at 

March 31, 2024 

(Audited) 

12,998.65 

12,998.65 

40.46 

522.00 

50.79 

11.73 

14.51 

639,49 

13,638.14 

982.50 

(3,128.31) 

(2,145.81) 

14,052.82 

103.57 

14, 156.39 

1,342.15 

b) t ota l outstanding dues of creditors othe r than micro enterp enterpri ses 5.58 13.28 

iii) Other financia l liabilities 

Provisions 
Other cu rre nt liabilities 

Total current liabilities (C) 

Total liabilities (B+C) 

TOTAL EQUITY AND LIABILITIES (A+B+C) 

Summilry of material accounting policies 

The accompanying notes ilre an integral part of these financial statements. 

As r,er our report of even date 

For Gokhale & 5athc 

Charte red Accounta nts 

,ca, '"m "'':?"'" '°"MW 

CA. Kaustubh Deshpande 

Partner 

Membership No.: 121011 

Place : Mumbai 

Date : 30/04/2025 

17 

18 

19 

80.23 

193.50 

5.17 

2,747.99 

16,255.68 

13,291.42 

79.80 

183.90 

8.43 

1,627.56 

15,783.95 

13,638.14 

For and on behalf of the Board of Directors of 

Solapur Ycdcshi Tollway Limited 

CIN : U4 54 00MH2014PLC251983 

Shilpa Todankar 

Director 

DIN: 08683910 

Place : Mumbai 

Date : 30/ 04/2025 

Devendra Rankcl 

Chief Financial Officer 

Place : Mumbai 

\g"'""" 
- ~ 

Heta Solanki 

Company Secretary 

Place : M umbai 

Date 30/ 04/ 2025 

~ 
Director 

DIN: 09519500 

Place : Mumbai 

Date : 30/04/2025 

Mumbai 

30/04/2025 



Solapur Yedeshi Tollway Limited 

Statement of Profit and Loss for the Year ended March 31, 2025 

Income 

Revenue from operations 

Other income 

TOTAL INCOME 

Expenses 

Road work and site expenses 

Finance costs 

Depreciation and amortisation expenses 

Other expenses 

TOTAL EXPENSES 

Profit/ (loss) before tax 

Tax expenses 

Current tax 

Total tax expenses 

Profit/(loss} after tax 

Other comprehensive income/(loss} for the Year 

Total comprehensive income for the year 

Earnings per equity share (of Rs. 10 each} 

Basic 

Diluted 

Summary of material accounting policies 

Note No. 

20 

21 

22 

23 

24 

25 

26 

27 

3 

Th e accompanying notes are an integral part of these financial statements. 

As per our report of even date 

For Gokhale & Sathe 

Chartered Accountants 

ICAI frm Regl•:;xmbecc 103264W~::::c::c=::,.... 

CA. Kaustubh Deshpande 

Partner 

Membership No. : 121011 

Place : Mumbai 

Date : 30/04/2025 

Year ended 

March 31, 2025 

( Audited} 

1,237.35 

48.09 

1,285.44 

271.21 

1,681.08 

138.26 

13.34 

2,103.89 

(818.45) 

(818.45) 

(818.45} 

(8.33} 

(8 .33) 

(~ in Millions} 

Year ended 

March 31, 2024 

( Audited} 

• 1,340.16 

59.76 

1,399.92 

326.19 

1,742.92 

156.93 

18.01 

2,244.05 

(844.13) 

0.47 

0.47 

(844.60} 

(844.60} 

(8.60) 

(8.60} 

For and on behalf of the Board of Directors of 

Solapur Yedeshi Tollway Limited 

CIN : U45400MH2014PLC251983 

Shilpa Todankar 

Director 

DIN : 08683910 

Place : Mumbai 

Date 30/04/2025 

Devendra Ranka 

Chief Financial Officer 

Place : Mumbai 

Date 30/04/2025 

U -
- ~ 

Heta Solanki 

Company Secretary 

Place : Mumbai 

Date : 30/04/2025 

~ 
Abhay Phatak 

Director 

DIN : 09519500 

Place : Mumbai 

Date : 30/04/2025 

q~"" ~ ief Execut ive Officer 

Place: Mumbai 

Date : 30/04/2025 



Solapur Yedeshi Tollway Limited 

Statement of Cash flow for the year ended March 31, 2025 

Cash flow from operating activities 
Profit Before Tax 

Adjustments : 

Depreciation and amortisation expenses 

Resurfacing expenses 

Finance costs 

Fair Value (gain)/ loss on Mutual Funds 

(Gain)/ loss on sale of Investment 

Other non operative income 

Interest Income on 

- Bank deposits 

- Others 

Particulars 

Operating profit/(loss) before working capital changes 
Movement in working capital: 
Decrease/(increase) in Trade receivables 

Decrease/(increase) in other financial assets 

Decrease/(increase) in other assets 

lncrease/(decrease) in trade payables 

lncrease/(decrease) in other financial liabilities 

lncrease/(decrease) in other liabilities 

lncrease/(clecrease) in provisions 

Cash generated from/(used in) operations 
Direct taxes paid (net of refunds and other current tax assets) 

Net cash flows from/(usecl in) operating activities (A) 

B. Cash flows from investing activities 
Proceeds from sale/ (purchase) of current investments (net) 

Proceeds from maturity or DSRA bank deposits 

Interest received 

Net cash flows from/(used in) investing activities (B) 

C. Cash flow from financing activities 
Proceeds / repayment of sub-ordinate debt 

Proceeds/ (repayment) of short term loan 

Other non operative income- refund or interest 

Finance cost paid 

Net cash flows from/(usecl in) financing activities (C) 
Net increase/(decrease) in cash and cash equivalents (A+B+C) 
Cash and cash equivalents at the beginning of the year 

Cash and cash equivalents at the end of the year (refer note 10) 

Components of cash and cash equivalents 
Cash on hand 

Balances with scheduled banks 

- On Current Account 

- On Escrow Account 

Total Cash and cash equivalents (refer note I 0) 

Year ended March 
31,2025 
(Audited) 

(818.45) 

138.26 

102 .24 

1,649.03 
(0.01) 

(3 .80) 

( 13 .13) 

(30 .85) 

(0 .25) 

1,023.04 

(0.88) 
14.47 

5.01 
(2.13) 

1.02 

(3 .26) 

(183 .89) 

853.38 
(3.70) 

849.68 

( 14.20) 

183.90 

31.10 
200.80 

(576 .27) 

13 . 13 

(515.01) 

(1,078. 15) 
(27.67) 

40.46 
12.79 

0.85 

2.53 

9.41 

12.79 

(tin Millions) 
Year ended March 31, 

2024 
(Audited) 

(844.13) 

156.93 

66.34 
1,742.92 

(4.77) 

(54.68) 

(0.25) 

1,062.37 

29.37 
(29.03) 

(14.47) 
(213.22) 

21.90 
4.85 

861. 76 
(7. 78) 

853.98 

77.59 
260.00 

57 .60 

395.19 

(214.03) 
(114.82) 

(904 .72) 
(1,233.56) 

15.61 
24.86 

40.46 

0.91 

13.35 

26.20 

40.46 



Solapur Yedeshi Tollway Limited 
Statement of Cash flow for the year ended March 31, 2025 

Particulars 

Debt reconciliation statement in accordance with Ind AS 7 
Opening balances 
Long term borrowings 

Short term borrowings 

Movements 
Long term borrowings 

Short term borrowings 

Non cash adjustments 
Long term borrowings 

Short term borrowings 

Closing balances 
Long term borrowings 

Short term borrowings 

Summary of material accounting policies 

The accompanying notes are an integral part of the financial statements. 

Notes: 
1. All figures in bracket are outflow. 

Year ended March 
31, 2025 

(Audited) 

14,052.82 
1,342.15 

-576.27 

66.85 
-1 ,342.15 

13 ,543.40 

(tin Millions) 
Year ended March 31, 

2024 
(Audited) 

9,829.36 
654.72 

4,223.46 
687.43 

14,052.82 
1,342. 15 

2. Taxes paid are treated as arising from operating acti vities and are not bifurcated between in vesting and financing acti vities . 

. 3. The cash flow statement has been prepared under Indirect Method as per Ind AS 7 " Statement of Cash Flows'·. 

As per our report of even date 

For Gokhale & Sathe 

Chartered Accountants 

!CAI Firm Registration Number: 103264W 

CA. Kaustubh Deshpande 

Partner 

Membership No.: 121011 

Place : Mumbai 

Date : 30/04/2025 

For and on behalf of the Board of Directors of 

Solapur Yedeshi Tollway Limited 

CIN : U45400MH2014PLC251983 

~ 
Shilpa Todankar 

Director 

DIN: 08683910 

Place : Mumbai 

Date · : 30/04/2025 

Devendra Ranka 

Chief Financial Officer 

Place : Mumbai 

Date : 30/04/2025 

V·· 
Heta Solanki 

Company Secretary 

Place : Mumbai 

Date : 30/04/2025 

~ 
Abhay Phatak 

Director 

DIN: 09519500 

Place : Mumbai 

Date : 30/04/2025 

Jaipra ash Nandi 

Chief Executive Officer 

Place : Mumbai 

Date : 30/04/2025 



Solapur Vedeshi Tollway Limited 
Statement of changes in equity for the year ended March 31 , 2025 

A. Equity Share Capital: 

Equity shares oft IO each issued. subscribed and fully paid 

Opening balance 
Issue of share capital 
Closing balance 

8 . Subordinate debt : 
Opening balance 
Addition during the period/ year 
Closing balance 

C .Other Equity : 
Retained earnings 
Opening balance 
Profit/(loss) for the period/ year 
Other comprehensive income/(loss) for the year 

Re-measurement gains/ (losses) on defined benefit plans 
At the end of the year 

Summary or material accounting policies 
The acco111panying notes are an integral part of the financial statements. 

As per our report of even date 
For Gokhale & Sa the 
Chartered Accountants 
ICAI Fir111 Registration Nu111ber: I 03264W 

er{ 
CA Kaustubh Deshpande 
Partner 
Membership No.: 121011 

Place : Mu111bai 
Date 30/04/2025 

, 
J 

As at 
March 31, 2025 

982.50 

982.50 

(3,128.31) 
(818.45) 

(3,946.76) 

(tin Millions) 
As at 

March 31, 2024 

982.50 

982.50 

4,423.70 
(4 ,423 70) 

(2,283.71) 
(844.60) 

(3,128.31) 

For and on behalf or the Board of Directors or 
Solapur Vedeshi Tollway Limited 

CIN : U45400MH2014PLC25 I 983 

~ 
Shilpa Todankar 
Director 
DIN : 08683910 

Place : Mumbai 
Date 30/04/2025 

~ 
Devcndn1 Ranka 
Chief Financial Oflicer 

Place : Mumbai 
Date 30/04/2025 

~ 
Heta Solanki 
Company Secretary 
Place: Mumbai 
Date 30/04/2025 

Director 
DIN: 09519500 

Place : Mumbai 
Date 30/04/2025 

30/04/2025 



Solapur Ycdcshi Tollwa)' Limilccl 
Notes to fin:mcial statement for the yenr ended March 31, 2025 

Nole I : Corporntc l11formntio11 
Solnplll" Ycdcshi Tollway Limited (' the Compnny') is domiciled in lndi:1. The Company has been nw,irdcd the projec! for 4- laning ofSolc1pur to Ycc.lcshi section 
of Nl-1-21 I from Km 0.000 to Km I 00.00 (design length 98. 717 Km) in 1he S1nte of Malrnrashlra. The Project has been awarded under N.itional Highwc1ys 
Development Program (NHDP) Phase IV and is to be execu1ed as BOT {Toll) on a Design, Build, Finance, Operate and Transfer (DBFOT) basis. 

The Company has been conve11ed to Public Limited Company from Private Limited Company with effect from 13th November, 2019. 

The lin;mcinl statements were authorised for issue by the Company's Board of Directors on J01h April. :W::!5 

The_ registered oflicc is located al 110 I, 11 lh floor. Hiranandani Knowledge Park. Technology Strec1. Opp Hirnnandan1 Hospital. Powai. Mumbai - 400 076. 

JR[l Infrastructure Trust [an Infrastruc ture Investment Trust registered with Securit ies and Exch,mge Board of India under Securities and Exchange Ooard of 
lndi:1 (lnfras1ructure Investment Trusls) Rcgula1ions. 2014) holds through its Truslce IDBI Truslccship Services Limited and its nominees 100% srnkc in the 
Co111p,my 

Note 2 : Oasis or prcparn1io11 
The financial slatemcnls of the Company ha ve been prepared in accordance with Indian Accoun1 ing Standards (Ind AS) as per the Companies {Indian 
Accounting Stand,1rds) Rules, 2015 . 

These financial sta1cments for the year ended 1',,Jarch JI, 2025 arc prepared in accordance with Ind AS. Refer to note J for information on how !he Company 
.1dopted Ind AS. 

These arc the Financinl Stalements of the Comp.1ny and accordingly, the co111pnra1ivc infor111a11on avai lable for the co1111rnrablc ye,1r to d.1te period of the 
i111111cdia1cly preceding financial year with res pee\ 10 the Statement of Profit and Loss. S1nte111e11t ofClwnges in EC]uity and Stntement of Cash Flows .ind notes to 
the financi.il statements including other explanatory inform.it ion. 

The financial s tatements arc presented in Indian Rupee ('JNR') which is also the Comp;rny's functional currency and all values arc rounded to Ilic nearest 
millions, except when otherwise indiciued . 

The linnncial sta1emcnts have been prepared on a hislorical cos t basis, except for certain financial asscls and liabilities (relcr accounting policy regardi ng 
financial inslruments) which have been measured at fair va lue. 

Note J: S11111111arJ of material :1ccou11ti112 policies 

3.01 C11 rrc111 versus 11011-currcnl classificntion 
The Co111pn11y presents .1sscts and linbi!itics in tile balance sheet based on curre nt/ 11 011-c11rre111 cl.1ssi li ca1ion . An asset is trc.ltcd as current when i1 1s. 

- Expected to be realised or intended to be sold or consumed 111 nornrnl opernting cycle 

- Held primarily for the purpose of trading 
- Expected 10 be re.1lised within twelve months niter the rcponing period, or 
- Cash or cash equivalent unless rest ri cted from being exchanged or used 10 sclllc a li nbi lity for at lenst lwelvc months after the rcporling period. 
All other assets arc classilied as non-current. 

A liability is current when : 
- ii is cxpcc1cd to be sell led in normal operating C)•clc 
- II is held primarily for 1hc purpose of trading 
- It is due to be scllled within twel ve months alier the rcpor1ing period, or 
- There is no unconditio11nl right to defer the sct1lcment of the Ji.1bility for nt lcas1 1welvc months nlil·r 1hc rc:por11ng period 
The Company c lassi fi es all other li.lbil itics as non-current. 
Deferred lax asse ts and liab ilities arc classilicd as non -current assets and liabilities. 
The opcraling cycle is the time between the ac{]uisition of assets for processing and their rcalismion in cash nnd cash CCJliivnlents. The Company lrns ide 111 ilicd 
twelve months as its opcra1ing cycle. 

3.02 Fair· ,·n luc mensurcmcn l 
Fair value is th e price that would be received to se ll .in asset or paid to transfer ,1 liability i11 an orderly transaction between market participants .it the 
mc.lsurement date. The fair v.lluc me.lsurcmcnt is b.1sed on the presumption that the trnnsaction to sell the asset or trans fer the liability takes place either: 

> ln the principal nrnrkct for the asset or linbility, or 
> 111 the <1bscnce ofa principal market. in the 1110s1 advantageous markc1 ror the asset or liability 
The principal or 1he most advantageous market rnusl be accessible by !he Company. 
The fair value or an asse1 or il liability is measured usmg the assumptions 1ha1 market panicipants would use when pric ing 1hc <1sset or liab ili ty. assuming that 
111arke1 participants act in their economic best interest. 

A foir va lue measurement of .1 11011-linnncial asset 1.ikcs into .iccount n mnrkct parlicip.lnt's abili1y lo generate economic benefits by using the ;-asset in Its highest 
and bes t use or by selling it 10 ,mother market p.lrticipant that wou ld use the asset in its highest and bcsl use 

The Company uses valumion techni(]lJCS that arc ;1ppropri atc in the circumsianccs nnd for whi ch su11icicnt c.lata are available to mc,1slire foir value. maxim1s111g 
the use of relevant observable inputs nnd minimising !he use of unobservable inp111s . 

All assets and liabilities for which fair va lue is measured or disclosed in the financial sta tements arc categorised within the fair value hierarchy, described as 
fo llows, based on the lowest level input 1h111 is significant to the fair v.ilue measurement as a whole: 
Leve l I - Quoted (unadjusted) market prices in ac1ive markets for idcnticnl asse ts or linbilities 
Level 2- Valuation techni(]ues for which the lov.·est leve l input that is signilicant to the fair va lue measurement is directly or indirectly observab le 
Level 3 -Valuation lechniqucs for which the lowest level input thal is signiricant to the foir value measurement is unobserv;i,ble 

For assets and liabilities that arc recognised i1\ 1he rin.incial stntemcnts on a recurring b.isis. the Company determines whether transfers have occurred between 
levels in the hierarchy by rc-.isscssing categorisa1ion (based on the !owes! level input that is signilic:1111 10 the fair va lue mensure111e11t as a who le) :ll the end or 
each reporting period. 

The Comp.iny's Management determines the policies and procedures for both recurring foir va lue me.isuremcnt , such ns deri vative instruments .lnd Ull(]Uotcd 
linnncial assets rncasl1rcd nl !'air value, and for 11011-rccurring measurement, such .ls .lssc1s held !Or chs1rib l1t ion i11 discontinued operations. 

Al each reporting dale , the Man.igement analyses 1he movements in 1he vnlucs of.isse ts and liabilit ies which arc required to be remeasured or re-assessed as per 
the Company's accounting pol icies. For this analysis, the Management verifies the mnjor inputs applied in the latest val uation by .igreeing the information in the 
vnluation comput.it ion to con tracts and other rclev;rnt documents. 

The management also compares the chnnge in the fair value of each asset and liabil ity with rc levan1 external sources to de termine whe ther the change is 
re:-isonable. 

On an interim bnsis, the M.inagemc111 prescn1 the valuation resulls to 1he Audit CommiHee and 1lw Company's independc111 audi tors . Tlus includes a discussion 
of the major nssump1io11s l_!sed In the valuations. 

For the purpose of fair vnluc disclosures, the Company has determined classes of .isscts and liabil111cs 011 the bns1s of the na1urc, cha rac tcns1ics and risks of the 
asse1 or liabili lue hierarchy as e.xpl,1111cd above. 

Tliis note sun rair v.ilue. Other r.iir value re.In tee\ disc losures are given in 1hc re!ev.inl notes. 
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3.03 Sign i!icanl acco111Hing judgcmcuts, cslinrnlcs ;11111 :1ssu mp1i o11 

The preparntion or 1hc Company's financinl statcmems requires nrnnngemem to mnkejudgemcnts, estimates and assumptions tlrnt affect the reported amounts of 
revenue, expenses . asscls and li nbi li1ics, nnd 1he accompnnying disclosures, nnd the disc losure of co111ingen t l_iabilities. Unccrlninty about these nssumplions 
nnd est imalcs could result in outcomes that require a material adjustmcnl to the canyi ng amount of assets or li nb il itics nffec ted in IUture years. 

Eslimnlcs :rnd nssumplious 

Esti males and underlying nssumpt ions arc reviewed on nn ongoing basis. Revis ions to accounting es timates arc recogn ised in the year in which the est imates nre 
revised and future periods arc affected . 

The key ass um ptions concerning the ruturc and other key sources or estimation unccr1ainty at the reporting d.ite, that have a significant risk of causing a 
material adjustrncnt lo the carryi ng amounts ofassc!s and liabilities within the next financial year, .ire described below. The Company based it s nssurnptions and 
estim.i tes on pnr.1meters av;iilnblc when the finan cia l statcrncnts were prepared. Exis ting circumstances and assumptions about future developments, however, 
may change due to market changes or circumsiances arising 1ha1 arc beyond the cont ro l of the Company. Such changes arc rencc ted in the nssumpt ions when 
1hcy occur. 

Ma!eria l Estimates and assumptions used in the finnncia l statements arc : 
rair va lue mc;:1surcment oftin.mcia l instruments (refer no te 25) 

3.04 Revenue rccoit nition 
The Compnny has adopted Ind AS 115. Revenue from Contracts with Customers. wi th ellCct from OJ Apri l 201S. The Company has app lied the following 
nccou nting poli cy for revenue recog1ii ti o11 : 

Hc\'e11uc from contrarrs wilh customers: 
The Company recognises revenue from contrncts with cus1omers based on a fi ve step model as se t out in Ind AS 11 5: 
Step I. lden1i fy 1he conl rnct(s) with a customer· A contracl is dclincd ns an .igreemcnt between 1wo or more parties th.it crentcs enforceable rights and 
obligat ions and sets out the criteria fo r every contr:-ict 1lw1 must be met. 

S1cp 2. Identi fy the perforrnance ob ligations i11 the con1rac1: A performance obligalion is a promise 111 a contract with n customer 10 trnnsrer a good C>r ser\"icc to 
the customer. 

Step 3. Determine 1he transac1ion price: The transaction price is 1he amount of consideration to which the Company expects to be ent itled in cxchnnge for 
transferring promised goods or services to a cus tomer, excluding amounts co\1~c1cd on bchalfoi'third panics. 

Step 4 . Allocate the transac ti on price to the performance oblign1io11s in !he contract : For a contract that h.is more than 011c performance obligation, the Company 
wi ll allocate th e transact ion price to each pcrformilnce obligation in an amount that depicts the amount of consideration to which 1he Company expects to be 
entitled in exchange for sa tisfying each performance obligat ion. 

Step 5. Recognise revenue when (or as) the entity sa tisfies a performance obligation. 

The Company sat isfies a performance obliga1io11 and recogni ses revenue over time, if one of the fo llowing criteria is met : 
I . The customer sirnullaneously receives and consumes the benefits provided by the Company's performance as the Company performs: or 
2. The Company's performance crea1cs or enhances nn asse t that the customer controls as 1he asse1 is created or enhanced; or 
J . The Company's pcrfonnance docs not create an asset wi th an nltcrnativc use 10 the Group nnd the enti ty has an enforceable right 10 payment for pe rformance 
completed to dnte. 

Revenue is measured a, the fair vnhic of the consideration recei ved or receivabl e, taking into accoun! co nt rncllHil ly defined terms of payment. 

Toll 1·evc 1111c 
The income fro m Toll co ll ect ion is recognised on the actunl co llection of toll revenue,, net or revenue share paid to NHAI as per the Concession Agreement. 

Contracl l'C\'Cllue 
Con1 ract revenue associated with the uti lity shifting incidcn1al to construction of road arc recognized as revenue by reference to the singe of complet ion of the 
projects nt the balnnce sheet date . The singe of completion of project is determi ned by the proporiion 1ha1 contrilct cost incurred for work performed up to the 
ba lance sheet date bears l o the esti mated 10ml contrac1 costs. 
The Compuni es operations involve levying oJ' GST Oil the construction work . Goods and Service t.ix 1s not received by the Company on its own accolllll , rather. 
it is lnx co ll ec ted on va lue added to the commodi ty by the seller Oil behalf of1hc government. Accordingly. i1 is excluded from revenue. 

lnl r-rc-s l income 

Fi11a11cinl instruments which arc me.1sured either at amortised cost or at foir va lue through other comprehensive income, i111crcs1 income is recorded using the 
cnCctive interes t rnte (E IR). EIR is the rate that cxnctly discounts the estimated ru1ure cash payments or receipts over the expected lifo of1he r1nancial instrurne11t 
or a shorter period, where appropriate , to the gross carrying amount of the finan cia l asset or to the amonised cos t or a financial liab ility. When calculating the 
effec tive interest rate, the Company est imates the expected cash flows by considering all !he contractual te rms of the financia l instrument (for example, 
prepayment, exlcnsion, call and similar options) but docs nol consider 1he expected crcd i1 losses. Interes t income is included in finance income in the statement 
of profit nnd loss . 

Sig11ifira111 financing component 

Generally, the Company receives shori-term ndvnnces from its I-folding Compnny. Using the practical expedient in Ind AS 11 5. 1hc Company docs not ndjusl 1he 
promised amount of consideration for the effects of a significant financing component if it expects. at contracl inception, 1hat the period between the transfer of 
1hc promised good or service to the customer and when the customer pays for that good or service wi ll be one year or less. 

NOIH'llSh co11sidera li o11 
The Company applies the requirements of Ind AS 11) Fair Value Measuremen t in measuring the fair value of 1he non- cash considerat ion. If the fa ir value 
cannot be reasonably cs tima1ed, the non-cash considera tion is measured indirec tly by reference to the stand-alone selling price of1hc EPC contracl revenue. 

Contl'act lrnlanccs 
Co111ract asscls 

A receivable represents the Group's right to an ;mwunt ofconsidcrnt ion 1hat is unconditional (1 e. only the passage of t11ne 1s required before p:1yment of' thc 
considera tion is d ue). Refer to accounting policies of linancial asse ts 111 section (t) financial ins1rumen1s - mi tin l recogni tion and subsequen t measurement. 

Tl'adc 1·cccivablcs 
A receivnble represents the Comp.u1y·s righ t to an amount of considerat ion that 1s uncondi11onal (1 c, only the passage of time is required before paymcn1 of1hc 
conside ra1ion is due). Reier to accounting policies ol' linancial nsscts III section (I) financia l inst ruments - in itia l recognit ion ,rnd subsequent me;.miremcnt 

Conlrncl li :1bililics 

A contrac t liability is t or services lo a cuslomcr for which the Company has recei ved consideration (or rin amount of 
consideration is due) fro ys considera tion before the Company tr:mslcrs goods or services to the customer. a contract liabilit 
recognised when the payn due {whicheve r is earlier). Conlrnct liabilities .ire recognised as revenue when the Comnpnny pcrfo 
under the contrnct. 
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J .05 T,n:cs 
Currcnl income tnx 
Current income lax assets and liabilities are measured at the amount expected lo be recovered from or paid to the taxation authorities. The tax rates and tax laws 
used to co111 pu1e the amount arc those that .1rc enacted or substanlive ly enacted at the reporting date in the countries where the Comp.1ny operates and 
generates taxable income. 

Current income tax relating 10 i1e111s recognised outside profit or loss is recognised Olllsidc profit or loss (e ither in other comprehensive income or in equity) 
Current t.ix items .ire recognised in correlation to 1he underlying transac1ion either in OCI or direc tl y in equity Management periodically cval u:llcs positions 
1akcn in the tax re1urns with respect to situations in which applic.1blc tax reguhuions arc subject to interpretation and eslablishcs provisions where appropriate. 

Dcfcrrccl t:1x 

Deferred tax is provided using the liabili ty met hod on 1cmporary differences between the tax bases of assels and liabili ties and 1hci r carrying amounts for 
fin ancial reporting purposes at the rcporling date. 

Dcrerrcd tax liabilities arc recognised for .tll tax.tble 1cmporn1y differences, except: 
When the deferred tax liab ility .triscs frorn the initial recognition of goodwill or an asset or li abi lity in a transaction that is not a business combination .1nd . at 
the rime of the trnnsac1ion, affects neither the .iccou nling profit nor taxable profit or loss 

Deferred tax assets are recognised for all deducti ble temporary differences. 1hc carry fo.-ward or unused tax credits and any unuscd tax loss t:s. OdCrred tax 
assets arc recognised to the extent that it is prob:ib le that taxable pro lit will be avai lable agai nst which the deduc tib le 1empora1y differences, and the carry 
forward of unused tax credits and lllluscd I.ix losses can be lJt ili sed, c.xcep1 : 

When the deferred tnx asset rck1ting to lhe dcduc1i ble ternpor;uy difference arises from the initia l rccogni 1ion of:rn asset or li abi lity in a trans.icuon that is not 
a business combinat ion and. at the lime of the transaction . .im~cts neilhcr the accounting profit nor taxable profi t or loss. 

The carrying ;.1 111olml of deferred tax assels is reviewed at each reporting dale and reduced to lhc extent that it is no longer probable th.it surticient taxabl e 
profit wi ll be available to allow all or part of the deferred t.1x asset to be uti lised. Unrecognised deferred tax assets arc re-assessed at each reporting date and are 
recognised 10 1he extent that it has become probable that future t.1 xable profi ts will allow !he deferred iax asset 10 be recovered. 

Deferred lax nssc ts .ind liabili1ics arc measure.cl a1 the tax rates th.It arc expcc1 cd to appl y in the year when lhc .isscl is realised or the liability is se ttled, based 
on tnx rates (and tnx laws) that have been ennclcd or substantively e11,1c tcd at the reporti ng dmc 

Deferred tax re lating to items recognised outside profit or loss is recogn ised ou1 sidc profil or loss (e it he r in other comprehensive income or in equi ty) . Deferred 
tax i1cms arc recogn ised in correl;11ion to the underl ying transaction either in OC I or direct ly in equity 

Deferred tax assets and deferred 1a.x liabili1ics arc otlset if a legally enforceable right e:,;ists to sc1 off current tax as sets against current lax li abili11cs .1nd 1he 
deterred taxes relate to the same taxable cnr ity and the same taxation au1hority. 

Minimum Alternate Tax (l'vlAT) 

tv1ini111u111 Altcrnalc Tax (MAT) paid ns per Indian Income Tax Ac t. 196 1 is i11 the nnture of unused tnx credit wh ich can be carried forward and u1 iliscd when 
the Company wi ll pay normal income 1ax during 1he spcci r1 cd period. Deferred ta .x ;1sscts 011 such ta .x credit 1s recognised lo the cxtent that it is prubablc that tht.• 

unused 1.1 .-.: crcdi1 can be utilised 111 the spccilicd li11urc pc.nod . The net amount of tax recoverable from. or payable 10. the taxa tion au1hori1 y is mcluded as pan of 
rcceiv.1bles or p.l)•ab les in the balance sheel. A l each □alance Sheet datc.thc carrying amoun1 or i\,IAT Credi t Entitlement rcccivablc is reviewed to reassun: 
realisation . 

J .06 J111n11gi1Jle assets 
Under the Concession Agreements. where 1hc Company has rece ived the right to charge users or the public service, such rights are recognised .1nd class11icd as 
" ln t:ingi blc Assets". Such right is not an unconditional right to recei ve considcrn ti on because the amounts arc conti ngent to the extent that the public uses the 
service and thu s arc recognised and classified as intangible asscls . Such an intangible asset is recognised by the Company at cos t (which is the fair va lue of the 
co nsideration received or receivable for the cons!niction services delivered) and is capitalized when the project is cor11pletc in all respects and when the 
companies receives the completion certificate from the authority as specified in the Concession Agreemen t. 

ln1angiblc assets acquired separately are measured on ini1 i.1 I recognition al cosl. The cost of 1111angible assets acqu ired is their fair va lue at the date of 
ncqu isitio11. r:'o ll owing initial recognition, in tangible assets arc carried at cos t less n11y accu111ul.l ted amorti sa tion .111d accumulated impa irment losses ln1enrn lly 
generated int.mg iblcs. excluding capitalised dcvclopmc n1 cos1s, arc 1101 capit.iliscd and the rcl;11cd expenditure is reflected i11 pro!i 1 or loss in the period in 
which the expcndi1ure is incurred . 

The Company exercised first time adoption cxemplion under Ind AS 101 and has elected to continue wi th the ca r11•ing va lue of' its ''Toll Collection Rights" 
(Intangible assets under development), .1s recognised in 1hc financial statements as al the date of transition measured as per lh i: previous GAA P .ind uses that as 
it s deemed cost as nt dare of 1ra 11 si ti on. 

Toll Collection Rights 

Toll co llection rights are stated al cost net of accumulated amor1isa1ion and impairment losses. Casi includes: 

Toll Collection Rights awarded by the granter against construction service rendered by 1hc company on DBf.OT basis - Direct and indirect expenses on 
co 11 s1ruction of re.ids , bridges, cul vc11s, infr.istructurc and other asse ts at the toll pl.11.as . 

Toll Collection Rights .ire a1110 11i sed over the period of concession. using revenue based .imurnsation as prescribed in Ind AS JS. Under 1h is method. the 
carrying value o f1h e righ ts is amorti sed in 1hc proportion of.1ctua l 10II revenue for 1hc year 10 pro,iec1ed re venue for the ba l.ince 10II period. to renecl the pa ttern 
in which the assets economic benefits wi ll be consumed . At e.1ch ba l.111 ce shee t da te. the prujcc ted revenue for the balance toll period is re viewed by the 
management. Jr there is any change in the projcc1ed revenue from previous csti111atcs, 1he amortisation 0 1'10II collection rights is chi111gecl prospccu vl!ly 10 rcllect 
;my changes in th e estimates 

Amortisation of lntan!!iblc r\ ssc ts 
The intangible .lssels which arc recognised in the form of Right to charge users of the infras truclu rc assel arc amortised by 1.1k ing proportion.1tc of actual revenue 
rece ived for the year over Total Projected Revenue from project to Cost of Intangible assets. The es timation of tolal projection revenue requires significanl 
nssurnption about expcc1ed growth rate and tra/li c projection for future. All asslltnptions arc reviewed at each rcponing date. 

J .07 Rcsurfocing Expenses 
The Company has .1 11 obligation 10 maintain it s roads they opernte a11d hence in additon to routi ne mainLainancc expenses, periodic maintnnance of roads is 
required to be carri ed out . Provison is made for the planned ex penditure for the pe riod, al the end of which resurfacing would be required. out of Lhc total 

·entitl ed period by the management. 

Borrowing COSIS 

□orrowing costs includes inl crcs t nnd amortisa1io11 of,rncillary cos ts incurred in com1ection wi th the arrangement of borrowings. 



Solapur Ycclcsh i Tollwny Limited 
Notes 10 !in,rncinl statement for the year ended t\1larch JI, 20:!5 

J .09 Co11ti11gc11t liabilities 
A contingelll linbility is a possible obligntion that arises from past events whose existence will be contirmed by the occurrence or non -occurrence ofcrnc or more 
u11ccrtnin future evenls beyond the control of the comp,rny or n prcscnl ob ligation rh at is not recogn ised bec.iuse it is nol probable 111.11 .in outflow of resources 
will be required to seltle 1he obligation. A contingent linbi li1 y also arises in extremely rnre cases where 1here is a liability that cnnnot be rccogmsed because II 
cannot be measured reliabl y. The Company docs nut recognise a contingent liability blll discloses its existence in the !inancial stnternents. 

3.10 Impairment or11011-fi11n11cial assets 
The Company nssesses, at ench reporting dale, whel11cr there is nn indication thnt an asset nrny be irnpnircd . If nny indicntion l! xis ts , or when annunl 
impnirment testing for an asset is required, the Company estimates the asset's recowrnble amount. An asset's recovcr.tble amount is the higher of an nsset's or 
c.tsh-genernting unit's (CGU) foir vnlue less costs of disposal and its value in use. Recovernble amount is determined for an individunl assel. unless the asset 
docs 110 1 gcncrnte cash inllows th::it nre lnrgcly independent or those from other nssc1s or Company's or nsscts . \Vhcn the carrying ;1mm111t or an nsscl or 
CGU exceeds its rccovcrnble amount , the asset is considered impaired and is written down to its recovernblc .immml. 

In nssessing vnluc in use. the estimated fuwre cash flows nrc discounted to their present va lue using a pre-1nx discou111 rate that rcllccts current markcl 
:-issessrncnts or 1hc time value of money nnd the risks specific to the nsset . In determining fair va lue less costs or disposal. recent market trnnsactions are taken 
into account. Ir no such transactions com be identified, nn appropriate v.i luation mode l is used. These cnlculntions arc corrobornte<l by valuation 111ul1iplcs, 
quoted share prices for publicly traded compnnics or other avnilnblc fair vn lue indicators. 

3.11 Provisions 
Provisions arc recognised when the Comp.iny lrns n present obligntion (legal or constructive) as n result or n past event, it is prob.ible tha1 .111 outllow of 
resources embodying economic benetils will be required 10 sellle the obligalion and n re liable estimate can be made or the amount of the obligntion. The 
expense relating to a provision is presented in the statement of profit nnd loss net oLlll)' reimbursement. 

If the effect of the time value of money is material, provisions arc discounted using a current prc-t.ix rntc 111.11 rel1ccts. when appropriate, 1he risks spcc inc lo the 
linbility. When discounting is used, the increase in the provision due 10 the pnssage of lime is recognised as a financ e cost. Provisions are reviewed at each 
balance sheet dnte nnd ;1djus1cd to rellect 1he current best cstimntes 

3.12 Cas h s11 ppo1·1 (~r:1111) from grantor 
Grnnl received nre considered as n ptut of tot.11 outlay of the construction project. The snme shall be recognize when the entity complies with the conditions 
nttnching 10 co llection of grnnt considered as a finnncial asset and it sha ll be simultaneously reduce from the cost of acquisition of the intangible asset and arc 
rl.!cogniscd. 

3.1 .1 Fin:111ci:1I i11 stn1mcnts 
A financial instrument is any co111rnct that gives rise 10 a ti11n11 cinl assel of Olli.! entity and a 1"1mrnc1al linbility or equity instrument of ;mother entity. 

Financial assets 

!11ifi11/ reco;.:11ilio1111ml mea.rnremellf 

All financial nsscls arc recognised initially nl fo1r vn luc plus, in the case of !i11nncial assets not recorded at fair value through pror1t or loss , transaction wsts 
thn t arc nttributablc 10 lhc acquisition or the finnncinl asset Purchases or sales of financial asse1s that require delivery of nsscts with in a 11me fram e 
cstnblished by regulation or convention in the mnrket place (regl!lar way trades) arc recognised on the trade date, i.e_. , the date that 1he Company commits to 
purchase or sci I the nssel. 

.\'ub.\·l!t/llC!III IIIC:tUllreme111 

The 1ncnsurcrncnt orlinancinl liabilities depends 011 their classilicntion . .is described below: 
For purposes of subsequent mcnsure111cn1, fin.incial assets arc classi!ied in four c.itegorics: 
Debt instruments nt amortised cost 
Ol!bt instruments at fair value through other comprehensive income (fVTOCI) 
Debi instnm1ents. derivatives and equity instruments nl fair v:due through profit or loss (FVTPL) 
Eciuity instruments measured al fair va lue through ot her comprehensive incornc (FVTOCI) 

!.om,.r anti borro11·i11:.:.r 

This is the cntegory most rclcv.int to the Company. Aller initial recognition, interest-be.iring loans nnd borrowings arc subscciucntly measured nt amortised cost 
l1si11g the EIR method. However, the company has borrowings at floating ralcs. Considering th.ii the impact ofrcstntcmcnt or effective interest rate , year on year 
due to reset of interest rale, is not miltcrial and hence the company is nmortising the transaction cos t in straight line basis over the lcnure of the concession 
period. Gains and losses arc recognised in profit or loss when the linbilities nre dcrecogniscd as we ll ns through the tra11s.1ction cost nmor1isation process . This 
ca tegory generally :1pplies 10 borrowings . 

/)erec:o:.:11ifio11 

A linnncial ;1sset (or, where npplic,1ble, n pnrt of' n financial asset or pnrt or a compnny or similnr !innncial usscts) is pri111arily den:cogn ised ( i c removed 
Ii-om the Compnny's balance sheet) when: 

The rights to receive cash flows from the assel have expired, or 
The Comprmy has trnnsfcrred its rights to receive cnsh flows from the asset or has assumed an obligation to pay the received cash flows in rull withou1 mnterial 
lay 10 a third party under a 'pass-through' arrangement; and either (a) the Company has transferred substantially all the risks and rewnrds or the asset, or (b) the 
Company has neither tr.-insferrcd nor rctnincd subst.lntially all the risks and rewards of the asset, but has transforred control of the nsset. 

V/hi.:11 the Company lrns trnnsfcrrcd i1s righ ts 10 receive cnsh flows from an nssct or has entered i111u a pass-through arr.ingerncnt. it eva luntes if and to what 
extent it hns reta ined the ri sks and rcwnrds of ownership. \Vhcn 11 has ncithi!r transferred nor retained substnnt1illly all or the risks ,md rewards o fthi! asset, nor 
transl'Crred cont ro l of the nsse1, the Company contmucs to recogn ise the transforrcd .issct to the extent orthc Company's continuing in volvement. 111 that c;;1se, 
the Company also recognises an associated linbility. The trn11sforred asset and the associn1cd linbility nrc mcnsurcd on a bnsis thnl reflects th!! rights nnd 
obligations that the Compnny has retnincd . 

/111p11ir111e11I t?ffi11t111c:iul ax.rcls 

Trnde reccivnblc: 
The company Management has evalualcd the 1mpnirment provision rcqu1remen1 under IND As 109 and has li sted down below major fac ts for 1rndc and other 
rcccivnbles impnirment provisioning: 

Trade recei vables majority pcrtnin 10 Government receivables. Hence there is no mnjor risk ofbnd debts . 



Soblpur Ycdeshi Tollw:1y Limited 
Notes to financial Sli.ltemenl for the year ended March 31, 2025 

Other Fi11:111ci:1I Assets: 
O1her Fin:rncial Assets mainly consists of Lo.ins to employees and Security Deposit and other deposits, interest accrued on Fixed Deposi1s. loans 10 related party, 
□ ank Guc1rn11tcc Margin reccivt1ble from related party. Retention money receiv.ible from NHAI. Grant receivable from NI-IAI and other receivables .ind 
advances measured at amortized cost. 

Followi ng arc the policy for specific fimrncial assets:-

Tyne or fi111111cial asset 

Sccurily Depos it 

Loans/ Bank guarantee to related party 

Retention money / Grnnt receivable 

lmpnin11c11t of finnncinl ;1sscts 

Securily deposit is in 1hc na1 ure of statuto1y deposits like clcc1ric ity, 1clcphonc deposits. Since they arc ke pt wi th 
Government bodies, there is low risk. 

Loan/ Bank Guarantee to group companies arc considered to be good and there arc neither been any past 
inslnnces of default and also management doesn't expecl any default in case of group receivables. 

Retention money/ grnnt m.ijorly perlain to Government receivables. Hence there is no major risk of bad debls . 

In accordance • with Ind AS I 09, the group applies expected credit loss (ECL) model for mcasurcmenl and rccogni1io11 or impainncn1 loss on 1hc followmg 
financinl .isse ts and credit risk exposure 

a) Financial assets that ;;ire debt instruments, and :,.re measured <1l .irnortised cost e.g., loans. debt securities. deposits, tradiJ reci.:ivables a11d bank balance 

b) Financial assets that .ire debt insmuncnts and arc measured as at FVTOCI 
c) Lease rcccivnblcs under Ind AS 17 
d) Trade receivables or any contrac1unl righ1 10 rece ive cash or another r111ancial asset tlrnt result from transactions that arc within the scope ol"lnd AS 11 
:i.nd Ind AS 18 (referred to as 'contrac!Ual revenue receivables' in these illustrative linnncial statements) 

e) Loan commi1111ents which arc not measured as ,u FVTPL 
I) Financial gunr:mtcc contracts which arc not measured as at FVTPL 

The comp:,.ny docs not have ,my purchased or origin,ued credit-impaired (POCI) tin:rncial asscls. i.e .. financial .1sscts which ;:tre crcdil impaired on purchase/ 
originalion. 

ECL i111pairme11t loss allowance (or revers,il) recognized during the period is recognized as i11conie/ c.-..:pcnse in the statcmcnt of pror11 and loss tP&L). Thi s 
arnou111 is reflected under the he.id 'other expenses' in 1hc P&L. 

Financial assets measured ns at amort ized cost and other contractual revenue rccciv.tblcs• ECL is presented as an allowance, i.e., as an integral part of the 
measurement of those assets in the b.ilancc sheet. The allowance reduces the net carrying amount. Until 1hc asset meets wri1c-off cntcria. 1hc group docs not 
reduce impairment allowance from the gross carrying amount. 

fin.incinl assets measured at FYTOCI • Financial assets that arc debt instrumcnls arc measured at FVTOCI. ECL amount is presented as 'accumulated 
impairmcnl amount' in the OCI. 

Fi11:111cial li:tbilitics 

J,,itiul rec:o;:,,ition mu/ met1.\'Uremcltl 

financial li.ibilities .ire classified, .it initial recogniti on. ,is financial liabiliiies nt foir v.1! uc through profit or loss, loans and borrowings. trade pay:1b les nnd other 
payables. 

All financial liabilities arc recognised initially at fair va lue and, in the case of loans and borrowings and p.1yablcs, nel or dircc1ly auri butablc 1ransac11on costs. 

The Comp;my's financial liabilities include tr;,de and other pay.ibles. loans and borrowings including bank overdra!ts and other payables. 

S11bscque11t 111casurcme111 
The measu rement of financial liabili1i es depends 011 their classification. as described below: 

Financial liabilities at fair value through JJrofil or loss 
Financial liabilities al foir value lhrough profit or loss include linancial liabilit ies held for trading and linancial li.tbilities designated upon initial rccogni1 ion as at 
r:1ir va llic through profit or loss. Finnncial liabilities arl! classified ,is held for trading if they an: incurred for the purpose or repurchasing in the ni:a r term . Tl11s 
category illso includes derivative li11nnc1.il ins1rurncn1s entered i1110 by the group that arc not designa ted ns hedging ins1 ru111ents in hedge relnt1011sh1ps as dcr1ncd 
by Ind AS I 09 . Separated embedded dCrivativcs .ire nlso classi fied as held for 1rading unless they arc designated as effective hedging instruments. 

/ ,011u.,· and horroll'i11::.,· 

This is 1hc c,ucgo1y most relevant 10 the Company. i\ficr initial recognition. interes t•bc:uing loans and borrowings arc subsequcrllly measured at amortised cos t 
using the EIR method . However, the comprmy has borrowings nt noating rates. Considering 1hat the impact ofrcslatement of effective interest rnte , year on year 
due to reset of interest rate, is not material and hence the company is amortising the transaction cost in straight line basis over the tenure of the loan . Gains and 
losses nrc recognised in pro lit or loss when the liabilities arc derccogniscd as we ll as through the transaction cost nrnortisation process. 

This category generally applies to borrowings. 

/)ercc:o;.:11itio11 

A financial liability is derccogniscd when the obligation under the linbility is discharged or cancelled or c:•q>ircs. When an existing fin.tncial liability is 
replaced by another from the same lender on substant ially different terms, or the terms oran cxis1ing liability .ire substantially modified. such an exchange or 
modi fication is treated as the dcrecognition of the origi nal liability .:ind the recognition of a new linbility. The difference in the respective carrying amounts is 
recognised in the sHllcment of profit or loss 

Reclassilicntion of li11:111cial assets 
The Company determines clnssification offi11.111cial nsscts and !i.ibilitics 011 initial recognition. Alier initial recognition. no rcclassilicntio11 is made for r111ancial 
assets which arc equity instruments and linancial liabilities. for financial assets which arc debt instruments, i1 reclassification is made onl}' if there is a change in 
the business mode l for managing those assc1s. Chnnges to the business model are expected 10 be infrequent. The Company's senior m.inagcmcnc determines 
ch:mge in the business model as a result of external or internal changes which arc signi licnnl 10 the Company's operations. Such changes are evident to 
cxlcrnnl parties. A change in the business 111odcl oc~urs when the Co111p.1ny ci1hcr begins or censcs to pcrfor111 an ac1ivity that is sig11ificant to Its operations. If 
the Company reclassifies linancial asse1s. it applies the rcclassitica1io11 prospec1i ve ly from the rcclassilica t1 011 date which is the lirst day of 1hc 11111111.'d iatcly nexl 
repor1i11g period following thi: change in busini:ss model. The Company docs 1101 rcst.i tc any prenously recognised g.tins. losses (including impair111c111 ga ins or 
losses) or interest 



Solapur Ycdcshi Tollw:iy Limilcd 
Notes to financial statement for the year ended rv1arch 31. ~025 

The followin~ table shows various reclassification and how they arc accounted for· 
Oril!innl classification Revised classific,11io11 Acco1111ti11c trl'atmcnt 

Amortised cost FVTPL 

FVTPL Amortised cost 

Amortised cos t FVTOCI 

FVTOCI Amortised COSI 

FVTPL FVTOCI 

F\ITOCI FVTPL 

Offsetting or financial i11stn1111cnts 

Fair v.tlue is measured al reclassification d.ilc. Difference between previous 
amortized cost and fair value is recognised in P&L. 

Fair value at reclnssific.1tion date becomes its new gross carrying amount. EIR is 
ca lculat ed based on the new gross carrying amount 

Fai r va lue is measured al reclassification date. DiITcrcnce between previous amorliscd 
cost and foir value is recogmsed 111 OCl. No change in EIR due to rec l;1ssilicauo11 . 

rair va lue at reclassification d.1te becomes us new amortised cost carrying amount. 
However, cum ul;'!L ive gain or loss in OC I is ;1djl1Stcd .igainst foir vrd ue. Conscciucntly, lhe 
asset is measured as ifit had .ilways been rnc.1surcd at amortised cost. 

F11ir v.1lue al reclassilicmion da1e becomes its new carrying amount. No other ndjus1mc11t 
is reCJuired. 

Assets cont inue to be measured foir value. Cumulat ive gai n or loss previously recognized 
in OCI is reclassified to P&L nt the reclassification da1e. 

Fin.incial assets and financial liabi lities arc offset and the net amount is report ed in the bnlancc sheet if there is a currently enforceable legal righ1 10 ollSc1 1hc 
recognised amounts and there is an intention to seu lc on n net basis, to realise the assets and settle the liabilities simultaneously. 

3.14 Jmpnirmcnt of rinnncial nsscts 
The Company assesses on ., forwnrd looking basis the expected credit losses .tssociated wi 1h i1s assets carried nt ;1111ortiscd cost and FVTOCI dcb1 111s1rurnc n1s 
The imp.:1innen1 rne1hodology .tpplied depends on whether there has been a significant incrcnse in credit ri sk. 
For trade receivables 01 1ly, the Company npplies the simplified appro;1ch permit1cd by Ind AS 109 r=inancial l11strurncnts. which reciuires expected lifetime losses 
to be recognised from ini1ial recognition of the receivables. 

3. 15 C:1sh and cash cquiv:1le11ts 
Cash and cash equivalent in the balance sheet comprise cash at banks and on hand and short•tcrm deposits wi th an origin.i i inn tu rity of three months or less, 
which arc subject to an insignificant risk of changes in value. 

For the purpose ofthiJ sla1e111ent ofc.,sh Hows. cnsh and cash C(]l1ivalen1s consist ofc;1sh nnd shon•tcr111 deposits. as dcli ncd .ibovc, net ofou1swnding b.111k 
overdrnfls .is they arc considered an in tegral part of1hc Company's cash management. 

J . 16 Enrn ings per share 

Dasie earnings per share arc calculated by dividing the ne1 profit or loss for 1he period allribu tablc 10 eciu1ty sh.1rcholdcrs by the weighted average number of 
CC] uity shares oulslnnding during the period. 

For the purpose of calcu lating diluted cnrnings per share, the net prolit or loss for the period attribu1able 10 CC]Uily shareholders 1111d 1he weigh ted .1 vcrnge 
number or shares ou1standing during the period arc adjusted for the crTccts of all diluti ve potential CC]Uity shares. 

3. 17 Scgmcnl info1·111:11io11 
The Company is engaged in " Ila.id Infrastructure Projcc1 s" which in the contexl of Ind AS 108 • Operating Segments is considered as the only scginc111. The 
Company's activities are rcs1ricted wilhin India and hence no separnti! gwgraphica l segment disclosuri! is considered neccss.it)' 

3.18 1'Ja1eri;1I :1cco1111ti11g JlOlicy i11for111:t1ion 

The Compnny adopted Disclosurc of Accounling Policies ( Amendments to Ind AS I) from I Apnl 20:23. Although 1he amendments did 1101 result in any 
changes in the .iccounting policies themselves, the impacted the accounting policy inform.it ion disclosed in the r111ancinl statemenls 

The amendments require the disclosure of"material' rather 1han 'signif"lcant' accounting policies. The amendments also provide guidance on the .1pplicn1ion of 
ma1erially 10 disclosure of accounting policies, assisting cnlitics to provide useful , entity specific accounting policy informalion that users need to undersland 
other information in the financial sta tements. 

3.19 Amendment in Ind AS llml ils efTeclivc 
r,.,1inistry of Corporate Affairs ("MCA'') notifies new standards or nmend111ents 10 the cxis1ing stand.1rds under Companies (Indian Accounting Standards) Rules 
ns issued from time to time. For the year ended l\farcl, 31, 2025, tvlCA has 1101 notified any new stancbrds or amendments to 1hc cxis1ing standards .1pplicable to 
the Company. 

To,,.,. 
.~ $ 

' ............... r'"§ 



Solapur Yedeshi Tollway Limited 

Notes to accounts for the year ended March 31, 2025 

Note 4: Other Intangible Assets 

Other Intangible Assets 

As at March 31, 2024 

Additions 

Disposals/ Adjustments 

As at March 31, 2025 

Amortisation 

As at March 31, 2024 

Additions 

Disposals/ Adjustments 

As at March 31, 2025 

Net Book value 

As at March 31, 2024 

Additions 

Disposals/ Adjustments 

As at March 31, 2025 

(~ in Millions) 

Toll collection to right Total 

13,748.55 13,748.55 

13,748.55 13,748.55 

Toll collection to right Total 

(749.90) (749.90) 

(138.26) (138.26) 

(888.16) (888.16) 

Toll collection to right Total net block 

12,998.65 12,998.65 

(138.26) (138.26) 

12,860.39 12,860.39 



Solapur Yedeshi Tollway Limited 

Notes to Financial Statements for the Year ended March 31, 2025 

Financial assets 

Note 5: Investments 

Current 

Investments in Mutual Funds (quoted) (FVTPL) 

( LIC MF Liquid Fund - Direct Plan-G- Mar 31, 2025 - 9261 .73 Units) 

Total 

Note 6: Trade receivable 

(Unsecured, considered good, unless otherwise stated) 

Current 

- others 

Total 

Note 7: Other financial assets 

Current 

Interest accrued on fi xed deposits 

Retention money receivable 

- from NHAI & others 

Other receivables 

- other parties 

Security and other deposits 

Balance with government authorities 

Total 

Note 8: Deferred Tax {net) 

Deferred tax liabilities 

Difference in depreciation and block of assets 

Fair valuation on current investments 

Total 

Deferred tax assets 

Effect of expenditure debited to profit and loss account in the current period 

but allowed for tax purposes in following periods 

Resurfacing Expenses 

Tax losses 

Total 

Net deferred tax assets/ {liabilities) 

March 31, 2025 

(Audited) 

18.01 

18.01 

0.88 

0.88 

0.70 

7.70 

7.57 

0.50 

19.85 

36.32 

730.39 

730.39 

53 .51 

676.88 

730.39 

('\ in Millions) 

March 31, 2024 

(Audited) 

0.47 

29 .93 

4 .25 

0.50 

15.64 

50.79 



Solapur Yedeshi Tollway Limited 

Notes to Financial Statements for the Year ended March 31, 2025 

Note 9: Other assets 

Non-current 

Prepaid expenses 

Total 

Current 

Mobilisation and other advance 

{Unsecured, considered good, unless otherwise stated) 

Advance given to suppliers 

- others 

Duties and taxes receivable 

Prepaid expenses 

Total 

Note 10: Cash and cash equivalents 

Cash on hand 

Balances with banks : 

- In current accounts 

- In escrow accounts 

Total 

Note 11: Other bank balances 

Major maintainance reserve account with banks/ earmarked balance 

- Maturity more than 3 months but less than 12 month 

Deposits with banks 

Maturity upto 12 month 

Total 

Bank deposits are marked lien/ pledged against the non current secured loan 

as per term loan agreement with the lender, further the lenders have first 

Note 12: Current tax assets (net) 

Advance income tax (net of provision for tax ) 

Total 

March 31, 2025 

(Audited) 

2.66 

2.66 

3.39 

3.45 

6.84 

0.85 

2.53 

9.41 

12.79 

336.10 

2.00 

338.10 

15.43 

15.43 

(~ in Millions) 

March 31, 2024 

(Audited) 

7.28 

0.30 

6.93 

14.51 

0.91 

13.35 

26.20 

40.46 

520.00 

2.00 

522.00 

11.73 

11.73 



Solapur Yedeshi Tollway Limited 

Notes to Financial Statements for the Year ended March 31, 2025 

Note 13 : Equity 

A) Equity share capital 

a) Authorised share capital 

At the beginning of the Year 

Increase/ (decrease) during the Year 

At the end of the Year 

b) Issued, subscribed and paid up equity share capital 

Equity share of Rs. 10 each issued, subscribed and fully paid up 

At the beginning of the Year 

Increase/ (decrease) during the Year 

At the end of the Year 

c. Terms/ rights attached to equity shares 

As at 

March 31, 2025 

982.50 

982.50 

March 31, 2025 

982.50 

982.50 

(' in Millions) 

As at 

March 31, 2024 

982.50 

982.50 

March 31, 2024 I 

982.50 

982.50 1 

The Company has only one class of equity shares having par value of ~ 10/- per share. Each holder of equity shares is entitled to one vote per share. In the event of liquidation 

of the Company, the holders of equity shares will be entitled to receive remaining assets of the Company, after distribution of all preferential amounts. The distribution will be in 

proportion to the number of equity shares held by the shareholders. 

d. Reconciliation of shares outstanding at the beginning and at the end of the reporting period. 

equity shares of Rs 10 each issued subscribed and fully paid 

At the beginning of the Year 

Increase/ (decrease) during the Year 

At the end of the Year 

Shareholding of promotor 

Details of Promoter 

IRB Infrastructure Trust 

Subordinated debt 

I 
1
IAt the beginning of the Year 
Increase/ (decrease) during the Year 
At the end of the Year 

Note: 14 Other Equity 

Attributable to the equity holders 

1. Retained earnings 

At the beginning of the Year 

Profit/(loss) for the Year 

Total retained earnings 

Total Other Equity 

March 31, 2025 

No. of shares Rs. in Millions 

9,82,50,000.00 982.50 

9,82,50,000.00 982.50 

March 31, 2025 

No. of shares % of total share 

9,82,50,000 100% 

March 31, 2024 

No. of shares Rs. in Millions I 
9,82,50,000.00 982.50 

9,82,50,000.00 982.50 I 

March 31, 2024 

No. of shares 

9,82,50,000 ! 

March 31, 2025 

March 31, 2025 

(3,128.31) 

(818.45) 

(3,946.76) 

(3,946.76) 

% of total share 

100% 

March 31, 2024 

4,423.70 

(4,423 .70) 

'{ in Millions 

March 31, 2024 

(2,283.71) 

(844.60) 
(3,128.31) 

(3,128.31) 



Solapur Yedeshi Tollway Limited 

Notes to Financial Statements for the Year ended March 31, 2025 

Financial liabilities 

Note 15: Borrowings 

Non-current 

Secured 

Non-convertible debentures - Others 

Sub Total (a) 

Less : Unamortised transaction cost 

Unsecured 

Loan from related parties 

- interest bearing 
Subordinated debt 
- Interest bearing 

Sub Total (b) 

Total (a to b) 

Terms & condition 
a.Secured 

March 31, 2025 

(Audited) 

5,910.00 

5,910.00 

(48.62) 

4,000.00 

3,633.40 
7,633.40 

13,494.78 

("{ in Millions) 

March 31, 2024 

(Audited) 

5,910.00 
5,910.00 

(66.85) 

4,000.00 

4,209.67 

8,209.67 

14,052.82 

i) Secured by first charge on the movable I immovable asset by way of mortgage/ hypothecation, first charge on all intangible assets. present 
and future, save and except the project assets and the· lirst charge on borrower's account, including but not limited to the Escrow Account and 
the Sub-Accounts (or any account in substitution thereof} funds deposited from time to lime (including reserves) , permitted investments or 
other securities rep resenting all amounts credited to the Escrow Account and receivables to the extent or the walerl'a ll or priority or payments lo 
the lenders under Escrow Account agreement. 

ii) Term loans have been refinanced during the financial year 2022-23 and Debentures have been issued 
iii) Pledge of shares held by the major shareholder aggregating 51 % of the total paid-up equity share capital of the Company. 

iv) First charge on the Escrow Account, Debt Serv ice Reserve Account and any other reserves and other bank accounts or the Company. 

iv) Rate of interest on indian rupee loan from banks and financial institutions is MCLR Rate + Spread , term loan repayable in 195 monthly 
structured insta lments w.e.fApril O I , 2018 as speci li ed in the repayment schedu le of the term loan agreement. 

v) Rate of interest on NCO from financial institution is Coupon Rate, NCO redemption , Tranche I & Tranche 2 - Series 2A in September 2027 
& Series 28 to be repaid in 24 installments from November 2027. 

b. Unsecured 

The loan from related parties shall be repayable in untreated installments as per terms of the agreements. 

Borrowing 

Current 

Interest accrued but not due on borrowings 

Total 

2,457.94 1,342.15 

2,457.94 1,342.15 



Solapur Yedeshi Tollway Limited 

Notes to Financial Statements for the Year ended March 31, 2025 

Note 16: Trade Payables 

Current 

total outstanding dues of micro enterprises and small small enterprises 

b) total outstanding dues of creditors other than micro and small enterprises 

- related parties 

- others 

Total 

Note 17: Other financial liabilities 

Non-current 

Retention money payable 

- others 

Total 

Current 
Due to directors 

Retention money payable 

- related parties 

- others 

Deposit 

Revenue share payable to NHAI 

Other payables 

Other Payable to related parties 

Total 

March 31, 2025 

(Audited) 

5.57 

0.86 

4.72 

11.15 

0.59 

0.59 

0.10 

25.93 

22.84 

0.11 

31.25 

80.23 

(, in Millions) 

March 31, 2024 

(Audited) 

2.08 

11 .20 

13.28 

0.16 

22 .12 

24.38 

0.11 

28.14 

4 .89 

79.80 



Solapur Yedeshi Tollway Limited 

Notes to Financial Statements for the Year ended March 31, 2025 

Note 18: Provisions 

Non-current 

- resurfacing expenses 

Total 

At the beginning of the year/ period 

Add:- Provision during the year / period 

Less:- Utilised during the year/ period 

Less :Current Maturity 

At the end of the year / period 

March 31, 2025 

(Audited) 

12.32 

12.32 

103 .57 

102.25 

193 .50 

12.32 

(~ in Millions) 

March 31, 2024 

(Audited) 

103 .57 

103.57 

198.95 

88.52 

183 .90 

103.57 

The above provisions are based on current best estimation of expenses that may be required to fulfil the resurfacing obligation as 

per the service concession agreement with the National Highways Authority of India. The actual expense incurred at the end of 

the period may vary from the above . No reimbursement are expected from any sources against the above obligation . 

Current 

- resurfacing expenses 193.50 183.90 

Total 193.50 183.90 

Note 19: Other liabilities 

Current 

Advance from customer 

- others 2.03 

Statutory dues payable (including PF, TDS, GST & others) 5.17 6.40 

Total 5.17 8.43 



Solapur Yedeshi Tollway Limited 

Notes to Financial Statements for the Year ended March 31, 2025 

Note 20 : Revenue From Operations 

Contract Revenue 

Income arising out of toll collection 

Less: Revenue share to NHAI- Fastag 

Total 

Note 21 : Other income 

Interest income on 

Bank deposits 

Others 

Profit on sale of investments (net) 

Fair value gain on investments 

Other non operating income 

Total 

Note 22 : Road work and site expenses 

Contract expenses 

Operation and maintenance expenses 

Site and other direct expenses 

Technical consultancy & supervision charges 

Total 

Note 23 : Finance costs 

Interest expense 

- Debentures 

- on loan from related parties 

Other borrowing cost 

- Unwinding of discount on provision of MMR 

Amortisation of transaction cost 

Other finance costs 

Total 

Note 24 : Depreciation and amortisation expenses 

Amortisation on intangible assets 

Total 

Year ended 

March 31, 2025 

(Audited) 

16.18 

1,229.50 

(8.33) 

1,237.35 

30.85 

0.25 

3.80 

0.01 

13.18 

48.09 

12 .61 

256.79 

1.81 

271.21 

511.67 

1,115.79 

32 .05 

18.23 

3.34 

1,681.08 

138.26 

138.26 

(, in Millions) 

Year ended 

March 31, 2024 

(Audited) 

77 .70 

1,272 .76 

(10.3 0) 

1,340.16 

54.68 

0.25 

4.77 

0.06 

59.76 

77 .70 

245 .14 

3 .35 

326.19 

513.51 

1,192.25 

22 .18 

13.79 

1.19 

1,742.92 

156.93 

156.93 



Solapur Yedeshi Tollway Limited 

Notes to Financial Statements for the Year ended March 31, 2025 

Note 25 : Other expenses 

Rent 

Rates & taxes 

Insurance 

Legal and professional expenses 

Director sitting fees 

Travelling & conveyance 

Miscellaneous expenses 

Payment to auditor {refer note below) 

Bank charges 

Total 

Payment to auditor 

As auditors: 

- Statutory audit fees 

- Limited review fees 

- Other services (certification fees) 

In other capacity : 

Reimbursement of expenses 

Total 

Note 26 : Tax expenses 

Current tax 

Total 

Year ended 

March 31, 2025 

(Audited) 

0.05 

0.45 

0.08 

9.54 

0 .46 

2.08 

0.19 

0.49 

13.34 

0.16 

0.21 

0.08 

0 .04 

0.49 

('~ in Millions) 

Year ended 

March 31, 2024 

(Audited) 

0.04 

0 .10 

0 .09 

16.81 

0.37 

0.03 

0.21 

0 .36 

18.01 

0.07 

0.11 

0.18 

0.36 

0.47 

0.47 



Solapur Vedeshi Tollway Limited 

Notes to financial statement for the year ended March 31, 2025 

Note 27: Earnings per share (EPS) 

Basic EPS amounts am calculated by dividing the profit for the period ;ntributable to equity shareholders by the weighIed average number or Equity sha res outstanding during the year . 

Diluted EPS amounts are calculated by dividing Ihe profit amibuIable to equily shareholders by the weighIed average number of Equity shares ouIs1andinc during the period plus 1he weighted 

ilverage number of Equity shares that would be issued on conversion of alt the dilutive po1ential Equity shares into Equity $hilres . 

The fa/lowing reflects the income and sh.ire data used in the b.isic .ind diluted EPS computations: 

Profit .it1ribuIable to equity holders for bJsic earnings 

Weighted average number of Equity shares for basic EPS• 

Face value per share (in Rs. ) 

Basic earning per sha re (in Rs.) 

( ii: in Millions) 

Vear ended Marett 31, Year ended March 31, 

2025 2024 

(818.1\S) 

9,82,50,000 

10.00 

18.33) 

(8411.60) 

9,82,50,000 

10.00 

18.60) 

• There hilve been no other trans;ic:tions involving Equity shares or potential equity sh.ires between the reporting dale ;ind the date of authoris.ition of these fin.inciill 51,ltements . 

Note 28 : Details of dues to micro and small enterprises as per MSMEO Act, 2006 

Under the Micro, Small and Medium Enterprises Development Act, 2006 ('MSMED') which came into force from 2 October 2006, certain disclosures are required to be made reli>ting to Micro, Small 

and Medium enterprises. On the basis of the information and records availi>ble with the management, there are no outst.inding dues to the Micro and Small enterprises as defined in the Micro, 

Sm.ill Medium Enterprises Development Act, 2006 as set out in the following disclosures. 

The disc losure in re spect of the amount pJyilb!e to enterprises whic h h;ive provided goods ilnd services to the company and which qu;i!ify under !he definition of micro ;ind small ente rprises, JS 

defined under Micro, Small ilnd Medium Enterprises Development Act, 2006 h.is been milde in the lnd AS financi;il Sliltement as at March 31, 2025 based on the information received and ;iv;iilable 

with the company. 

Particulus 

Principal ilmount rcm;iining unp;iid to any supp lier ilS ,11 the period end 

Interest due thereon 

Amount of interest paid by the Company in Icrms of section tG of the MSMED Act, 2006 (27 of 2006), 

along with the amount of the payment m.ide to !he supplier beyond the appointed day durinr, each 

accounting yeilr/period 

Amount of /merest due and p;iyable for the period of delay in m.iking payment (which hilve been p.iid 

but beyond the ;ippointcd d;iy during the year) but without adding the interest specified under the 

MSMED, 2006 

Amount of inIerest accrued and remaining unpaid at the end of the accoun1ing year/period 

The amount of further interest remaining due and payable even in the succeeding ye.irs, until such dJte 

when the interest dues as above arc .ictually paid to the smillt enterprise for the purpose of 

disallow.ince as a deductible expenditure under the MSMED Act, 2006 

a) MSME at;eing schedule as at 

Particulars 

MSME Undispu ted Dues 
Lessthilnlyeilr 

1·2 Years 

2-3 Years 

Morethan3yeilfs 
Total dues to micro and small enterprise s as per MSMEO Act, 2006 

b) Ar,cing of creditors other than micro enterprises and small enlerprises as al 

Parllculars 

Less lh;in I yeilr 

1·2Ye.irs 

2-3 Years 

More than 3 
ToIal dues to creditors other than micro ente,prises and sma ll enterprises as al 

c) out of the above unbilled amount 

Note 29: Falr Values 

As at 

March31,2025 

5.57 

Year ended March 31, 

2025 

5.57 

5.S7 

Asal 

March 31 , 202S 

3.37 

2.21 

5.58 

1.82 

{ !\in Millions} 

As at 

March3l,2024 

( \in Millions) 

Year ended March 31, 

2024 

I \in Millions) 

Asal 

March 31, 2024 

10.19 

2.06 

1.02 

13.28 

3.24 

The carryinc values of rinancials insuuments of the Company are reasonable and appro•imalions of fair values. 

Particulars 

Financial assets 

Financial_assets measured .it amonjs~d cost 
Lo;ins 

Others 
Trnde Receivable 

C;ish and c.ish equivalents 

01her than Bank balance 

FinJncial as 5ets measured <H f.iir value through 

Investments 

Financial liabilities 

Financi.il l iabilities measured at ;imortised cosl 

Trade pJyilbles 

Borrowincs 

Otherfinilnci;il li;ibilities 

I 

I 

Carrying amount 

As at 

March 31, 2025 

36.32 

0.88 

12.79 

338.10 

18.00 

11.15 

15,952.72 

80.82 

As at 

March 31, 2024 

50.79 

40.46 

522.00 

13.28 

15,394.98 

79.80 

(~in Millions) 

F.iirValue 

Asat Asat 

March 31, 2025 Match 31, 2024 

36.32 

0.88 
12.79 

338 .10 

18.01 

11.15 

15,952.72 

80.82 

50.79 

40.46 

S22.00 

13.28 

15,]911.98 

79.80 



Solapur Yedeshi Tollway Limited 

Notes to financial sta tement for the year ended March 31, 202S 

The milnt1gement assessed thilt c.ish and c.ish equiv<1lents, tr.ide receiv<1bles, 1rade pilyilbles, b.ink overdr.ifts .ind other current liabilities apprmtimate their c.irrying amounts largely due to the short• 
term m.iturities of these Instruments. 

Note 30: Fair Value Hierarchy 

All fin.incial Instruments for which fair value is recocnised or disclosed are categorised within the fair v.ilue hier.irchy described .is follows. based on the lowes1 level Input that Is significant to the fair 
value me<1surementas a whole. 

Level 1: Quoted (un<1djustcd) price is active market for identicJI i'JSSets or liabilities. 
Level 2: Valuation technique for which the lowest level input that has a signific.int crtect on the fair value measurement ;ue observed, either dire~tly or indirectly. 

l evel 3: Valuation technique for which the lowest level input hils il significan1 effect on the fair value measurement is not based on observable milrket da1a. 

M.irch31,2025 
Financlal asscls 
Investments in Mutuill Funds 
Other financial assets 
Trade Receivable 
C.ish and cash equivalents 
Other than B;rnk bal.incc 

Flnancialliabilities 
Trade payables 
Borrowings 
Other financial liabilities 

March 31, 2024 
Financial assets 
Investments in Mutual Funds 
Other financial asseu 
Trade Receivable 
Cilsh and c.ish equivalents 
Other than Sank balance 

Financial liabilities 
Trade payables 
Borrowings 
Other financi<1l li<1bilities 

Note 31: Financial risk man<1cement objectives and policies 

18.01 

36.32 
0.88 

12.79 
338.10 

11.15 

15,952. 72 

80.82 

50.79 

~OA6 
522.00 

13.28 
15,394.98 

79.80 

Le.,,ell 

18.01 

Level 2 Lcvel3 

36.32 
0.88 

12.79 

338.10 

11.15 
15,952.72 

80.82 

50.79 

40.46 
522.00 

13.28 
15,394.98 

79.80 

The Comp<1ny's risk management policies <1re established to identify <1nd analyse the risks foced by the Company, to set appro1uiate risk limits .ind controls. and to monitor risks and adherence to 

limits. Risk management policies and systems are reviewed regutafly to reflect changes in market condi tions and the Company's .ictivities. 

The Ooard of Directors has overall respons ibility for the establishment and oversight of the Company's dsk management framework. 

In performlng its operiltinr,, investing and financing .ictivlties, the Compilny is exposed to the Credit risk, liquidity risk and Currency risk. 

MarketAisk 

Market risk is the risk that the fair value of future cash flows of a financial instrument will fluctuate because of changes in market prices. Market risk comprises three types of risk: interest rate risk, 
currency risk and other price risk, such as equity price risk and commodity risk. Financial instruments affected by market risk include loans and borrowings, deposits, FVTOCI investments and 
derivative financial instruments. 

The following t.ible summarize the carryinc .imount of financi;il assets and liabilities recorded ilt the end of 1t1e period bv C3tegories : 

Interest R:itc Risk 

As infrastructure development and construction business is capi1.il intensive, the comp.iny are exposed 10 interest r.ite risks. The company's infrastrunure development and construction projects are 
funded to a large extent by debt and any increase in interest expense may h.ive an adverse effect on our resulls of operations and financial condi1ion. The companv curren t debt facililfes carry 

interest at variable rates as well as fixed rates with the provision for periodic reset of interest r.ites. As of M.irch 31, 2025, the m.ijority of the company indebtedness was subject to vnri,>ble interest 
rates . In view of the hich debt 10 equity rat ios for the comp,>ny's infrastructure development projects, an incre.ise in interest expense i~ likely to have a sicnific.ini .idverse effect on fin.incial remits. 

The comp<1ny i~ selectively enc.inc in interest r<1te hedginc tr ans;ictions from time to time ta protect .:ir,ains1 interest r.ite risks. 

The interest rate risk exposure is mainly from changes in fixed and floaling interest ra tes. The interest rate are disclosed in the respective notes 10 1he fin.:inci.:il statement of the Company. The 
following table analyse the breakdown of the fin.incia1 assets and 1i.:ibilities by type of Interest rate : 

Financial assets 
lnlerest bearing 

• fi11ed imerest rate 

Loan 

Bank bal<1nce other th.in above 

Non interest bearing 

Loans 
Others 

Cash and Cilsh equivalent 

Financial Liabili ties 
Interest bearing 

Borrowings 
Un.imonised transaction cost 

• fixed interest rnte 

Borrowin(ls 

Non interest bearinc 

Borrowings 

Trade .:ind other payables 
Other financial liabilities 

liquidity risk 

As at 
March 31, 2025 

338 .10 

3G.32 
12.79 

9,5'13.'10 
-48 .62 

4,000.00 

2,457.94 

11.15 
80.82 

( , in Millions) 

As al 
Marchll,2024 

522.00 

50.79 
40,46 

10,119.67 
-66.85 

'1,000.00 

1,342.15 

13.28 
79.80 

liquidi1y ,isk is the risk that the Company may not be able to meet its present and future cash and collateral obligations without incurring unacceptable losses. The Company's objective is 10, at all 
times main1.iin optimum levels of liquidlty lo meet its cash and collateral requirements. The Company closely monitors its liquidi1y position and deploys a robust cash management system. H 
m.iintains <1dequ<1 te sources of financing including debt and overdraft from banks at an optimised cost. 



Solapur Yedcshi Tollway Limited 

Notes to financial statement for the y<?ar ended March 31, 2025 

The Company maximum exposure to credit risk fo r the components of the balance sheet at March 31, 2025 and March 31, 2024 is the carryine amounts as:-

I\ in Million s) 

On demand Less than lZ months l to S t ears > S years Total 

Asat March31,ZOZS 

Bo rrowings 2,457.94 5,910.00 7,633.40 16,001.34 

Other financial liabilities 80.23 0.59 80.82 
Trade and other payables 3.37 2.21 5.59 

1,541 .54 S,91Z.80 7,633.40 16,087.75 

As at March 31, 1014 

Borrowings 1,3112.15 5, 165.00 8,954.67 15,461.82 

Ot her financial liabil ities 79.80 79.80 

Tr.:ide and other payables 10. 19 3.08 13.28 

1,412. 14 S,168.08 8,954.67 15,554.90 

At present, Company docs expec t to repay all liabilities at their contractual maturity. In order to mee t such cash commitments, ope rat ing activity is expected to generate sufficient cash mflows. 

Note 31 : Capital manaccment 

For the purpose of t he Company's capital management, capital includes issued equity capital, conver1ible preference shares, share premium and all other equity reserves attributable 10 the 

t'quity holders of the Company. The primary ob jt'ct ive of the Company's capital management is to mal(imise tht' shareholder value. 

The Comp,iny manages its capital structurt' and makes adjustments in light of changes in economic conditions and the requi rem ents of the financial covenants . To main tain or adjus1 the capi1al 

structure, the Company may adjus1 the dividend p.iymcnt lo shart'ho lde rs. retu rn capital to sh.ireholders or issu e new sh;ircs. The Company monitors c.ipital us ing a gearing rati o, which is net debt 

divided by to1al capital plus net debt . The Company's policy is to kt'ep op timum gcilring ratio i.e. between 75% to 90%. The Company includes within net debt, interest bearing !oJns and borrowings, 

tradt' and other pay,1bles, ltm cas h and cash equivalents, ekcluding discontinued operations. 

Borrowings 

Less: cash and cash equivalents 

Net debt 

Equity 

Sub-ordinate deb! 

Total sponsor capital 

Capit al and net debt 

Gearing ratio 1%) 

Asat 

March31,1025 

15,952.72 

112.79) 

15,939.93 

(2 ,964.26) 

3,633.llO 

669.14 

16 609.07 

95.97 

(-'{ In M illions) 

As at 
March 31 , 2024 

15,394.98 
(40.46) 

15,354.52 

(2,145.81) 

4,209.67 

2,063.86 

17418.38 

88 .15 

In ordt'r to achieve this o vt'rall objective. the Company's capi tal management, amongst other things, aims to ensure that it meets financial covenants attached to the interest-bearing loam and 

borrowings tha1 define capital structure requirements. Breaches in meeting the financial covenants would permit the bank to immediately call loc1ns and borrowings. There have been no breaches in 

the finan cial coven;ims or ;iny ince rc s1-bearins loans and borr owing in the current pe riod . 

No chc1ngcs we re m;idc in the objec tive s, policies or processes for managing capital du1ing the year ended March 31, 2025 ;ind March 31, 2024. 

Note 33 : Material accounting judgement, est imates and assumption s 

The prcpar;ition of the Company's financial sta tements requires management to make judgements, estimates and assumptions that affect the reported amounts of revenue, ekpt'nses, assets and 

liabilities, and the uccompanying disclosures. and the disclosure of contingent liabili ties. Uncertainty about these assumptions and estimates cou ld result in outcomes that require a material 

adjustment to the carrying ;imount of assets or liabilities affected in future periods . 

Estimates and assumptions 

Estimates and underlying assumptions are reviewed on an ongoing basis. Revisions to accounting estimates are rcco&nlzed in the per iod in which the es1imatcs are revised and future periods ar c 

affected . 

The key nssump1ions conce rni ng the future and other key sources of estimation uncertainty at the reporting date, that have a signi fi ca nt ri sk of causing a material adjustment to the carrying 

amounts of asse ts and liabilities with in the next financ ial year, arl! described below. The Company based lts anumptions and cstimaces on parameters av;iilable when the financial stntcmen1s were 

prepart'd. Existing circumstances and assumptions about future developments, howeve r, may change dut' to market changes or circumstances arising that ure beyond the con irol of the Company_ 

Such changes are reflected in the assumptions when they occur. 

Rc.sutfaclnc Expenses 

As per the Service Concession Agreements, the company is obligated to carry out resu rfac ing of the roads under concess ion. The company estimates the likely provi sion required towards resurfacing 

and accrues the costs on .J straight line basis over the peri od at the end of whic h resurfacing would be required, in the stateme nt of prorit and loss in accordance wit h Ind AS 37 "Provisions, 

Contingent liabilities and Contingent Assets. 

Amortization of Intangible Assets 

The intangible assets which are recognized In the form of Right to charge users of the infra st ruct ure asset arc amortii ed by 1c1k ing proportionc1te of actual revenue received for th e year over Total 

Projected Reve nue from projec t to Co st of ln tnngible assets . The estimation of total projec1ion reve nue requ ir es significant assumption about t'kpec tcd growch rc11e and traffic projection for future 

All assu mptions are reviewed at each reporting date. 

Taxes 

Ta k expense comprises o f current and deferred ta11. Current incomt' tax is measured at the amount ekpccted to be paid to the 1a11 aut horit ies in accordanc e with the Income Ta k Act. 1961. Deferred 

incomt' taxes reflects the impact of timing differences between taxable income and nccounting income orif!inating during the curren t period and reversal of tim in i:: diffe rences of earli er years . 

Deferred tax is measured based on the tax rates and the tax laws enacted or substantively enacted at the balance sheet date. Deferred tal( assets and defcrrt'd tax liabilities are offset, if legally 

cnforct'ablc righ1 exists to set-off current t a11 asse ts against current ta11 liabilities and the deferred ta11 assets and deferred ta11 liabilities related to the taxes on income levied by same governing 

1a11at ion laws. Deferred tax assets arc re cognise d only to the extent that there is reasonable certainty that suffic ient future 1a11able income w ill be avallabte against which such deferred ta11 assets can 

be realised. In si tua tions w here the Company has unabsorbed depreciation or carry forward ta k losses, all deferred ta x assets are recognized on ly if there is virt ua l certainty supported by convinci ng 

evidence that th ey can be realized against future taxable profit s. 

At each bc1lance sheet date the Company re-assesses unrecogni sed deferred tax assets. It recogni ses unrecognised de ferred ta11 assets to the extent that 11 has become rea sonab ly certain that 
sufficient future ta ka ble income w ill be available ;igainst which such deferred tax assets can be realised or virtually certain c1s the case may be. 

The carrying ;irnount of deferred tax usscts arc reviewed at each balance sheet date. The Company writes-down the ca rrying amount of a deferred lax asset to the cktcnt that it ,s no longer 

reasonably certain or virtua lly certain, as the case may be , that sufficient future taxable income will be available against which dcrerred ta.: asset can be realised . Any such write-down is reversed 10 

the extent that it becomes reasonably certain or virtua lly cert.:iin, as the case may be, that sufficient future taxable income wi ll be available. 

Minimum alternative tax (MAT} credit is recognised as ;in asset on ly when and to the extent there is convincing evidence that the Company wi ll pay income cal( higher tha n that computed under 

MAT, during the period t hat MAT is permi tted to be set off under the Income Tax Act, 1961 (specified period). In the year. in which the MAT credit becom es eligible to be recognised as .:in asset in 

accordance with tht' recommendations contained in the guidance note issued by the Inst itute of Chartered Accountants of India (ICAI). the said asset is created by way of a credit to the Statement of 

profit and loss and shown .JS MAT credi t entillement. The Company reviews the same al each balance sheet date and wri tes down the carrying amount of MAT credit entitlemcm to the extent there 

is no longt'r convincing evidence to the effect that the Company will p.:iy income tax higher than MAT during the specified period. 

Note 34 : Disclosures with reca rd to Toll Collection Righh (lntanglblc Assets) : 

Name of Concessionaire Solapur Yedeshi Tollway Limited 

Stall of concession pe r iod under concession agreement {Appointed d.:ite) Ja nuary21.2DIS. 

End of concession period under concession agreement April 20, 2044. 

Period of concession since tht' appointed date 29 years. 

onstruct1on com pletion date or schedu led construct ion completion date under the concernon 

"$,. ecment, c1sappllcablc 
October 15, 2019 



Solapur Yedeshi Tollway limited 

Notes to financial statement for the year ended March 31 , 2025 

The above BOT/ DB FOT proiects shall have following rights/ obliga tions in accorda nce with th e Concession Agreement entered into with the Respective Government Authorities:• 

a. Rig/us 10 use the Specified assets 
b. ObligaIions to provide or rights to opeCl provision of services 
c. Obligations to deliver or rights to rece ive at the end of Ihe Concession 

Nole 35 : Disclosures as per lndAS 115: 
a) Dl sacc regation of revenue from contracts with customers 

The company believes that the informat ion provided below for Revenue from Operations, is sufficient 10 meet the disclosure objectives with respect to disaggregation of revenue under Ind AS 115. 
Revenue from Contracts with Customers and also refer note (b). 

Pa rtkulars 
Contract Revenue (refer note b below) 
Income from toll coll ection (net} (refer note b be low) 
Total 

b} Reconciliation of revenue as per Ind AS 115 

Parlkular s 
Contract Revenue 
Construction revenue (utility shiftincl 
Total Contract Revenue 

Income from 1011 collectlon 
Toll Revenue (Gro ss) 
Le ss: NHAI Premium 

Less : NHAI Revenue share• Fastag 
Total Toll Revenue {Net) 

Note 36 : Income Ta x: 

Parti cu lar 

Profi t Be fore Tax 
Statutory Tax rate 
Adjustments r<!coc nised in the current year in 
relation to the current tilK of Prior years 

Note 37 : Loans or advances to specified persons 

Types of borrower 

Promoters 
Directors 
KMPs 
Related Part ies 
Total aggreg ate loans 

,in Mi ll ion) 

March 31 2025 March31,2024 
16.18 77.70 

1,221.17 1,262.46 

1,237.35 1,340.16 

!~in Mi lli ons) 

March31,2025 March 31, 2024 

16.18 77.70 

16.18 77.70 

1,229.50 1,272.76 

(8.33) (10.30) 
1,221.17 1,262.46 

( '( in Mi lli on) 

M arch 31, 2025 March 31, 2024 

(818.'15) 1844,14} 
25 .17% 25.17% 

March 31, 2025 

Amount 
oulstandln • 

0.47 

% of Total" 

0% 

M arch 31, 2024 

Amount 
outstandin ~ 

% of Total" 

0% 

Nole 38 : Particulars in re spect of loans and advances in the nature of Joans given to subsidiaries as required by Rcculation 53(1) of the SEBI (Ustlnc Oblicalion and Disclosure Requirements) 

Regulation, 2015 

As at Ma1th31, 2025 March 31 , 2024 

Particulars 

IRB Westcoast Tollway Limited (JRBWTL) 
Udaipur Tollway Limi ted (UTLI 
Yedeshi Aurangabad Tollway limited (YATL) 
Kait hal Tollway Limited (KTL) 
Palsit Dankuni Toll way Private Li mited (PDTPL) 
Samakhiy,1li Tollway Private Limited (STPL) 
AE Tollway limited (AE TL) 
Kishanganh Gulabpura Tollway Limited (KGL) 
CG Tollway Limited (CGTL) 
IRB Hapur Muradabad To llway Limited (IRBHMTL) 

IRB Go lco nda EKpressway Privill e Limit ed (IGEPL) 
IRB lalitpur Tollway Priva te Limited {ILTPL) 
IRB Kata Tollway Private Limited IIKTPL) 
IRS Gwalior Tollway Private limi ted (IGTPL) 
Meerut budaun Expressway limited (MBEL) 

Note 39 ; Othl!r StaIutory Information 

BalanCl!S out standinc 

i) The Company have not t raded or invested in Crypto currency or Vi rtual currency during the financia l year. 

MaKimumbalance 
Outstanding during 

ii) The Company does not hold benami property and no proceedings under Benami transaction (Prohibiti on) Act 1988 have been initiated against the company. 
iii) The Company do nol have any tr ansactions with companies muck off. 

Balances 
outstanding 

Maximum 
balance 

Outstanding 
durln t he.ryear 

iv) The Company have not any such 1tansacIion which is noI recorded in the books of accounIs that has been surrendered or disclosed as income during Ihe year in the taK assessments under the 
Income Tax Act, 1961 (such as, sea rch or survcy or any 0Iher relevant provisions of the Income Tax Act, 1961. 

v) The Company have not rece ived any fund from any person{s) or entity(ies), including foreig n entities (Funding Party) wit h the understandirig (whether recorded in writ ing or othe rwise) that th e 

Company shall : 

(a) directly or indirectly lend or invest in other persons or entities identi fied in any m.inner whatsoever by or on behalf of the Funding Party (Ul timate Beneficiaries) or 
(bl provide any guarantee, security or the like on behalf of the Ultimate Beneficiaries. 
vi) The Company have no t adv.ince or lo.ined or invested (either from borrowed fund or share premium or any other source or kind of fund) by the company to or in any person{s l or entity(ies), 
including foreign entities (Funding Party) w ith the understanding (whether recorded in writing or otherwise) that the Company shall: 

(a) direct ly or indirectly lend or invest in other persons or entities identified in any manner wh.itsoever by or on behalf of the comp.iny (Ultim.itc Bcnefici.iries) or 
(bl provide any guarantee, security or the like on behalf of the Ultimate Beneficiaries. 
vii ) The Company did not have any Jong-te rm contracts includinlJ derivative contrac t for which there were any material foreseeable losses. 

viii) The Company has not declared a wilful defaulter by any bank/ financia l institution or any other lender during the year. 
ht) Compnay has used the borrowinr,s from banks and financial institutions for specific purpose for which ii was Iaken at the balance sheet date. 



Solapur V!!dcshi Tollway limited 

Notes to financial statcmC!nl for th!! yl!ar cndC!d March 31, 2025 

Noll! 40: Othl!r financial information - ratios 

Particulan nolc reference 
As at 

March 31, 2025 

Adjusted Current Ratio ( in times) ll.llll 

Adjusted Debt - Equity Ratio 1.20 

Adjusted Debi Service Coverage Ratio 2.08 

Return on Equity (ROE) : -60% 

Inventory TurnovN Ratio NA 

Trade payables turnove r rar io (no. of days) 16 

Net profit ratio -66% 

Net capital turnover ratio 3.73 

Return on capital C!mployed (ROCE) 14.41% 

Trade RecC!ivable Turnover Ratio Not Me,rningful 

Return on Inves tment (ROI) Not Applicable 

Note: 

As al 

March 31, 2024 

6.30 

I.OZ 

2.18 

-31% 

NA 

127 

-63% 

3.78 

14% 

Not Meaningful 

Not Applicable 

%Variance Remarks 

Current ratio has reduced on account of 

.Jo% reduction in current aHets in FY25 and 

interest accrued but not due 

18% 

-5% 

The increase in ratio Is mainly on 

81% account of repayment of sub dcb1 and 

increase in loss 

NA 

·88% Reduction in trilde payable 

5% 

-1% 

3% 

Not Meaningful 

Not Applicable 

a. AdjustC!d Current ratio (in times) : Current Assets/ Current liabilities excluding Current maturities of long term debt from related parties, interest accrued thcron and currC!nt borrowings fro m 

relatC!d parties, currc11t maturitiC!S of resurfacing e:,,:penscs and current unsecured loan from related parties. 

b. Adjus1ed Debt - Equity ratio : Borrowings {e:,,:cluding sub debt and unsecured loans from related parties) - Cash and Bank Balances - Fixed Depmits - Liquid Investments divided by Equity 

c. Adjusted Debt Service Coverage Ratio (ADSCR) (no. of times) : Profit before interest, amortisation & deprec iation and provision for resurfacing e:,,:penscs, divided by Interest e)(pcnse {net of 

moratorium interest, interest cost on unwinding (long term umccured loans) and amortisation of transaction cost) and lnrcrest on loan from related parties together with repayments of long term 

debt e)(cludinr, repayment of debt of related parties during the period (netted off 10 the extent of long term loans <JVailcd during the same period for the rcpaymenr) 

d. ROE: Net Profits after taxes/ Average Shareholder's Equity. 

e. Trade payables turnover ratio= Net Credit Purchases/ Avcraec Trade Payables• No of days. 

f. Ne! profit margin (in %): profi1 after ta:,,:/ Revenue from operation. 

g. Net capital turnover r.itio = Net Sales/ Working Capi tal. 

h. Return on capital employed (ROCE)= Earning before interest and taxes/ Capital Employed (Capital Employed= Tangible Net Worth+ Total Debt+ Deferred fa)( Liability) 

i , Trade Receivable Turnover ratio= Revenue from operations/ Average (Trade receivable)· No. of days. 

j) Return on investment (ROI): {MV(Tl) - MV(TO) - Sum [C(t)]) / {MV{TO) t Sum [W(t) • C(t)I) 

Tl= End of time period 

1 = Specific date falling between Tl and TO 

MV(TO) = Market Value a~ TO 

TO= Beginning of time period 

MV(ll) = Market Value al Tl 

C(t) = Cash inflow, cash outflow on 

W(t) = We icht of the net cilsh flow (i.e. either net inflow or net out flow) on day 't ', calculated as [TI - t j 

Note 41: Basis of preparatlon of financial statements 

The Company has presented these standalone rinanciaJ informa tion { for all the period s presented there in ) in accordance with the requirement of Schedule Ill • of the Companies Act , 2013 

including amendments thereto, effective from April 01,2021. 

Note 42: Contingent liability 
There arc no contingent liabilities as at 31st March, 2025 

Note 43; Trade receivables 

Concentration of credit risk with respect to trade receivables arc high, due to the Company's cunomcr ba~e being limited. All trade receivables arc reviewed and assessed for default on a quarterly 

basis . 8ascd on historica l e)(periencc of collectinc receivables indiciltC a low credit risk . 

The following tabl!! provides information about the a(leing of gross rnrrying amount of tr.ide recicvables as at: 

Gross Carrying Amount 

Undisputed Trade rccicvablcs -considered good 

Contract ancts (unbilled revenue ) 

Not due 
Le55 1h;m 6 Months 

6 months• l year 

1-2 Years 
2-3 Yc.irs 

Morcth.in3years 
Total 

As at 

Marchll,2025 

0.88 

0.88 

Rsinmilliom) 

As al 

March 31, 2024 



Sol:1pur Ycdeshi Tollwny Limited 

Notes lo foi11:111cial Stntemenls for the Year ended March 31, 2025 

Note 44: Related p:u·tics Disclosures 

Nmnes of related parties 

llolding Company 

IRO Infrastructure Trust 

Sponsor and Project J\•lanagcr 

IRB lnfrastrucLUrc Developers Limited 

Fellow Subsidiary 
IRB Westcoast Tollway Limited (IR8WTL) 
AE Tollway Limited (AETL) 
Ycdcshi Aurnngabad Tollway Limited (YATL) 
Kaithal Tollway Limited (KTL) 
Palsit Dankuni Tollway Private Limited (PDTPL) 
Smnakhiyali Tollway Private Limited (STPL) 
IRB Kota Tollway PrivatcLimitcd (IKTPL) 
rvlcerut Budaun Expressway Limited (MBEL) 

CG Tollway Lim ited (CGTL) 
Kishangarh Gulabpura Tollway Limited {KGTL) 
IRB Hapur Moradabad Tollway Limited (11\B HMTL) 
Udaipur Tollway Limited (UTL) 
IRB Golconda Exprcssw.iy Priv.itc Limited (IGEPL ) 
IRB Lalitpur Tollway Private Limited (IL TPL) 
I RB Gwalior Tollway Privatc Limited ( IGTPLJ 

Subsidi:iry company of Sponsor (Only with whom there have been trnnsactions during the year/ there was bal:1nce outstanding at the period end) 

Modern Road Makers Private Limited 

l<cy M:111:1gcmcnt Personnel 
tvts. Shilpa Todankar. Director 
tvlr. Abhay Phatak , Director 
tvlr. Dcvcndra llank::i, Chicfrinancial Officer 
Mrs. Rishika Rawat, Company Sccrc101y (upto.22.05.2024) 

Statement orTr:111sactio11s with Rel ated P:irlies 

17or the year ended March 31. 2025 
:1) Rel:llcd Party Tr:1nsactions 

Mr. Chandrashckhar Kaplan. DircclOr 
i\•lrs. Ranjana Paranjape, Director 
Mr.Jaiprnkash Nandi , Chief Executive Officer 
Ms. Hcla Solanki, Company Sec retory (w.e.f.20.08.2024) 

(~in Millions) 

P;11•1icular 
1-lohling Company Sponsoraml Project i\lnnnger Subsidiary company ofSpo11so1· Kc.y Management Personnel 

S11bordi11:1te Debt - Jlcccivcd 
IRO Infrast ructure Trusl 

Subordinate Debi - P:iid 
IRI3 lnfr:is1ruc1urc Trust 

Short term LJOrrowings - P:1id 
\RB lnfrns1ructure Developers Limited 
!RB lnfrnst ructurc Trusl 

Opcrntion & i\lainten:rncc 
/RO lnfr:istnicwrc Developers Limited 

Contrnct & Site Expenses 
Modern Ro:id /'vlakcrs Pri vate L i111i1cd 

E:1;pcnscs incurred 011 behalf of company 
IRB l11fr.1s1ruc1Ure Trust 

lntcrcsl 011 1111sccurcd loan 
IRI3 lnfr;is1ruc1 urc Trust 

l111e1·cs t P:1id 011 unsecured loan 
IRD lnfrns1ruc1t1rc Trust 

Dirc.clor Si11i11g Fees 

C.S. K:ipt;in 

Shi Ip., Todanbr 
/\bhay Ph:11:ik 

R:injan:i P.1 r:inj:ipc 

576.27 

)76.17 

1,11:i.79 
I, 115 .79 

~lar-2~ 

299.47 
299.47 

:itJ.:i0 

51 J .50 

24.00 

24.00 

0.01 

0.0 1 

l , 192.2S 
1,192.25 

390.00 
390.00 

i\lar-2:i 

390.35 
390.J) 

90.82 
90.82 

188.38 
I SS.J8 

i\l:11·-!:i 

0.74 
0.74 

77.70 
77.70 

i\lar-2S i\lar-2~ 

UA6 0.37 

0. t ) 0.09 

014 0. t I 

0.07 0.07 

0. 12 010 



Sol:1pur Ycdcshi Tollw:1y Limited 
Notes to Financi:1I Statcmcnls for 1hc Yenr ended 1\larch 31, 2025 

b) Rcl;\lctl Parlv Bal:mce5 

D:1lancc as on 31 .03.2025 ( { in Millions) 

Pai-Iicul:1r 
I lolding Com1t;111y S1ionsor mul Project l\ l :wagc1· Suhsid ia1·y compnny or Sponsor Key i\lan:1f!c-111enl Personnel 

Shol'I term bOl'l'OWings 

IRO lnfras1ructurc Trust 

Long term borrowings 

IRO lnfrasIn1cturc Trust 

Sub-debl lakcn 

IRO Infrastructure Trust 

Trade P:1y:1blc 

IRO lnfras1ruc1ure Developers Limited 

Modi::m Road Makers Pri vn tc Li111itcd 

lnlercsl pny:-iblc 011 Unscc111·cd Lo;111 

!RD lnfraslnicture Trus1 

Othc1· payable 

IRB Infrastructure Trust 

Rctcn1io11 l\lone~· Payable 

Modern Road M:ikcrs Pri va te Limi l i.!d 

IRB lnfrastruCll1rc Dl!velopcrs Limi1ed 

Direc tor Sil!ing Fees Pnyablc 

C.S. Kapt:i11 

Ranj:111a Paranjape 

Shilpa Todankar 

Ablrny Ph:nak 

• Mar-25 

4,000.00 

4.000.00 

3,633AO 

J,63 ) .40 

2,457.94 

2,457.94 

Terms and co11dilio11s or tn1mncIions with rel;11ed parties 

4,000.00 

4,000.00 

4,209.67 

4,209.67 

1,342.15 

1,342. 15 

4,89 

4.89 

l\l:-ir-24 

19.85 l:'- .6-' 

19.85 1564 

Mar-25 

0.86 

0.86 

6.08 

6.08 

l\l :lr-24 

2.08 

2.08 

GAS 
6.48 

l\l.ir-2:i 

U. I 0 
O(n 
U OJ 
00) 
0.02 

0,16 
on., 
U,O) 

0.05 

0.03 

I . The comp:rny in the course of our bus iness have entered inio various Ir:111 s:ic Iions with rda1ed panics These trans:i.c tions include opcra1ion and maintenance charges paid for opcr;11ion 
:111d 111:ii111c11:i11cc .ictivi ties sl1b-co111rac1cd, lo:ins and adv:inccs. cert:iin ro:id work expenses for road work contr:ictcd 10 Ihc projccl or the company The trans:iclions wi th related parties are 

made on Ien11s equivalent to those that prevail in arm's leni;lh 1r:insac1 ions 

2. OuIsI:indi11g bal:rnccs at the period-end arc unsec llred :111d interes t fre e .:111d se11lemi.!11l occlJrS in cash. 

J. There have been no guarantees provided or received fo r any re lated party receivables or payables. 

4. For reporting period c11clcd, the company has not recorded :my impairment or receivables relating to amounts owed by related parties. Th is assess111eI11 is undertaken e:ich n.::portillg 
period through examining the financial posi tion of the related party and Ihc market in which the related pany opcr:i tcs 

Nole .is : Sc-gmc11I infonnation 

The Company has identified one business segmenl in accordance wi 1h the Indian AccollJU ing Standard I 08 "Operating Seg111e111" notified under Section 133 of th e Co111panies Act, 20 1 J 
read cogclhi::r with relevant ruled issued thereunder. 

Nole ~6 : E\'Cllls after 1·cpo1·ting pel'iod 

There is no suhsequi::n t event artcr the reporting period which requires adjuslments to the financial statements. 

Nole .i1 : P1·C'vious period comparnlives 

Previous period's figures h:wc been regrouped/reclassified, whcrl!ver nccess:iry, to confirm to cmrcI11 period's class 1ficat 1011 

As per our report on even date 

As per our report of even dc1tc 

For Gokhalc & Sathe 

Chartered Accountants 

ICAI Firm Regostrat,on N? 103264W 

CA Kaustubh Des~ 

Partner 

Membership No. : 121011 

Place : Mumbai 

Da te : 30/04/2025 

For and on behalf of the Board of Directors of 

Solapur Ycdcshi Tollway Limited 

CIN : U45400MH2014PLC251983 

~ ~ 
Shilpa Tod:111kar Abh:t)' Pha1ak 

Dircc1or 

DIN: 0868)910 

Place . Mumbai 

Date . 30/04/202:i 

Chier Financial Officer 

Pl:icc • Mumbai 

\ii~"" 
I lela Sol.1111.:i 

Company Sc~rctary 
Pl:i ce : Mumbai 

Date : J0/04/2025 

Director 

DIN: 095 19500 

Place : M umbni 


	SYTL_FS_March 25.pdf
	SYTL AR
	SYTL-FS-Mar-2025

	SYTL_FS_March 25.pdf
	SYTL AR
	SYTL-FS-Mar-2025



{ "type": "Form", "isBackSide": false }


{ "type": "Document", "isBackSide": false }


{ "type": "Document", "isBackSide": false }


{ "type": "Document", "isBackSide": false }


{ "type": "Document", "isBackSide": false }


{ "type": "Document", "isBackSide": false }


{ "type": "Document", "isBackSide": false }


{ "type": "Document", "isBackSide": false }


{ "type": "Document", "isBackSide": false }


{ "type": "Document", "isBackSide": false }


{ "type": "Document", "isBackSide": false }


{ "type": "Document", "isBackSide": false }


{ "type": "Document", "isBackSide": false }


{ "type": "Document", "isBackSide": false }


{ "type": "Document", "isBackSide": false }

		2025-06-30T23:22:19+0530
	Shilpa Chandrashekhar Todankar




